HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD MEETING
AGENDA
Hamilton High School Library
Wednesday, February 22, 2017

5:30 p.m. Closed Session
6:30 p.m. No Earlier than 6:30 PM

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

OPENING BUSINESS:
Call to order and roll call

Gabriel Leal, President Rosalinda Sanchez Tomas Loera
Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk Rod Boone

IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board may
limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters.

1. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, Superintendent
Charles Tracy, and Attorney, Matt Juhl-Darlington regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.

2. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment,
resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees.

3. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Conference with Legal Counsel — existing litigation. Name of case:
Crews v. Hamilton Unified School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394.

Report out actions taken in closed session.
PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:
ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M)

COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS:
1. Board Member Comments/Reports
2. ASB President and Student Council President Reports.
a. Hamilton High, Hernan Urena-Valdes.
b. Hamilton Elementary, Jose Mendez.
3. District Reports
a. Food Service Report by LeAnn Radtke.
b. Operations Report by Marc Eddy.
¢. Technology Report by Derek Hawley.
4. Principal and Dean of Student Reports
a. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal.
b. Darcy Pollak, Hamilton Elementary School Principal.
¢. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students.
5. Chief Business Official/Facilities Report by Diane Lyon.
6. Superintendent Report by Charles Tracy.
a. Dates to Remember:
i. February 25" Board Workshop in Hamilton High School Library - Board Governance Handbook.
ii. February 28": Board Site Visitations 8:15 a.m. to 10:30 am.
iii. March 11™: Board workshop in Hamilton High School Library — LCAP/Budget/Board Manual.
Form 700 — Annual Statement of Economic Interests.
Small School Districts Association (SSDA) Conference — March 6, 7, and 8%
d. Painting safety zones around doors.

O o






8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

CORRESPONDENCE: None

DISCUSSION ITEMS:
1. Hamilton Unified School District Board Policies, second reading (all policies available on www.husdschools.org,
available for public review during the board meeting and by request by contacting the District Office):
a. 0000 Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans
1000 Community Relations
2000  Administration
3000 Business and Noninstructional Operations
4000  Personnel
5000  Students
6000 Instruction
7000  Facilities
9000  Board Bylaws
i. Please note: the following board polices have significant changes in addition to the California School
Boards Associations recommendations: BP 1312.1, AR 1312.1 (a), AR 3311 (d) and (l), AR 3515.5, AR
3515.5 {c), BP 3515.7 (b), BP 4117.13, 4317.13, AR 6164.6 (a), and E 9270 {c).
2. Site Safety Plans (full plans available on www.husdschools.org, available for public review during the board meeting
and by request by contacting the District Office): (Mr. Tracy)
a. Hamilton High School (includes the District Office, Ella Barkley High School, Hamilton Community Day School
and Hamilton Adult School). (Page 1-21)
b. Hamilton Elementary School (includes Hamilton State Preschool and Hamilton Special Education). (Page 22-44)
Hamilton Unified School District Audit Report June 30, 2016. (Page 46-132)
Glenn County Office of Education Services for the California Healthy Youth Act. (Page 133-149)
CSEA #623 to HUSD request to bargain. (Page 150)
Teacher recruitment updates (Mr. Tracy).

e N N

AN S

PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard
(agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15
minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon.

ACTION ITEMS:

1. Adoption of the following series of updated Board policies, administrative regulations, and Board bylaws for Hamilton
Unified School District (all policies available on www.husdschools.org, available for public review during the board
meeting and by request by contacting the District Office):

a. 0000 Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

1000 Community Relations

2000  Administration

3000 Business and Noninstructional Operations

4000 Personnel

5000  Students

6000 Instruction

7000 Facilities

9000 Board Bylaws

i. Please note: the following board polices have significant changes in addition to the California Schoo!
Boards Associations recommendations: BP 1312.1, AR 1312.1 (a), AR 3311 (d) and (), AR 3515.5, AR
3515.5 {c), BP 3515.7 (b), BP 4117.13, 4317.13, AR 6164.6 (a), and E 9270 (c).

2. Site Safety Pians (full plans available on www.husdschools.org, available for public review during the board meeting

and by request by contacting the District Office): (Mr. Tracy)
a. Hamilton High School (includes the District Office, Ella Barkley High School, and Hamilton Community Day
School and Hamilton Adult School). (Page 1-21)
i. Hamilton Elementary School (includes Hamilton State Preschool and Hamilton Special Education). (Page
22-44)

3. Resolution 16-17-105 Emergency Management Resolution — Hamilton Unified School District has implemented a School
Emergency Plan for all school sites and facilities. (Page 45)

4. Accept Hamilton Unified School District Audit Report June 30, 2016. (Page 46-132)

5. Level of services desired by Hamilton Unified School District from the Glenn County Office of Education for the
California Healthy Youth Act. (Page 133-149)

Smrpoo0o






6. Possible recruitment incentives for Hamilton Unified School District Teachers.

12.0 CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one motion.
There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public request
specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda approved by the
Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended.

Warrants and Expenditures. (Page 151-171)

Williams Quarterly Report. (Page 172)

Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting on January 25, 2017. (Page 173-177)

Hamilton High School Application for Student Club: Hamilton High Decathietes. (Page 178-182)

Infinity Communications & Consulting, Inc. Master Agreement for Professional Services with Hamilton Unified School

District. (Page 183-185)

Interdistrict Transfers (new — elementary students reapply annually).

a. Out: None to report
b. In: None to report
7. Personnel Actions as Presented:
a. New Hires:
i. Christie Thor Classified Substitute  District
ii. Leticia Ramirez Classified Substitute  District
b. Resignations/Retirement:
i. Nonetoreport

1St 1) 1

o

13.0 ADJOURNMENT:

Close in memory of John Carrillo.






HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SB 187 COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
SAFETY PLAN

For Hamilton High School
620 Canal Street
Hamilton City, CA 95951

Sites also included in this plan:
Hamilton Unified School District Office
Ella Barkley High School
Hamilton Adult Education
Hamilton Community Day School



Hamilton Unified School District

PREFACE TO SITE SAFETY PLANS:

The state template requires multiple levels of assignments of staff when a disaster occurs. In
larger districts, the multiple layers of committees are functional and important. The reality of
smaller districts is that we lack the sheer numbers of personnel to accomplish every committee
assignment detailed in the state template. Hamilton Unified School District (HUSD) has
designed a modified version of the Incident Command System (ICS) in accordance with the
National Emergency Management System known as “NEMS.”

The command structure and assignments are as follows for HUSD:

INCIDENT COMMANDER District Superintendent

ASSISTANT INCIDENT COMMANDER | A site Administrator whose school is not
involved in the disaster

INCIDENT COMMAND POST District Executive Assistant

ASSISTANT

DISTRICT PERSONNEL Confidential Payroll and Personnel

COORDINATOR Specialist

SITE COORDINATOR A site Administrator

FINANCIAL COORDINATOR Chief Business Official assisted by
District Purchasing Agent

MAINTENANCE, OPERATIONS Director of Maintenance, Operations and

AND TRANSPORTATION Transportation and staff

FOOD SERVICE Director of Nutrition and Child Welfare
and staff

REUNIFICATION COORDINATOR Site Administrative
Assistance/Attendance Clerk

STUDENT RETENTION AND All Classroom Teachers

SUPERVISION

PARENT UNIFICATION District TOSA’s not assigned to

COORDINATORS classroom supervision, Yard Duty and
Instructional aids.

SOCIAL AND EMOTIONAL SUPPORT District Dean of Students/District
Counselors, Glenn County Mental
Health.

SEARCH AND RESCUE Hamilton City Fire Department and
Glenn County Sheriff’s Office

TRAFFIC CONTROL California Highway Patrol/Glenn County
Sheriff’s Office




Hamilton Unified School District

OTHER AGENCY

State and County Office of Emergency
Services

Red Cross

Service Organization and volunteers if
available

Duties of each assignment:

INCIDENT COMMANDER

To coordinate the incident in cooperation
with the ICS structure alongside
responding and allied agencies (Law
Enforcement, Fire other emergency and
support services). To Serve as Public
Information Officer (P1O)

ASSISTANT INCIDENT COMMANDER

To Assist the Incident Commander in the
Incident Command Center or serve as IC
in the absences of the Superintendent.

INCIDENT COMMAND POST
ASSISTANT

To record the minutes of the incident and
keep records of the agency and allied
agency personnel assigned to the
incident. To serve as PIO if necessary.

DISTRICT PERSONNEL
COORDINATOR

To access personnel records and service
as assistant Incident Command Post
Assistant.

SITE COORDINATOR

To coordinate student evacuations, set up
emergency shelter or reunification sites,
coordinate and direct staff and efforts to
shelter in place or evacuate if necessary.
Coordinate social emotional support and
parent holding and reunification process.

FINANCIAL COORDINATOR

To coordinate financial resources and
logistical needs during any incident.
Assist Director of Maintenance,
Operations and Transportation with
student evacuation, building repair or
support of food service department.

MAINTENANCE, OPERATIONS

Coordinate evacuation, building

AND TRANSPORTATION gas/services in an emergency, assist with
logistics of any emergency situation.
FOOD SERVICE Coordinate food service for students/staff

in the event of a prolonged need to house
students or staff due to an unforeseen
emergency.

REUNIFICATION COORDINATOR

Coordinate the verification of all
students. Insure that student records are
readily available for evacuation and
reunification processes. Insure that




Hamilton Unified School District

forms for unification housed in Appendix
4 and 5 of the site safety plan are copied
and in a backpack ready for transport
upon order of evacuation from a site.
Insure that students are only released to
parents or guardians as listed on the
individual student emergency cards.

STUDENT RETENTION AND Teachers are to remain with their

SUPERVISION assigned students and follow the
direction of the Incident Commander and
Site Coordinator.

PARENT UNIFICATION District Teachers On Special Assignment

COORDINATORS (TOSA) will locate the parent gathering

location and reunification site. The
TOSA’s will coordinate with the student
reunification coordinator to ensure the
process of reuniting students with parents
or guardians listed on the emergency
cards.

SOCIAL AND EMOTIONAL SUPPORT

The Dean of Students/District Counselors
will create a room for parents who have
students who are known to be Injured or
deceased. The Counselors will
coordinate allied agency services and
support for the victims and families.

SEARCH AND RESCUE

Command staff will coordinate site for
fire/rescue needs and will be responsible
for overall disaster

Coordination of the scene.

TRAFFIC CONTROL

Under the direction of the Office of
Emergencies Services direct traffic or
assist with disaster relief as directed by
command staff from the Fire or SO
Departments.

OTHER AGENCY

Coordinate support as directed from the
command staff of the Fire or SO
Departments




Hamilton Unified School District

Contents
Sb 187: School Safety Plan. ... cusiiisiiaiimseistississssistuassiiisseseesasatereassessssssossasssaseasees 11
School Safety Planning COmMmittee ..uuisvmusisssissmsasssinssssiasasmmssimamsimsmsisssmsiamiseimim 12
Hamilton High Safety Plan Signature Page ..ucswssmssmsmssaisssssimnmsmsstssseormsssinsissiasimssontons 14
AnNUAl SAfety GOALS ....veiieeiieeriiicinccere ettt e s se e e s e e e e et e et e et e anens 15
Goal #1 All Students Are Safe and Secure While At School, When Traveling, To and From
School and When Traveling To and From School Related Activities........cccvrvvreerececcenrnnnnnens 16
Goal #2 All Students And Staff Members Are Provided A Safe Teaching And Learning
ERYAGe N il trerrms -5 5. Freen -2 -2 - EE- - - EEEE G 2 -l 22 -l - S SRR 1l EER £+ - £ o= SR Bl o R 16
Promiul@ation.....cccveeecevseaessensresconsans cossonee o iemmismbs i o SRS SRS A F A SRR R BB A ST 25
Emergency Management RESOIULION ......cccueitiiriiriiiieienieiecceicee st ceeree st asssasssaeses e enes 27
Emergency Letter To Parents/Guardians .........ocvecveeeerreiireirinieesieesessieersesesessssracsssessncsesesassessosens 28
Legal Requirements Legal Requirements: Authorities And References..........cceeceeericiiicrnncnnnee. 30
Child Abuse Reporting ProCEAUIES........ccereereerierieerieesieeeieesseessrssessesessesssessesssasssssssssssssssesseasse 3O
Child Abuse Prevention And RePOrting .........cveeeeceiiriiinieircriee e teeee e eee e 37
Suspension/Expulsion Policy.. cusmaumimmmaimsivtnmviiovinisimis i itesiivisehuiorsnss 48
Suspension and EXpulsion/Due PrOCESS .........cussavsssisssmsssss isisssisivessasssssissssissisesiusosvosisseivsssssnse 49
Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students w/Disabilities) ......ccccciceiiicirienracninieannes 77

Dangerous Student NotifiCationuuuiensinmmmmmnsnmsassissimmimsissimsiswiaiassmsiiamsms 50

SeXUAl HAraSSITIENT .oiiiiiiiiiieciiieeie s e eseirsereeessesssseessnesessaesaasisassssssssesnsasessessnssssesansssssnsnsenees 1

Nondiscrimination/HaraSSIMENL. .. ....coveruirtereiereerinieineeeeteereeeteseeseesseseresessrersesesmeenseneresssesssassasnses 96
Hate Crime REPOITING ..cceveiirieeeiiiirietirre e rteeetreeee et e s eseseba et s e sese st e s emtesmeeee e e eeaseesnsaernsennes 116
Hate-Motivated BeRavIOr.....c.uivecuiieuiiriiinieeiceeeeeieesestesssteeeeeestesess et stesseessmseessnceseneesssanesseeses 117
Complaints Concerning District EMPIOYEES.....c.cccveacriiririiiiiinireseneriesiessesssssssessessnsssssssssnenses 120
Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP)....cveeieerimreteriireireitreiteesieseeeseesseeseesnsansnneeseesssneesnssnee 124

Hate Crime Reporting FOIM .....ccuoviiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininicticnccccctecrcsnc e 132
Bullying, Cyber-Bullying, Cyber-Crime ...iimiivsissassiissimivmieminmmimiissimsmivmiamgis 135

CONAUCE....cooriireiireecrireerererrinnnraneeensesns oo dTRER SRR SRR o R RS R R o e SR M S ea S e 136

Dress Code......... it amivniisisinnsmmsminmimsivismimnmamimaarsimsanisies 142
Board Policy And Administrative Regulation 5132 .......ccoviiiiiiiniiiiiiiiininesciseninessasesssessaaenns 142

Safe INGress and EGTESS .......cocooiiiinimiineiecreun e iaiiias s b eass e s oo piisasaoas sk s siavsda 143
National Incident Management System (INIMS)......c.eeerviurreriemriieiniersnisesiesesaesseeseesesessseassases 144
Standardized Emergency Management System (S€mS) ......ccovreerirreeiereerimnieniinnnerssinnesnensenns 144



Hamilton Unified School District

Nims Purpose and Scope ............ counsmmmmsiaminmbimsmsbb s sisieiiai i s 145
Sems Purpose and SCOope ............cussussssorsisassisiassisisissisinowieseiieiiin i 145
Sems and SChOOLS ... s U ERRRGE s<sssosssasaseo 148
Incident Command SYStEM (ICS)....c.eeuereerereiieeeieieieeie et eese s sae e assassessaesaseae e erenens 148
Emergency Phases General Information Regarding Emergencies ...........oocoueeveeeevveceeeveeernennes 153
School Emergency Response Teamthe School Emergency Response Team (Sert).................... 156
The Roles of The Members of The School Emergency Response Team ........eoveeveereeeecveneeneees 158
L0001 1T10F: 11T B I 1« PO et o 158
Operations Team......... syt S R e e TR B ess e wassssss 160
Planning Team .......cummmmmssssismssiisni s 166
LOZIStICS TAIML......ocueeeoecacrcce e sismsmiav s R R R RS VR S 167
Finance And Administrative TEaML..........sucssissisnsisssssissssssoitissscsosssissitaistesssissiesimiien 168
Incident Command System Team ROSter cuwesummissmisssmmisssnotssivssnsissaiisriivasorissswireeissias 169
BUAAY SYSTEIM ...t et s bt s s eb e e s s e s ert s s et san e et et st sneaea 175
EMeErgency SINAlS......ccooiiieioiiiiriirienicteseetesters e st ese e e s eea e e e s eesecassssessesesseeneersansses s esssessensans 176
ALCTE CAIAS ....ecnreeieeereieet e e eaae e ssssassasas e e saesesessesesssessesessssesssesesssssssnssssssaessenenssnsssnssases 177
EMETZENCY MAPS 1iisiierssassnssnsonsarssnerssonsanessnsssssassnssasasssssesssssassassassasssessensarssassasaesasassssassasssnssassssss 178
Evacuations smussiassisevasasamss i i i cssias s1ia s s s oot p s eSS T B R R 182
Evacuation Procedures for TEaChers:.........cueiiriiieieeecicici e essese s sanens e 183
Evacuation of Disabled StUdENtS ......cccoueereeieeeiiriieeieeeiecee e ceesiereese e ssssssssesasnsenen 185
Evacuation of Wheelchair-Confined Individuals.........c.ccevieivieviireceeiieieccee e 186
Emergency ReSpONSe SUPPLIES .....coevireeeieieiestecteeeeeetete ettt s s eas s aessesneens 188
Food And Water Managemient. . .emsesnsmsmsmsssosstsmsiessis s aes s i niessse s ioesauss .o 195
VWG E TN STYNCTLE -spsmonn s ossenkosmissosssiemios st i e R 0SS AR 195
Human Water REQUITEIIENTS .....cuicveerieririenreeiiniseiseseeiessesiesessscssssssesssssssesessssensessssssssssssssne 195

Controlling Water USE ........cceueeeeieeiieinreieieisieeeaesesesscsesesassesesecsessssssessssesessssesessessasssssssnness 190

Food And Meal Management .........cceceeeerirreneeesissessessesesesssssssessesesesessesessesssssassssssssssssnsase 197
CommUunNICation TOOLS.......cocueviiiiiiiiiieteetess et e et ssesbeess e e s sesesesasesseasssesserssssssseenssnseessensans 199
NON-EMETZENCIES — FL 1% ....... . iiiiiiiiniiinussssssssssassnssrsnsnsesassssssnsssesessasnssssasspsssssasassasssssossasssssnss 201
Radio StAtIONS ...vouuieereeencrereneennsn irisiassianesss i v evasvar s ssssien s Hi s assinss brnperensasens s sy S R P R AAS 202
Crisis Commumnication Guidelines sumvaisinuamsianmsmmuimiassasmsmimmmiiissssmsess 203

Emergency Alert System (Eas) . scscmnunsnisinsisiss s imss e m i aniomis 205

Incident Response Procedures wuummmrmsvasanansassssrmmsmmummaismyssaissaissmimaisay 206

AIrborme CONTAMIIAIES ......vvetieeeeeeieeieieeee e eeeeeeesaiessessssssesesesssssesssssssssssssssssesssssssssssesssrnnens 207



Hamilton Unified School District

ANIMal DISTUIDAINCE ....eeieeiieriiieiieecreeeieeett e ree s estee s e s s e e eser et ee e as s esaaae s seansae s e nnesanansnnns 209
L1 o) (S SO OO 209
Armed Intruder/Hostage Situation/Shots Fired .......ccccoeceerriiniiiicssniinininsnnniecnssinsssssssenens 211
ASSAUI.c.oeerenereneeireneraennve e eeene AT A SO F R A SRS E SRS S TRV AT STV SO H O OB ENETEARR re st e e nceenrsereenes 213
Assault on Staff Member By Student ...........coouiiiuiiiiiiieccicsessiicsicsessessssesne et sceeeens 213
Biochemical or Chemical Release ......uunsismiismnmassmvimimsQinimmwmmmiisaisivane 214
RAIation ACCIAENL.......coiiiririeeiecetet ettt ree st ms e s sa s e a s bt e e e s e sonesaesenes 220
Bomb Threats..........coooiieereecoe stisitsisimimerssnsii o sisass st ass s Ceasaiaaisaiise ss e e s sonssasasssnes 221
DEVICE FOUNG .....c..creernmeeronneecnonsssiisrssiisasssiinmsysinss s s suaessi osm by i cviiams sad 6 suasiiimasissaassaasss s s iasss 222
Letter/Package Bomb or Mailed Hazardous Substance.........c.ccceeerieniincvinieiinesicsnnniesncninens 223

Bomb Threat Information FOrm............sevsissssmmsssssssmssmmismsissasssmmsmssssessssssassoinsassnssssssosss 225

Bomb Threat Report FOTM......ocvieiieiieiieieeeet et cee e s et as s e sas s aas s sseeas 226
SRt 14 =5 oL RS 227
Child ADUSE REPOTEIIIE «..neeeeeeeeeeieitesetete et eete et ae e st e e sne s s s aasssaessasssnssaseassanes 229
Child Abuse and Neglect INAICAOTS ....ccuiieeierieeeeiieeetereeeeeaseee s esseesee s e sene s sesmne e e sesasanns 230

Legal Definitions/References. .....coccveereeeieiieeeireeeie e csstssssssssssasssanesssessnssanas 232

How to Report Child Abuse.......c..cceoer . iimmiiimimesnmmsm i oss i foassdsviestasescadioriisss 233
Child Does Not AITIVE HOMIE ...........owen.on. sisusssssississsissssisssassssiisssonssismsississiosesasiii 235
Civil DISTUIDANCE ...c..cvoeeeeeeaerennen s it sy s s s o el S s Sa A A aa sV iV 236
Pickets and BOYCOUS.......cccoiieeeeereeerincenesmessiissnissmeivisnsivesimesoiesss i ik ms b e A esea s s s i 237
CLvil UNLESL: ... cssesvusssaissmmansssnsassiiss s ssmasmssyis comemssssisiesioss s et s ssieni o st e s o i esses 237
Critical Condition/Hospital Treatment ........cuussussssssssssssssssiamssmssssssnssasssissassassasssasassansasssase 238
Death of a Student/Staff MemDBET ........ccoiiiiieiciee ettt s s aa s 239
DiSTuptive STUENL «..coeveemiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicie st eassr s n s s b aes 240
EarthQUAKE .....eeoeeieieerie et s e st b e d e e a e s b st erre e 241

Actual EarthqUake. ......ccocuoieiiieieiiceiiiit sttt e sn s s s s 242

After an Earthquake ...........coemreacencee - srmssiomsmemsamsmsis i s BT T TR 243
Explosion or Risk 0f EXPlOSION .....cccociriiiiiiiiiiiiiiciticr s sssnsssnsssessase s ssnsecanssnssnnis 249
Fallen Aircrafl................ it s e s s paon s s e e s ah e - - voe 253
PTG G atuasizonscnivassonvainmsassesassssuassssssasn o dnsm s s s s SoUd S TRaa b m U o O SEaR  E S Te « evee 255

Fire Near SCROOL: ... oo o S S A NSRS 4 s o0 259

Burming CLOthes: ... e s R SRR SSRGS SSRGS RS 259
Food or Water Contamination (SUSPECted)........ccvreereeeieriuienrerierieiisisisesrasissiesnessssonanssns 261
Forced Entry/Theft Of SChool Property......cooioiiiiiiiiiceececeee s veeesrarssenasaes 262



Hamilton Unified School District

Hazardous Material SPill .........cc.cooeie cisimisiimsssmsmimisssms s i esses e S ssinss .
Heat EIMEIBEIICIES .....ooiuvevreeaccreeraaeeseeeserens viiosssismosiiismisssassaimstssidissiissuntin i ssasisesiorissiiis
HOStaZE STTUALION ....eeviiiieiert ettt te st a e ea e s aa s s abas s s b e essesnssesssassasnsensans
Kidnapping Or MisSing StUAENL ......c.ceceeeririeieriieeteerseniessesssessessssasesessessseseessessssssesssssnees
Motor VEIICle Crash.......coou ittt es et es e eb s sa s s s s e snes s s s
Police Activity in the Neighborhood .........ccvireriernenenessceeieeeiae s e e s s sseseenenenes

SEVEIE WEAIIIET «.vvveveeeeee ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaeaeaasasamsnsasseassasas s ssssnssssnnsnneseesanan

LAGHIING ...cioiiinivieianenaananns sneons Ao s st S e AR S SRS iR
Emergency Lockdown Situation—Office Check LiSt......cccorieeiveeieiieiiieeiiciciecciessseseeesesecaecnea
Severe Winds/TOTNAAOES ......cooueeirrieeereeitieeeeeeseseseeeseesaeasesaeessessesssesessaesssesssesssaanssensesasas
SEX OFFBNSE ...ttt ettt saa e eaa s s s s eaeaesseraensens st e asensesesensesssanenean
Spilled BOAily FIUIAS .....cocceieueerieenieseieeeeeeieiestcsaeessesaesaesseeeresresssssesesasssssessensesssrsessssssssssenees
Blood Borne Pathogen Cleanup Kit.......c.coceroerieeeriieesereeie et seeaeseesseesessnessessenns
Student With A GUIL.......coceiieieriireeircteseeeeiesse e esesaesaesseesee s csesaessersessesserssessesseesssssnessesseness
Student Has @ Weapon on Their PerSON ........ocovicciiiciiicieiecieieseeecsieecessessesesessssese s sasaennees
Suicide or Suicide Threat or Attempt ...........cou...... sissrnmwEERSTSTRTR

TEITOTISE ACES «.vveceree o s s v e i S s sees s s ses e s s s s st

Trespasser in Building .......coceeeveeivoeveieeniieieiieecieccree e I UL s
TBUNAMUL ..ottt teee e cneerneesarosnee s s cabiumsssHom N RSO R SV SO A B LGRS 08
Utility L0SS OF FAITUIE .....coviieeieeiiieeteciiieceeti e cre e aet s saeessessesaessessessensessssssessssasensensennnnns
WILA FITES...c.ueriiieneeeiiseetetise et seesas e e saesae s s saassaessenseesaenaeasesseseseasseseessenseraesaeenanessenseesessensan
School Emergency Operations Plan Maintenance..........cccoeeueerereereerresaeseesesserseesessssseessessonsenss
Homeland Security Advisory Recommendations...........co.eeeeeeruerecesieeesieisieesecssesesessasssessessesnnas
Terms and ACIOMYINIS .....ueeuerarrirrirreiesensirasseesesssseesessaseseesseaesaessssessessessessessersessssnsesssensssressesnens
Four Phases of Emergency Response And Crisis Management ............c.coceeeeeeeressneeresseceveneennens
General Information Regarding EMErgencies ........cccoueeeeeeeeveereieiiiiieieiisranemesssssnsssessinsanes
School Administrator’s Emergency Planning Checklist................cooovveeieiviveennececreeieressnennen.
Preventing the Crisis .........ccowecuen consmyumimsmmerevissios S50 s asssssis s s ssioassse
KLY POINLS cusvuvavmnnuminusnsinsnssesisisssisnssses o ssis s s st o e s e s e e oy o
Reunification Procedures musuwssmssmsissisimimisisasiiiissssmamiissiboma i it

Actions by Phases Of Emergency Management..........ccccueeveiveerieriesecsseesesnessesisessserssssessnns

10



Hamilton Unified School District

SB 187: School Safety Plan
Education Code sections 32280-32289
Introduction

Individual schools in districts over 2,500 students must adopt a comprehensive school safety plan
by March 1, 2000, and must review and update the plan by March 1 of every year thereafter.
(Amended Ed. Codes 35294.1 & 35294.6)

Beginning July 1, 2000, each individual school must report on the status of its school safety plan,
including a description of its key elements in the school accountability report card, and must
continue to do so every July thereafter (Amended Ed. Code 35294.6)

The following guideline may be utilized to support the annual review and evaluation of the
individual school safety plan. This guide will also provide a time line and related administrative
tasks to provide a process to ensure compliance with the requirements of Senate Bill 187,
Comprehensive School Safety Plan.

The guideline/checklist has been organized into two parts:

An assessment by the School Safety Planning Committee of the School Site Council, the School
Site Council or equivalent of the school climate in relation to the current status of school crime
committed on campus and at school related functions. Based on this assessment, safety goals will

be set for the upcoming school year.

The annual review and evaluation of the school comprehensive safety plan which is certified by
the members of the School Safety Planning Committee, the School Site Council President, and
the school Principal before being presented to the Board of Trustees for final review and
adoption. This review includes the following mandated components of Senate Bill 187:

Child Abuse reporting procedures
Policies pursuant to Education Code 48915(c) and other school-designated serious acts
which would lead to suspension, expulsion, or mandatory expulsion recommendations
Procedures to notify teachers and counselors of dangerous students
Sexual Harassment Policy

Safe ingress and egress to and from school
Rules and procedures on school discipline in order to create a safe and orderly

environment conducive to learning

Dress Code
Routine and emergency disaster procedures including natural disasters, human created

disasters or power outages.
IMPLEMENTATION OF PLAN

The written plan will be distributed to all departments and will be made available to all staff,
students, parents, and the community to review in the school library and the main offices.

11



10

Hamilton Unified School District

School Safety Planning Committee

The school site council is responsible for developing the school site safety plan or for delegating
the responsibility to a school safety planning committee, Ed. Code 35294.1

The school site safety committee shall be composed of the following members: the principal or
designee, one teacher who is a representative of the recognized certificated employee
organization; one parent/guardian whose child attends the school; one classified employee who is
a representative of the recognized classified employee organization; other members if desired.
(Ed Code 35294.1)

Note: HUSD schools designate the high school site council and elementary school site council to
serve as the site safety committee. Further, the high school site council shall be the controlling
safety committee for the following schools: Ella Barkley High School, HUSD Adult Ed, the
HUSD State Preschool and the Glenn County Office of Education Infant and Toddler Center and
HUSD Community Day School when the school is open. The elementary school site council will
serve as site safety committee for all programs hosted on that campus.

Local law enforcement has been consulted (Ed. Code 39294.1). Other local agencies, such as
health care and emergency services, may be consulted if desired. (Ed Code 39294.2)

Other members of the school or community may provide valuable insights as members of the
School Safety Planning Committee.

Additional members may include:
e arepresentative from the local law enforcement agency
School Resource Officers
Guidance counselor
Special Education Department Chairperson
One or more key community service providers
Student representative(s)
Disciplinary team member
Staff leaders
Additional parent representatives

12



Hamilton Unified School District

Hamilton High School - Graduation Rate & Dropout Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate)-
From HHS SARC

School District State
Indicator
2012-13 | 2013-14 | 2014-15 | 2012-13 | 2013-14 | 2014-15 | 2012-13 | 2013-14 | 2014-15
Dropout Rate l 0.00 [ 0.0 I 0.00 ] 5.50 1.70 | 0.00 | 11.41 ] 11.51 I 10.7!
Graduation l 98.7' ! 100.0 | 100.! l 93.4 | 98.28 I 100.( I 80.4- I 80.95 | 822
Rate
Hamilton High School - Suspensions and Expulsions (from HHS SARC)
School District State
Rate -
2013-14 | 2014-15 | 2015-16 | 2013-14 | 2014-15 | 2015-16 | 2013-14 | 2014-15 | 2015-16
Suspensions | 4.0 | 0.0 I 4.0 | 5.8 ] 3.8 ] 6.9 I 4.4 I 38 ] 37
Expulsions I 0.0 I 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 I 0.1 I 0.1 ] 0.1
Hamilton High School- California Safe School Assessment (From CHKS 2015-16)
Table AS3
Violence and Vicrimization cn School Property, Poset 12 Maonths
Gn!ée'? Gm!geg Grade 11 P&I"

During rhe past 12 months, how many times on scliool

property have you...

bheen pusbed, shoved, slapped, hit, or Kicked by
someone who wasn't just Kidding acouod ?

0O times

1 timae

2t 3 ttmes

-
W Qo)

EUN-

4 or more times

been afraid of being beaten up?

D times
1 tirme

\o

2 to 3 imes

4 or more Haes

‘been in a physical fight?

O tizmes

==} S

1 time

2 to 3 times

4 oF more Umes

been threate ned with harm or injury?

O times

~ 1 time

2 to 3 titnes

4 or more times

been threatened or injured with a weapon (gun.

kmnife ., club, etc.3?
O times

1 timme

2 to 3 tithes

4 or THore umes

o olw/d

kel
-}

" been offered, sold, or given an illegal drug?

0 times
Auame
2 to 3 times

Q ‘ﬁi Dls

(3 |ela|sl

ol

4 or more Limes

13

11



12

Hamilton Unified School District

Hamilton High School
Safety Plan Signature Page

The undersigned members of the Hamilton High School Safety Planning Committee certify that
the requirements for the SB 187 Safety Plan have been met.

Pnncupal Hamilton Hn% gchool

Presndent Sch@l Sife Council

Law Enforeentent Representative

Fire Department Representative

14



Hamilton Unified School District

Annual Safety Goals

The School Safety Planning Committee shall make an assessment of the current status of school
crime committed on campus and at school-related functions and of appropriate strategies and
programs that will provide or maintain a high level of school safety. (Ed. Code 35924.2)
Principals/designees should report annually to site council.

While the School Safety Planning Committee reviews school, district and community crime data
trends such as the California Safe School Assessment, other data can bring value to the
discussions. Such data may include:

e Mental Health Data

e State, District or Site Surveys (such as the Youth Risk Behavior Survey)
e Disciplinary Data

e Community Police Data

Data may be more valuable if disaggregated by gender, age, zip code, ethnicity, etc. Current
trends should be reviewed as well by the February board meeting of each school year.

Based on data analysis, the School Safety Planning Committee identifies one or two safety-
related goals for the next school year as well as the strategies and/or programs that will be used
to meet those goals. The objective is to provide meaningful goals in order to improve the campus

climate.

The goals are reported, with the Safety Plan, to the Board of Trustees and are shared with the
school staff and community.

In order to keep the goals as a safety focus for the school year, it is recommended that at least
three brief meetings be held to review data and progress. The progress can be reported to the
School Site Council, staff, parent groups and the Board of Trustees.

The year-end assessment should be completed in November of each year and reported upon.

15 13



91

L10T/TT/T0 preoq [00yos 0} pajrodar pue pajepdn

.

JUSWUOMAUS FUTUIES] pue SUIYOEd) 9Jes & popIAoid dIe SISqUISW fJe)s pPue SJUSPMNIS [[V
TH# 180D

"SONIATIOR PaJR[aI [0OYOS WIOI]
pue 0} SUIOALT] USYM PUE ‘[00YOS WIOL} PUE 0} FUI[IARI) UM TOOYOS JE S[IYA SINOIS PUB AJES SIE SJUSPNIS [[V

[# 180D

ug[q UONOV [007IS S §[00YdS YSIH uo)ruey
9 IUUIO)) S[O0YIS dJeS
1OLISI(] [00YDS PIYIU[) UOIIUIEE]

10LSI(T [00YOS PILTU() UOI[IUIEH

14



L1

L10T/ZT/T0 :Preoq [ooyos 0} paptodoar pue parepdn)

"90UR)SISSE JO PASU Ul IO PAUSILAIY) [99] Aoy} USYM
puodsax 0} 91qe 99 03 90e[d Ut so13s1RNS SABY [[IM [00YDS YSTH UOIIEY SuIpusne SJUspmS 7 9A103[qQ0

*00uasaxd [ejuared pue Jjels JUSWIOOIOJUS MEB] O[QISTA SABT] [[EYS [00YDS YSIH UOI[IUIRY : [ 9A102[qQ)

(1ooyds ay Jo uonipuod pue Furas [eorsAyd oy )
TDWUONAUY [BOISAYJ S, [00YDS Y],

"SOI)IAIIOR PIIR[A1 [00YDS WIOI} pue 0} SUI[OARI] USYM pur
‘[00Y0s WOl pue 0} SUI[SALI} USYM [OOYOS 18 S[TYM JINOJS PUE LS OIk SJUSPNIS [V ] [20D)

uE[d UONDV [00TS dJES S J00YdS YSIH uoruLy
10WISI( [OOYOS PO UONIWRE]

15



81

uoneNSIUIpy ‘sjuored
sosuodsoy | 1omsy ‘Juouneda(g pue Jjels ‘syuapnys Jo A19Jes 1) 0} SJeax) AIIUNWwod
"1do 211 A1) uornenIg a11,] A1) uojjTe] [enusjod 01 Suipuodsal ur UOTLNSIUIUIPE JOLISIP PUB
uoiwey ‘0SDO [enpIATpug Jquowedrojuy Me] | ‘Juowreda( 911 A1) uoj el (QSDD) JUSWNIIONUD
‘UONRISIUTWIPY 9IS | JO UOLBN[RAY MB[ TeO0] Y1IM K9S0 NIOM [[eys [00Y0S ST uoliuey
. Juawreda(g
2114 K1) uoj IRy
v es JuowodIojuUy
QOUBUSIUIRIA] JOLISI(] MU (So10I[0d ‘SINOY [OOYDS
{103euriy JUR[ Buuo)Tuo pieog uoueonpy | 191 pue JuLINp 9)IS J0OYDS Y} 9INOIS 0} saINPadoid pue
» | ‘UOnRNSIUIWPY 9IS Areq Jo pieog v sot[od pIeoq juowd[dwil [[eys [0oyog YSIH] Uoj[IueE]
” o a11 K31D yuaunueda(q 211, A1) "STRIOIIJO JOLNSIP puR S91OUITe AJTUNUIUIOD
uoyrueH {OSHH sepuady uoite ‘0SsDD | ‘syusred da(q 211 L11) uojTwRH (OSDD) JUAWIIIOJUD
’ ‘uoneNSIUTWPY ‘s3unooN ‘{uonensSwIWpy ME] [800] 0] SUOTJRIIAUL SPNJOUI pue sSunoow
10LISI(J pue [00YOS Josaury | 3011SIT pue [00YOS Aj9yes 1eIn3a1 1onpuod [Jeys [00yoS Y31 uoljIwe
jusmedaq ‘[ooyos
o114 A1) UO)[TWRE] IO} puE 0} 9JNOI US dIk SJUSPNIS YoTyM SuLmnp sowin [[e
uerd jo ‘dHD (0SHD) 1 9]qISIA 9q 03 sjuared pue ‘szaquiow Jye1s SHH “1doq
durod | uonejuswoydun JUSUIdDIOJUY ME] ouwasad | sjuared geIs (dHD a1 A1) uojiel (OSDD) JUSUIIOIOFUD ME] [80]
-uQ W | ‘uonenswiwpy oNg JIqISIA JuouIddIOJU Me] 93BIN0OUD [[IM UOTJRNSTUTIPE [00YOS YSIH UOIIWRE
Neq BLIJLID $32aN0SNY dag uonoy
puy e 1e)s d[qIsuodsay] sopaed | UONEPIEA

"oouosald [ejuared pue Jyels JUSW0IONUS ME] S[qISTA SABY [[BYS [00UdS YSIH UoIuey :| 2A10a[qO

"SONIATIOL PIJR[AI [00YDS WOL] Pue 0} SUI[SARI) USYM PUY

‘[00yds WOy pue 0} SUI[IALI} USYM ‘[00UDS 18 S[IYM OINOIS PUR JJes dIe SJUSPNIS [[V ] [20D

B[4 UOTOY [00YdS dJeS §,[007dS YSIf] uojruey

JOLISKT [00YOS PATJIU() UOI KWL

16



61
"SUILIBI] JO SAIONPUOD I0WI PUR
Koaains IoJes [0S dU} dXeW 0 PAPIIU ST JBYM 0} SpIe3ol ul
99Oy [00YDS |  JO S}nSaI pue juswnysul | suoturdo Iy JI01[0S 0} SJUSPNIS [00YOS YSTH UOITWRE]
» » | 9JeS ‘UONBNSIUIUPY uonnqrasiq Aaams SHD 0} PIINQGLUSIP 9q [[IM AoAING SPIY AYNEaH Y,
(0SOD) "STOOYDS JOLISIP-UOU SUIAJOATL 1OI[JU0D 10J (OSDD)
(0soD) sjudpIOUl JUSWISDIOJUY | SAMUASE JUSUIIDIOIUS AMe] [BD0] JO/PUR ‘SUOTIRISIUTWIPE
JUSWIOOIOJUY ME] Suuoyio] | meT ‘uonensmuIMIpe [00Y9s JOT)0 wiogJ douer)sisse 93e3uo [[im pue
" » | UOTENSUTWIPY 9118 Jo proooy S[00Yos Y10 SIUSPNIS YIIM JIOM [[IM JJeIS [00UDS YSTH uol[Twel]
"PIFJuUod suInusg
© OJUI 91B[BISI P[NOJ Jetj} suonenyis 1o swojqoid
S8 jyels e SI0[9sUNO)) renusjod Aue a1eys pue 0} J[el ULd A9Y) OYM IOqUISW
8uro3 UOTIROTUNUITIO) ‘uouRNSUIWIPY | JJeIS JNpe U AJIuspi 03 pageInoous aq I0/pue AJIuapl
-uQ ' saokordwry 911§ Ien3oy | ong JyeIs Kinoeyg 01 9[qe 9q [[IM [00YdS YSIH UO)[TWRH Je sjuspnis [V
"USIPTIYO 19T} Yiim
SI01R)ITIOR,] S[OT)IE Y]} SSNOSIP 0] PAYSE 9q [[IM SIUSIRJ "I} ©
‘s10[9sUN0)) | 01 puodsal 03 sdojs o) FuruIpINO Jooqpuey s, [00YdS Y}
[enuuy » | UOTBISTUTWIPY 9IS yoogqpueH | ‘UOIENSIUTWPY 9IS ur oponae ue 9oe(d (1M JJeIs s Jooyds YSIH uorwe
"SjuapnIs
uerd Jo 91} 03 sa1321e1)S 9SO} OB} 0} Pasn aq (1M Aep
gurog | uoneyudwoduur ysney Jyels ‘s1opsuno) | [00yds 9y} Jo uoniod y "SIOqUIDW JJeIS [[e 03 so1391ens
-uQ v Jeis [ooyos $9139)eNIS | ‘UOTIBXSTUTUPY 9IS op1Aoid [[1M UOTJRNSTUTWIPE §,[00Y0S YT uoiue
9eq BLIDILLD) SO0INOSAY doig uonoy
pug ore( MeIS | o[qisuodsoy] sonued UOTIBPI[EA
"9OURISISSE JO

P39U U 10 P3UILeaIY) [99] A9} USYM puodsal 0} 1qe oq 0} 90r[d Ul S9159781s 9ARY [[IM [00YdS YSIH UoITWEH SuIpus)e sJuapnl§ 7 9AndalqQ)

JOLISIC] [00YOS PILTU() UOYTUIE]]

17




0¢

L10T/TZ/c0 :preoq [0oyos 0} paptodar pue poyepdn)

"Touuew sAnoddns ‘Suries v ur 10y yoes
UM JOBISIUL 0 SJUSPNYS pue S)[Npe 10§ PIEPULIS B $19S [00UDS YSIH U0 TWel :Z 9A109[qO

*IOTABY9(q [BIOOS-T)UL
NqIyxs syuapnys udym jutod o[qissod 1sa11IE9 S} 18 SUSAISIUL
0} $91397e1}S 9ATOIYJS Sey [00YdS YSIH UolIuey : | 9A10[q0

(Tooyds ayj Jo uonpuod pue Jumyss [eorsAyd oy )
jusuIuoLIAUy [eIISAYJ S, [0S YL,

JUSWIUOIIAUS FUTUILd] pue SUIYIE} 9Jes € paplaoid oI SIOQUISUI JJ)S PUR SJUSPNIS [[V 7 [EOD)

ug|d UondV [007DS d§uS S [00YIS YSIH uoyuey

1OLSK( [00Y9S POTJIU() UOI IR

18



19

|4
(‘puane 03 pageimooud
syuapmys/syuared 9q [[m Juared pue quopnys oy yuouneda(]
‘Is13o10yohsd uonesnpy [ewadg 9y} Jo JPquIDW YY) "I0[osUNod
A11eoA | [oOUDs {SI0[OSUNOD © pue ‘(s)1oyors) ‘10jensturpe ‘sidojoyolsd
991M] JSBI] JB SWea YIeoH [BIUSIN © 9pnoul [[eys wed} oy, ‘epuaTe oy} uo paoerd
1SIB0[0Y9ASJ | UONUSAIIU] JUSPNIS {s1019suno0) SHH 9q [[eys S101ARY2q dAndepe[ew Y)Im SJUOpNIS
[00Y9S {SI0[oSUNO)) MOUAI {so)nuT ‘{uonenSIUIpPY 'SBUnEAIA (1SS) Wwea ], Aptus Juapnis pa[npayos
» | UOHRNSIUIUIPY IS pue sepusly 1SS JJe1S SHH Apre[n3ar poy [[eys [00yoS YSTH UOHTWEH
{s10[9sun0) SHH "SIOTABYDQ 9591} ssIppe 0} sa1darens Surdojoaap
S[RLI9JO1/SQOUIIJUOD ‘UonBNSIUTWIPY | Pue SIOIARYLQ dAndeperew SuiAjiuapt ur sjuoied
» yuered yo requInN Je1S SHH [IIM SIOM [[eys JJe1S §,[00Y0S YSIH Uoj[Iweq
"S[oOYOS
SIO[ASUN0d Ul I0IABYDQ [BIO0S-T)UR YJIM SUI[BIp UI S139)R1)S
SHH ‘Bei1S SHH s10[9suno) SHH 9A1D9Y9 SuiAjdde pue s10398] JSLI OTWUSPRIL
‘uonensUIpPY 9IS ‘uoneNSTUIWIPY SurAJnusp1 uo sa0uaI9Ju0d/sdoysIoM pudIe
" " sdoyssjrom pue jye1s SHH 01 JJe1s 288In0dUd [[BYS [00Y2S YSI UoituRy
e Surpusyie Jjels Juowpredoq
SHH ‘sIo[asuno)) o114 A11D) uojjruey "C1-6 S9peI3 Ul JOTABYD( [BIO0S-TJUE SSAIppe
” {UONEBISTUIWPY NS UOTRIUSWNIO(] ‘wes) TYVINS | 183 so1801e1)S PAseq-UoIeasal 9ATI00]JO PaLjuapI
[[edH | ‘TeLLIeN paje[duwio) -0S0D ‘WIEH Jye1s 01 opiaoid [[eys [00YDS YSTH UOYTwEH
[BIUSN AJuno)) [eIURIA A1uno)
uerd jo uus[D ‘{0SOD UU9[D)-SIOTAIIS "S9O1AIDS BuIosunod apiroid ues jey)
8urod | vonejuswordun TuoneNSIUIWPY K1030011(] U)[eay [eludul 10§ $a1OUage [00] JO UOTJEULIOJUI SUBIpIeng/s1uoted
-uQ w 's10[9sUNO)) pajerdwo) | ojul 10vIUOD (8O0 03 ap1ao1d [reys [ooyos YST uoiTweL]
ored $90IN0SY doig ooy
puyg oje 1e1S | o[qisuodsoy sonied | BLOIL) UOHEPI[BA

*IOIARYq [RIO0S-TIUE JIQIYXD SJUSPNIS UM JuIod

9]q1ssod ISII[IBd Y} 18 SUIAINUL 0] SAITAILIIS OAT)ISII Sy [00YdS YIIH UOHIWE] : [ 9A1AIqO

JUSUIUOIIAUS SUTLIBI] pue FUI|ors) ofes © popIAoid 1 SIOQUISUI JJels puB SIUIPNIS [[V ¢ [60D

ue[d UONIY [00YIS e SJ00YdS YSIH uojruey

WLISI( [00Y0S PIYIU[) UOYTweH



(A4

SIO[ASuno)) 3es
UI[ESH [BJUSJA | pUR ‘UNUpY SHH “1do( yesHq 9promns Jo Aiqrssod oy passnosIp
Ajuno)) uus[H JeIS SHH | [RIUSIA AJUno)) uudn Sey Juapnys © JBY) I0qUIOW Jjels € 0} paytodax
‘uonenSUIWpY -S[RLI9JY $1S130]0Y9ASJ [00YOS ST 31 UaYM 3s130[0yoAsd [00YDs a1} 10 IO[9SUN0D
» » €IS SHH [eNpIATPU] 1da(q Joesunoy 9} J9BIUOD [[BYS JJBIS S [00YDS YSIH Uoj[IueH
SIO[OSUNo))
SHH ‘uoneysmumupy
‘uoneqolid
Auno)) uuan
jusuntedog Juounedaq air,]
uerd jo o114 A11) uolTwey A1) wojruey ‘wea, ‘Anianoe Sued Aue ur poA[oAUL
8uro3 | uonejuswoydurn uowedIojuUg MeT | suonesynuap] | LIVIAS pue (0SHD) a1e 10 diysisquisw Sued ‘woneroosse Jued Aeidsip
-uQ W | ‘uonensmiwupy 91s [enpIAIPUT JUSWIAOIOJU MBT OyM SJuapMIs AJQuapi [[eYS [00yoS YSIH uojjIwef]
aeq BLIONI) S90IN0SOY doig uonoy
pug e ueIS | o1qisuodssy sonaed uonepIeA
("juo0d)

~I01ARYRq [e100S-TUE JIGIYXd SIUSPMIS UM Jutod 9]qIssod ISII[IEd oY) 18 SUIAIIUL 01 SIIFIIRIIS DATOJJR Sty [00ydS YSIH uoiIwey :| 9A109lqQ

JOWSI(] [00Y0S POYIUL) UONIUIBE]

20



21

€c
9OUIJUOD
Je1s SOI[QUIASSY Ioyoesy/juared “JUSUIUOIIAUL 9A1Isod B
SHH :[ouno)) 931S ‘asnoy uadQ SOI[qUIASSY | Ul 193080) SIdqUIdWI JJB)s pue sjudred ‘sjuopnis SuLiq
- » | ‘UOTENSTUTWPY NS | {[00yoS 03-3oeg SIYSIN JuoIRd | JBY) SIUDAS [enUUR PIOY [[BYS [00YOS YSIH UOoI[TWRE]
SI0JeNSTUTPY sjurejduoo SWwio}sAs "SIOpBI|
9IS SI0[ASUNO)) pam)sidal UonedIuNWwo)) Aunuwuod pue syuspnys ‘syuared o sjeo suoyd
" ” ‘Ie1s SHH Jo sp1009y Junsixyg uinya1 Apydwoad [[eys Jjels s,Jooyos YSIy uoiruueyy
SIIAIAS uoneNSIUIWpPY
o[qe[IeAR UI {SIO[OSUNO0d "SIOIFUOD
siopsuno) pue | uopedionied jo ‘oury suoyd | oAj0s21 pue swo[qoid sA[0s 03 S[IDs syuaIed pue ‘JJels
" » | UOTIRNSIUTWIPY 911§ | UOTBIUOWNOO(] SIsu) JJeis SHH ‘syusptys 03 9p1Aoid [[eys [00yoS YITH Uo)[TuIel]
SIOJRISIUTWIPY |  UOHEBIUSWINOOP "SuId[qoId [BI00S JO OTWOPEIL JIQIYX
‘s10[95UNOD) SHMYAY | uoueInSIUIWPY pue 0} surdaq juapnis & UsyMm suripiens,syuaied AJrjou
m ” ‘Je1s SHH ‘s301 Aynoeg ‘sI0[oSUNO)) ‘IS | [[BUS SIO[SUNOS puB SIdYILI] [00YOS YSIH UoiIel]
O1NH uotjedonied | ‘UONENSIUNIPY OIS (O7INH "9'1) seantuo) AIOSIAPY JOIISIJ
‘uonjensIUIWPY JaIRd | {[IOUN0) 931 [00YOS oY) pue ‘[PUNO) MK [00YdS I uo djediored
" " AMNS/NLISI Jo junowry Juopusuuddng | 03 syudred (e 95eIN00US [[BYS [00YDS YSIH UOI[IWEBE]
[IOUNOJ | SIIUNJOA PUR "SIO9IUN[OA JUDIB]
AS ‘PeIs pue JUSWIDA[OAU] ‘sqnD 19315009 "SOIIATIOR POIB[AI-[OOYDS J0J J09)UNJOA

MITADY » | UOLROSIUTWPY IS | judred Jojuapxy | ‘sSuneojy [ouno)) 01 syuared 9FeInooud [[eyS [00YOS YSTE UOITWEY
[enuuy [rouno) IS DNSGIM
pue uepd jo oNg ¢ J0[osuno) $I01I9[SMAN] JudIe "UDIP[IYO 1191} JO UOTIBONPA I} UT PAAJOAUL
3urod | uonejuowoduur ‘JvIS SHH payuowarduir ‘sasse[o Junuased A1oAnpeoad oq 0y sueipieng;syuared 98vinoous
-uQ WV | ‘uonensSwuIwpy g $91391811S pazosuods 10msi(q 0} sa13a1e1s dojaAap [[eys [00yoS Y31 uoiTwey
oleq CLIOILD) S90IN0SAY deois uonoy
pug e Melg | d[qIsuodsay soned uoneprjeA

“Iouuew dAnI0ddns FULIES © UL ISY)0 Y98 YIM J0RISIUL O) SJUSPNIS PUE S)NPE 10 PIEPUEIS € S198 [00U0S YSIH UOIIWE] g 9ANIq0

JOLSI( [00YOS PO UOITWEH



22

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SB 187 COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
SAFETY PLAN

For Hamilton Elementary School
277 Capay Avenue
Hamilton City, CA 95951

Sites also included in this plan:
Hamilton State Preschool
Hamilton Special Education



Hamilton Unified School District

PREFACE TO SITE SAFETY PLANS:

The state template requires multiple levels of assignments of staff when a disaster occurs. In
larger districts, the multiple layers of committees are functional and important. The reality of
smaller districts is that we lack the sheer numbers of personnel to accomplish every committee
assignment detailed in the state template. Hamilton Unified School District (HUSD) has
designed a modified version of the Incident Command System (ICS) in accordance with the
National Emergency Management System known as “NEMS.”

The command structure and assignments are as follows for HUSD:

INCIDENT COMMANDER District Superintendent

ASSISTANT INCIDENT COMMANDER | A site Administrator whose school is not
involved in the disaster

INCIDENT COMMAND POST District Executive Assistant

ASSISTANT

DISTRICT PERSONNEL Confidential Payroll and Personnel

COORDINATOR Specialist

SITE COORDINATOR A site Administrator

FINANCIAL COORDINATOR Chief Business Official assisted by
District Purchasing Agent

MAINTENANCE, OPERATIONS Director of Maintenance, Operations and

AND TRANSPORTATION Transportation and staff

FOOD SERVICE Director of Nutrition and Child Welfare
and staff

REUNIFICATION COORDINATOR Site Administrative
Assistance/Attendance Clerk

STUDENT RETENTION AND All Classroom Teachers

SUPERVISION

PARENT UNIFICATION District TOSA’s not assigned to

COORDINATORS classroom supervision, Yard Duty and
Instructional aids.

SOCIAL AND EMOTIONAL SUPPORT District Dean of Students/District
Counselors, Glenn County Mental
Health.

SEARCH AND RESCUE Hamilton City Fire Department and
Glenn County Sheriff’s Office

TRAFFIC CONTROL California Highway Patrol/Glenn County
Sheriff’s Office

OTHER AGENCY State and County Office of Emergency

4

23



24

Hamilton Unified School District

Services, Red Cross Service
Organization and volunteers if available.

Duties of each assignment:

INCIDENT COMMANDER

To coordinate the incident in cooperation
with the ICS structure alongside
responding and allied agencies (Law
Enforcement, Fire other emergency and
support services). To Serve as Public
Information Officer (P1O)

ASSISTANT INCIDENT COMMANDER

To Assist the Incident Commander in the
Incident Command Center or serve as IC
in the absences of the Superintendent.

INCIDENT COMMAND POST
ASSISTANT

To record the minutes of the incident and
keep records of the agency and allied
agency personnel assigned to the
incident. To serve as PIO if necessary.

DISTRICT PERSONNEL
COORDINATOR

To access personnel records and service
as assistant Incident Command Post
Assistant.

SITE COORDINATOR

To coordinate student evacuations, set up
emergency shelter or reunification sites,
coordinate and direct staff and efforts to
shelter in place or evacuate if necessary.
Coordinate social emotional support and
parent holding and reunification process.

FINANCIAL COORDINATOR

To coordinate financial resources and
logistical needs are meet during any
incident. Assist Director of Maintenance,
Operations and Transportation with
student evacuation, building repair or
support of food service department.

MAINTENANCE, OPERATIONS

Coordinate evacuation, building

AND TRANSPORTATION gas/services in an emergency, assist with
logistics of any emergency situation.
FOOD SERVICE Coordinate food service for students/staff

in the event of a prolonged need to house
students or staff due to an unforeseen
emergency.

REUNIFICATION COORDINATOR

Coordinate the verification of all
students. Insure that student records are
readily available for evacuation and
reunification processes. Insure that
forms for unification housed in Appendix
4 and 5 of the site safety plan are copied
and in a backpack ready for transport




Hamilton Unified School District

upon order of evacuation from a site.
Insure that students are only released to
parents or guardians as listed on the
individual student emergency cards.

STUDENT RETENTION AND Teachers are to remain with their

SUPERVISION assigned students and follow the
direction of the Incident Commander and
Site Coordinator.

PARENT UNIFICATION District Teachers On Special Assignment

COORDINATORS (TOSA) will locate the parent gathering

location and reunification site. The
TOSA’s will coordinate with the student
reunification coordinator to insure the
process of reuniting students with parents
or guardians listed on the emergency
cards.

SOCIAL AND EMOTIONAL SUPPORT

The Dean of Students/District Counselors
will create a room for parents who have
students who are known to be Injured or
deceased. The Counselors will
coordinate allied agency services and
support for the victims and families.

SEARCH AND RESCUE

Command staff will coordinate site for
fire/rescue needs and will be responsible
for overall disaster Coordination of the
scene.

TRAFFIC CONTROL

Under the direction of the Office of
Emergencies Services direct traffic or
assist with disaster relief as directed by
command staff from the Fire or SO
Departments.

OTHER AGENCY

Coordinate support as directed from the
command staff of the Fire or SO
Departments

25



26

Hamilton Unified School District

Contents
Sb 187: School Safety Plan...........ccooueeieenecnen.e cgssivesissivesntisi e oot soss o insmos fvsaiissinsasss essnssien 11
School Safety Planning CommIttee ...........eeieeieriiiriuiirieciiesae s eeceiee e essesaeesaessaesaeeaessaesaaesnaeaas 12
Hamilton Elementary Safety Plan Signature Page.........cccccoueeeiceiiiceciiiecrieeeeeeciessecssesinseviseennens 19
Annual Safety GOals ........cccereereeee isimsmsimmnsasssmoi s s s AT SRR 16
Goal #1 All Students Are Safe and Secure While At School, When Traveling, To and From
School and When Traveling To and From School Related Activities... e e e W |
Goal #2 All Students And Staff Members Are Provided A Safe Teachlng And Learmng
ENVITONINENL. ... . cossnsmsmsnussmusssssmssinerensionmisismssssiass it e s 17
PrOMIUIGALION ... ettt sant e see et a et st rae e e s saasa e e saaessesaesaassaesaesansensessasessessesassaeneesnness 27
Emergency Management RESOIULION ......cc.eieuerirertiiiriinirrterie ettt evetsesaseesaeaese e sneseesassassanns 29
Emergency Letter To Parents/Guardians..........ccceceveeieeieeresiiseseceeeseecaeesessessessasssssssessssessssnses 30
Legal Requirements Legal Requirements: Authorities And References.........ccccccvvevvcreereecnnennen. 32
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures...................... snsssimaiminasiirmipasimssisssisissmvi s 39
Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting .. aissmmaimmsvmsanninmsarivais 41
Suspension/Expulsion PolCY isaanisisimwsississpissesssiosissssvessnsisssssasisivisssssssassossdosisssodsvasisssnsohe 52
Suspension and Expulsion/DUue PTOCESS .......c..c.coirerreiieiiiiiienresicinieiae e saesrneseseeesee s e ene e 53
Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students w/Disabilities) .........ccccecivierenerneerenennn 81
Dangerous Student NOtfICAtION............cosmssniesisoiismsistsssimimimmvaminsismssiesabismissoiiiins 91
Sexual HarasSImMent  .o..cccceerieinieiriieeiietesesie e siese e st see e s saesssassessbeeaessssaneesseennasaaebaesnsessssaanas 96
Nondiscrimination/HaraSSImMENL........cccceccrverireererenririrenertrereseestesessessassessessassessessssseesssssessseraens 101
Hate Crime REPOTTINE ......ieeiiieiieiieiie ettt se et s se s eraa s cstaaesasessssesaseaaeeneesnaassnessnssssnnassnses 121
Hate-Motivated BERAVIOT.......c..ccoiiiiveriiiiieiesesenie st se e see s e s sassaaseessessasasneesnssassarassenns 122
Complaints Concerning District EMPIOYEES.......ccvecuerieeierieeiieeeceecticteeieeresscesaessee s sae e saens 125
Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP).......cocurueniieireaeiesiresisiesserssesssesseraasssesssesasssssssssssssasassasas 129
Hate Crime Reporting FOIM .......cccuioo e catidesssonivss s asss i i s siisiasiie e eeeoeesensse 137
Bullying, Cyber-Bullying, Cyber-Crime suamaasvrasnsssssivnsisniovaapissiusssassises 140
Conduct... e e R e SR 141
Dress Code... R SRR SR S A e SRR e 1 4T
Board Pohcy And Administrative Regulation 5132 .......cccccoveviieirircieieeeceeeeeee e 147
Safe INGress and EGIESS .....ccueoveiieeririirieietee sttt ettt sne e e s e seesanes 148
National Incident Management System (INIIMS)........ccueceeieeeiieeiieeiiereieeeerere e eeresesesseesneeeanens 149
Standardized Emergency Management SyStem (SEMS) ....couevvueriueiiierenrerserensisesseesseessessesssssenes 149
7



Hamilton Unified School District

NIms Purpose and SCOPE ......coeeureerirrtreierre ettt et et se e s eeen e seens 150
Sems PUrpose and SCOPE .....ceovveeiieeiiiiiiecreecteecteeeieee e ree s e e sse e rasnee e easoseaeseeeeseeennnesneenas 150
Sems and SCHOOLS ..vcvieiiirirtiieeeetre ettt sttt en e sttt s et s e s 153
Incident Command System (IC8)........cceecerrerereemisiomomsassiisimiasissaasivesmismmsssissisisisamssssmmessisoss 153
Emergency Phases General Information Regarding Emergencies .........cocceveeceeverrveneneencreennne. 158
School Emergency Response Teamthe School Emergency Response Team (Sert).................... 161
The Roles of The Members of The School Emergency Response Team ..........covveerivvesierernanne 163
CoMMANA TEAIM......uriceeeeieietretecteteeee et st e st e e sreste s et st e e e st saeeesessne e e e e erbae st eeanesenneneeanen 163
OPETations TEAIML.....cc..oiiiiiiiieieereeiessereerae e et e s rrae st eeasesa e srbas s aesabesebaas s s e st ssbanesrsssassasaes 165
Planning TEAIM .......uceeuiieiueeieeiieeeaeiseesesaaesseessseaessseessaesessessssesssssssssssansssnessaessssessssessssessnsassanes 171
LOZISEICS TOAIML. . .euiieiirrieeiiieniercrieieeesseeeeseesrressestaeessssaseesenaessnessnsesessanesessneseseessesnesasssnsneesnens 172
Finance And Administrative TEeAM . ......ccevureiieriririeeceeee ettt st st eaeeer s vesaeeaee 173
Incident Command System Team ROSIEL «....ccevvuiierciierieeriiirniereeeseseseesertessnesesseenesenssssessnsns 174
BUdAy SYStEIM ...ceeiiiiiireecietree ettt st et aeaeba e e e e e na e e nneenaan 180
Emergency SiZRals................cwisssasanissismsiimsisiimss s ieresissessobidasiiiiasiosss sesnessneassasassasrasnassssase 181
ATt Cards .........ousuasausnsivsssssaiinsssos sy e omasmses e e e e RS 182
EMergency Maps aacissosassonsiesssonsiesss et ssionssssmbes s aiessvonsasieiss b s4sssssstissse s sans svarssness 183
EVACUALIONS ... veveieeeecre ettt e et ce et e e e s ma e ese s s meeeme e s eaeeeraeerae e saneseeesmeeenseeenseesmnanennens 187
Evacuation Procedures for Teachers:........ccueviieiirieniieniieieeeeececee ettt 188
Evacuation of Disabled StUdents .........cccorierieeiieniieeeieceie et seasneesee e 190
Evacuation of Wheelchair-Confined IndividualS.........cocceeveeeeniinieniiiieeeercee e 191
Emergency ReSPONSE SUPPIIES ....c.veiriecierriierreieeieireeenitereseeseseee s et e reaessenns s sresennsssansasssaesses 193
Food And Water ManageImient..........cccveerriierrerererenereretraseesssesssesssnssansesssesssasasasessasasssessssessenenes 200
Water Management.......... cuussss s cuss i ilisissiims i anisairaimiiiiions 200
Human Water REQUITEIMENLS......ccciiiiiiiieieeiiee ittt se s se st ba s sbe s s saassssene s 200
Controlling Water USE........ccvveccrerencrinerricerasnsesnesssensonns s sosssibssssiossisasssebiasssinssssssinsns s isseassitos 201

Food And Meal Management imssisisssesisiimniimmsssmsrimimmsassminasamsimseiasssssioe 202
CommUNICALION TOOLS......oeceeei e ivmisssnivstses bbb s TR e s S 204
NON-EMergencies — 31 1F ..o iiiiieirienieeec s ss s seae s s see s e e sseesmsesseassssncensanse 200
RAAIO STALIOMIS ..c.eeeiieieiieet ettt sttt s b e b s s s b e e e e s bas b e s s e be e e s sbessaeesans 207
Crisis Communication GUIACIINES .......cccuerirrierieeerieeiretesisesresseseassesssesssessessessssessesssasssessssesans 208

Emergency Alert System (Eas).......ccooueeriiiiicieiiienicnnceeceeieesiseieeseessaessesnessssesssessnacenes 210
Incident Response Procedures i .isaicarssesisssssimsassssssssssspessssssposmassssssssvssassssosrassisanisssvimosssinin 2 1 1

AITDOTNIE CONMLATIIIIIAIIES ...y ue e eeeeeiessaenaeesssmessssssarssssssasessnansssssasssssssssmssssssssssssnssssssnnnssesssnnsesnne 212

27



28

Hamilton Unified School District

Armed Intruder/Hostage Situation/Shots Fired .........ccccoeeeeiriiieirieiieseeescissescesiesssesseeneenes
ASSAUL....ee ettt et es e aa e b e e e aaeeas e bt e s ser st ense s e enreeaseenraans
Assault on Staff Member By Student ........ccoocverieeiriiieeee et et r e eseaeene e eee e
Biochemical or Chemical Release ... isaiimmsmssnossomscvsiinitisssis s visssmsissassasmassssssssssmests
Radiation ACCIAENL..........courevueereenn idisssssinsssusssnssnsnshsosioiissssssinssosmssssssvetsnossodasasamaTen e raeaneesons
BOIMD THICALS.......cvcruecuecrionserrisesens s ieiimassiiss o e esii s sssn s oS AR AN USSR oo o nenersense
Device FOUNU.........ccccnierecnmnensceseeoiossanssonesessstesanssmsso o Sl e s v e S0
Letter/Package Bomb or Mailed Hazardous SUbStance...........ccoeeeruerereiiiiecsiniisscsinsisseescsnanns

Bomb Threat Information FOM.........ccouviiiiiicieeeeecce et scas e esaserasssesesseesanes

Bomb Threat RepOrt FOIM.... ..ot eeaaeessssasese s sss s caas s snsssss s esassrneen
BUS ACCIAENLS ...ttt st a e s ssaesaassbasss e saessnsesaesaesssesasersssnsssrsessnssssanss
Child ADUSE REPOTLINE ....eeeeeveerieieieeriesseaeeeeetesse e e ssssssacessessessaesessssessesessensensesersssssssesenns
Child Abuse and Neglect INdiCatOTS ......cc.cvruirerererieeeeaeeee e e e s eaeeaeeeeseesaeeaereeaaesnenns

Legal Definitions/References smisssmismmnnmisamisnnsimmmassmissas il

How to Report Child AbUSe. . usisssissssssississississssmssviissisiiisiisisismusnsiamasiiiseinieaie
Child Does Not Arrive HOME .. cuisnsiinssisssimivmsvevevssvivsssssosibisssssisessseivisessssivassssssnsoss

Critical Condition/Hospital TreatmMent .........cccceveereerereeririeieiserseriecssiasssessesssssssssssesssssssessssaans
Death of a Student/Staff MemDbET ........cccoiiiiiiiiiecticiceetceceereee vt s s eas s b s e eaaens
DISTUPIVE STUAENL ..ottt sttt esaesa e e s e aeeaseaae s e e aesnsrseeneennennens
EartDQUAKE ....cc.coeeieiieiee ettt ea st s st a e s s e s e s ennaas

Actual Earthquake...........ccoemermrcreereen iiisimmmsmmima s aiissss st

After an Earthquake............ccoccorconem it e
Explosion or Risk of EXPlOSIOn..................issssssesssssssissssissssisssssosvomsssssnmsssssisonshonsdossissnssnivioss

Fallen Aircraft........... csnsmananmsssaimssmsisnianimeiams i srivein s miasse

Fire Near SChool: .........ooc i suimsmmisisimssssiusisiisssessosisssiiimvesmis i i s
BUurning ClOthes: .........c.cooruoeeee sommmmmumenassinsimossessiasussmm s s s s s e
Food or Water Contamination (SUSPECted).......cveuiieiieiierieireiiiseeriiiersesiessieseisaesseseesnessesseens
Forced Entry/Theft Of School PrOPerty........covceeiriiiieiiecieiecieecveeereeeeee e e s aeen s



Hamilton Unified School District

Hazardous Material SPill ......cccccceiiiiiiiiiiieniineninis e sseesseesessssssssssssnsssssssessessssassassanes
Heat EMErZencies ..........ccooeece e eoee somsodin sty oosstinmmnss ms st et s i s i R R s
Hostage SHUation ...........cccereereeveeern Goimissimgiasisses o s iiiaees ione Sy e riaieasausssasuiagida oo
Kidnapping Or Missing Student .....cumaiassssismnsisssismmsiisessiitssminmsissmmaissssssisivasn
Motor Vehicle Crash...............aimsissivssssisissimimsiiaesiiismssmevsiorn toms et ke s tassaiistii
Police Activity in the Neighborhood ........msmnnmmmmsemsninssminmicsisssemsssisisssi .
SEVELE WEALNET .......c.ueiiceiiiicreeeriieenenc oo sinsbasasosssssies soessss a5 v S o A S R S SR
FIOOMING .......ooieeenueeeerneenaennenoisissssnssninseniosissssisessssaiaiasisss el ae s e s oS i Nb e s ows 56
HUITICAIES ... oo emcen e e eoeeoe bbsssonsiminsssaspins shsmss i casdo ks s s ohs s SRR R AR aa s s s s e R s srssns
5T 1T 411 LSO E OO URR PP R
Emergency Lockdown Situation—Office Check List .......ccoooiciiiniiiienrinninniiinciiriersessesencnas
Severe Winds/TOIMAGOES .......cc.ciiuireirieriirteistesseerasesssseseesessssessessaesseesssasbessssessasssasssessnsses
SEX OfTENSE...ueieeieeee ettt ettt ere st s e ere e esn et n s eseneeneane s anneesaennannn
Spilled Bodily FIUids ........ .esimmsmsrs-smiesresimesimaissrmes s s s v e B sy s
Blood Bome Pathogen Cleanup Kit. sismvinsissmmiisinismesrimsomsiieessissmississsissisoss
Student With A GuUIL........c.eeeeirecenomeoneoe Siinsusisaisssessivimisssisiiovsssssssssisasuesodsssibz e csmasasvsssintings
Student Has a Weapon on Their PErson .....coveccveieiiinecneiniinesssiecsseeeseesisiesscsaessssssesnens
Suicide or Suicide Threat or Attempt ...........ccoo.ocwisisssssueisssiissthviaismisissasismisaiao
TEITOTISt ACES .eveeeieenerrceriorar i ne e nene s b s dasaas s s bbb A SRR RS S aB e G F eSS s s nms
Threat Of VIOLENCE .....vevemerecercrrecicrecnen e sibivssprovemassssnosmbsimsmasnsmsstismsms shasssfss susaEasast sasasssasonsson
Trespasser in BuilAing . .. cossssssssssmssissosmisssossssessossninspissmseme st o e s sy i
00 4= o oV SRR
UtIlLY LSS OF FAIUTE.....ucceeierieieereeiietseseesisssaeseresssaessaessassssasssnesssesseasssssassssessstassssssssesenans
WL FIL@S....eiiiieieieieeeetieiieeeiees e etesesessseesss e e s s eas e ssaessasesnes s sansneesseesaeasaneassseessaesasaneennsarnsanens
School Emergency Operations Plan Maintenance..........ccoceeeeeereeeerreeeesneenecsnsinnssinsesssnenees
Homeland Security Advisory Recommendations . ..........ccvociviiiiieesuniiisimessissssssnsssssssssssssessnens
Terms and ACTONYINS ........... i esssdes s ims s iusssisasoitssstois i sauivanslvais ssssmississiiasisiitioen
Four Phases of Emergency Response And Crisis Management ...........cccccoieinciniininniciiciiniiien
General Information Regarding EMErgencies .........c.coovrricriiniiiniarsnnssiinisiiensnscsssssssenns
School Administrator’s Emergency Planning Checklist.......c.ccociiiiieiniiniinniiniecninesensinsenas
Preventing the Crisis ... ummsmvimssssiiss s s s s s s sas s nsss s ms s
KEY POINLS....ccoccecvevriecremeecccernimereceeresasessnasss oo nssenrassaso - shRieawRe AR oS SN RS RSO S SRS SRS S RS e
Reunification ProCeUIES ......ccooiviiiiirieetece ettt a e s ss e s s s s sta s s se st eran s sassas

Actions by Phases Of Emergency Management............cooeereieeeieiienecssieesieessiisscisesnsessnsnnas

10

29



Hamilton Unified School District

SB 187: School Safety Plan
Education Code sections 32280-32289
Introduction

Individual schools in districts over 2,500 students must adopt a comprehensive school safety plan
by March 1, 2000, and must review and update the plan by March 1 of every year thereafter.
(Amended Ed. Codes 35294.1 & 35294.6)

Beginning July 1, 2000, each individual school must report on the status of its school safety plan,
including a description of its key elements in the school accountability report card, and must
continue to do so every July thereafter (Amended Ed. Code 35294.6)

The following guideline may be utilized to support the annual review and evaluation of the
individual school safety plan. This guide will also provide a time line and related administrative
tasks to provide a process to ensure compliance with the requirements of Senate Bill 187,
Comprehensive School Safety Plan.

The guideline/checklist has been organized into two parts:

An assessment by the School Safety Planning Committee of the School Site Council, the School
Site Council or equivalent of the school climate in relation to the current status of school crime
committed on campus and at school related functions. Based on this assessment, safety goals will

be set for the upcoming school year.

The annual review and evaluation of the school comprehensive safety plan which is certified by
the members of the School Safety Planning Committee, the School Site Council President, and
the school Principal before being presented to the Board of Trustees for final review and
adoption. This review includes the following mandated components of Senate Bill 187:

Child Abuse reporting procedures
Policies pursuant to Education Code 48915(c) and other school-designated serious acts
which would lead to suspension, expulsion, or mandatory expulsion recommendations
Procedures to notify teachers and counselors of dangerous students
Sexual Harassment Policy
Safe ingress and egress to and from school
Rules and procedures on school discipline in order to create a safe and orderly
environment conducive to learning
Dress Code
Routine and emergency disaster procedures including natural disasters, human created
disasters or power outages.

IMPLEMENTATION OF PLAN

The written plan will be distributed to all departments and will be made available to all staff,
students, parents, and the community to review in the school library and the main offices.

11



Hamilton Unified School District

School Safety Planning Committee

The school site council is responsible for developing the school site safety plan or for delegating
the responsibility to a school safety planning committee. Ed. Code 35294.1

The school site safety committee shall be composed of the following members: the principal or
designee, one teacher who is a representative of the recognized certificated employee
organization; one parent/guardian whose child attends the school; one classified employee who is
a representative of the recognized classified employee organization; other members if desired.

(Ed Code 35294.1)

Note: HUSD schools designate the high school site council and elementary school site council to
serve as the site safety committee. Further, the high school site council shall be the controlling
safety committee for the following schools: Ella Barkley High School, HUSD Adult Ed, the
HUSD State Preschool and the Glenn County Office of Education Infant and Toddler Center and
HUSD Community Day School when the school is open. The elementary school site council will
serve as site safety committee for all programs hosted on that campus.

Local law enforcement has been consulted (Ed. Code 39294,1) Other local agencies, such as
health care and emergency services, may be consulted if desired. (Ed Code 39294.2)

Other members of the school or community may provide valuable insights as members of the
School Safety Planning Committee.

Additional members may include:

a representative from the local law enforcement agency
School Resource Officers

Guidance counselor

Special Education Department Chairperson

One or more key community service providers

Student representative(s)

Disciplinary team member

Staff leaders

Additional parent representatives

12

31



32

Hamilton Unified School District

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year)

Hamilton Elementary has a closed campus from 8:00 A.M. until 6:00 P.M. while school and the
Boys and Girls Club program are in session. Prior to the start of the school day, one of two
Maintenance personnel inspects the campus for safety. The facility is clean and in good repair.
There are ample classrooms, restrooms, playground space and equipment.

A staff of two provides janitorial services. Schedules are arranged so that no classrooms are
interrupted during instructional time. Custodial services are available from 5:00 A.M. until 8:30
P.M. The cafeteria is cleaned after both breakfast and lunch and restrooms are cleaned and
sanitized daily. The school grounds are clean and well ordered. Trash cans are available
throughout the campus.

The playgrounds and lawns are mowed weekly. The District contracts with an arborist to
annually perform necessary routine trimming of trees.

The school facilities, grounds, and vehicles are in good condition. The District participates in the
State’s Deferred Maintenance Program to replace major components of the school’s facilities
(such as HVAC, roofs, floor surfaces, and so on). All toilets and other fixtures work and are in
good repair. We have installed automatic flush valves on every toilet and hand dryers in each
restroom to maintain a clean environment for students.

Hamilton City has maintained an elementary school on this location since the early 1900s. All of
the original buildings have, long ago, been replaced by modern facilities. All buildings meet
current fire and earthquake codes. An OPSC modernization project was completed within the
past ten years that completely renovated the primary wing containing four classrooms, two
reading labs, and an adult restroom. Within the last seven years, a new kindergarten complex
with three classrooms, each containing restrooms, was added to our campus. The cafeteria
underwent a $750,000 remodeling project in 2004- 2005. It is now a designated emergency
shelter. The roof and HVAC on our 300 building and sections from the roof on the cafeteria were
repaired in the summer of 2008. The fire alarm was also rewired and updated to State Fire
Marshal specifications for the entire school during the summer of 2008.

Hamilton Elementary occupies 4.8 acres with separate athletic fields and blacktop space for both
primary and middle school students. There are separate playground facilities with rubber drop
zones for both primary and middle school children. The cafeteria complex can also serve as a
gymnasium. All buildings have handicap access. The library has holdings in both English and
Spanish. All students have Internet access through the computer lab. The lab has 30 Dell
multimedia computers. We are also considering a solar energy project at the Hamilton
Elementary.

The District participates in the State School Deferred Maintenance Program, which provides
state matching funds on a dollar-for-dollar basis, to assist school districts with expenditures for
major repair or replacement of existing school building components. Typically, this includes
roofing, plumbing, heating, air conditioning, electrical systems, interior or exterior painting, and

13



Hamilton Unified School District

floor systems. For the 2011-12 school year, the District budgeted $78,800 for the Deferred
Maintenance Program. This represents .012% of the District's general fund budget.

School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year)

School Facility Good Repair Status {Most Recent Year)
Year and month of the most recent FIT report: 10/14/2015

Repair Status i
SRat i b I?epalr Needed and
: | Good Eair Poor Action Taken or Planned
Systems: Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, X
Sewer
Interior: Interior Surfaces X 100 Restrooms: Paint Peeling

101: Stained Ceiling tile

102: Stained Ceiling tile

202: Stained Ceiling tile

203: Stained Ceiling tile

206: Stained Ceiling tile

305: Stained Ceiling tile

500 Restrooms: Rusty Partition
501: Torn carpet

School Facility Good Repair Status {Most Recent Year)
Year and month of the most recent AT report: 10/14/2015

Repair Status epair Neaded
yiteming Ac:ion Ttktn or ?::ed
Good Fair Poor
Cleanliness: Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ X Grounds: Gophers
Vermin Infestation
Electrical: Electrical X
Restrooms/Fountains: Restrooms, Sinks/ X 303: Drinking fountain not working
Fountains
Safety: Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials X
Structural: Structural Damage, Roofs X
External: Playground/School Grounds, X
Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences

Overall Facility Rating (Most Recent Year)
Year and month of the most recent FIT report: 10/14/2015

overall Riting Exemplary Go:d Fair Poor
Suspensions and Expulsions
School District State
Rato 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2013-14 | 2014-15 | 2015-16
Suspensions--—— 6.71 6.21 5.83 3.75 4.36 3.80
Expulsions—----- 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.09

14



34

Hamilton Unified School District

Hamilton Elementary School
Safety Plan Signature Page

The undersigned members of the Hamilton Elementary School Safety Planning Committee
certify that the requirements for the SB 187 Safety Plan have been met.

/x{)d/bﬂ//ﬂl‘ )@M/

Fri‘ﬁf:'ipa

P#ésidbat, School Site Council

%‘D&r&m Nz (LSO
Law Effoicement cpresentauve

Fire Department ,44,.2 ;1;,.@{, D.,a-u, ,r:n Qb. \.{




Hamilton Unified School District

Annual Safety Goals

The School Safety Planning Committee shall make an assessment of the current status of school
crime committed on campus and at school-related fuinctions and of appropriate strategies and
programs that will provide or maintain a high level of school safety. (Ed. Code 35924.2)
Principals/designees to report annually to site council.

While the School Safety Planning Committee reviews school, district and community crime data
trends such as the California Safe School Assessment, other data can bring value to the
discussions. Such data may include:

Mental Health Data

State, District or Site Surveys (such as the Youth Risk Behavior Survey)
Disciplinary Data

Community Police Data

e @& o @

Data may be more valuable if disaggregated by gender, age, zip code, ethnicity, etc. Current
trends should be reviewed as well. By the February board meeting of each school year.

Based on data analysis, the School Safety Planning Committee identifies one or two safety-
related goals for the next school year as well as the strategies and/or programs that will be used
to meet those goals. The objective is to provide meaningful goals in order to improve the campus
climate.

The goals are reported, with the Safety Plan, to the Board of Trustees and are shared with the
school staff and community.

In order to keep the goals as a safety focus for the school year, it is recommended that at least
three brief meetings be held to review data and progress. The progress can be reported to the
School Site Council, staff, parent groups and the Board of Trustees.

The year-end assessment should be completed in November of each year and reported upon.

16 35



L1

L102/2T/T -preoq [ooyos 03 pajrodar pue parepd()

IS JOqUIDAON Aq AT[enuue ajepdn pue MIIAI 0} S[IDUNOD IS :9JON

"JUSWUOIIAUD FuruIed] pue Suryjoes) aJes e papiaold oIe SIOQUISW JJelS PUB SJUSPMIS [
C# 180D

"SONIIAIIOR PIJR]AI [00YOS WOLJ
pue 0} SUIPART) USYM PUEB [00YOS WOLJ PUE 0) ‘SUI[DALI) USYM ‘TOOYDS JE S[IYM SINOIS PUB LS SIB SJUSPNIS [[V

1# 180D

Ug[J UON)IY [00YIS dJeS S [00YIS ATeJUIWI[F UOIIUEBE
33))IWU0)) S[O0YDS dJeS
LISI( 100YDS PayjIu() UojrueH

10LSI(] [00YOS PIU() UOY T

36



81

L10¢/TT/T -preoq [ooyos 0} pauodar pue pajepdn

"Surpour pieoq A1eniqay je p1eoq [00yos 0} papiodar pue Ajjenuue pajepdn pue pomaiAdl oq Jsnu sdojs UOLOY :9J0N

"90UR)SISSE JO PAIU Ul IO PIUSILLIY) [99] Ao} UsYM puodsal
0} 9[qe 9q 03 aoe[d ur $a13a1RI)S SARY [[IM [00UIS ATejustuo[y uoj el SUIpusye sjuspuis g 9An0a[qO

"souosald [ejusied pue jyels JUOWIDIONUS MB] [qISIA JABTY [[BYS [00YDS AIBJUSWS[H UOIWERY] :| 9AN([q0

(rooyss ap) Jo uonipuod pue Jures [eosAyd oy 1)
JUSUIUOIIAUY [BIISAY{ S, [O0OUDS Y,

"SOIIAIIOR PIIR[AI [OOUDS WO} pue 0) SUI[OARI) USYM PUY
‘[00yds WOy pue 0) SUI[OALRI) USYM [OOUDS & S[ILM SINOIS PUB dJes JIE SJUSPMIs [V :] 80D

ug[J UoIIVY [007dS dJeS S [00YdS ATLJUIWI[F UOIIWE]
OLOSI [00YdS poyIu() UojIuey

37



61

29

2%

jusumaedacg
SI1 JJUIays
UoNBNSTUTWIPY 9IS

sasuodsoy
uonenjIs
[eNPIATPU]

Jo uoneneag

uonenSIuIwpy
1osi(q SdeQ
oI

JUOUIOOIOJUS MB]

1doq

‘sjuared pue Jyess ‘syuoprys Jo £10Jes ) 01 $18aIY)
Ayununuods renusjod o3 Surpuodsal ur UOTRISIUIWPE
1osIp pue Justmredop 911 JUITIIOIOJUS MEB] [890]
)M £[9SO[O JI0M [[RUS [00UOS ATBJUSTUS[ UOI[IWRE]

"SINOY [00YOS IoJe pue

” Jes oI ‘JuowiodIojuy |  SuuMp IS [0OYDS I} 2INOIS 0) SaINPad01d pue sadIjod
QOUBUIUIBIA] IOLUSI(] | SULIONUOJN | MET SAI0T[0J pIeog paroq Juowddwil [Teys [00Y0S AIBJUSWIS] UOI[IWERE]
” {1o3eurA JuR[d Are@ | uoneonpi Jo pieog
{uonRNSIUTWPY NS "S[RIOIJJO JOLISIP puB
. sepuady so1ousge Ajrunwoo ‘syuared “1dap o1y ‘JuowdoIOUD
UOTRISTUTWPY ‘sSuneaN ‘{uonjenSIUTUIPY M®[ [800] 0] SUOTJBIIAUL 9pNJoul pue sSurjeowr K1aJes
. VLIS pue [00YOS Josanury | 191ISIJ pue [00YdS Ie[N301 J00PUOD [[RYS [00YOS AIBJUSTUA[H UOI[IWLE]
"[00UDS WIOI] pUR 0] 9)NOI UD I
uerd jo SIUSpNIS YOIYM SULINp SOWIT} [[& Je 9[qISIA 9q 0 sjusred
8ui03 | uonejuoursduut "JUAWADIOJUY MBT souosaxd | syuared JyeIs (JHD puUR ‘SIOQUISUI JJR)S JUOUWIIIOJUD MB] [BOO] 9FBINOOUD
-uQ WV | ‘uonenswiwpy ong JIqISIA | JUSWDOIOJUL MB] [T/ UOTRNSTUTIPE [00YDS ATBJUSTIF UO)[TWR]]
e BLIAILLD) S32aN0SNY dayg§ uonoy
puy ae( J1els sfqrsuodsay sonaey | uonepieA

-aouasaxd [ejuored pue jyels “JUSW0IOIUS ME] S[qISIA OARY [[BYS [00YOS AIBJUSWIS[T UOITWERY :] 9AT09(q0)

"SONIAIIOR PIIR[SI [0OUOS WO} PUE 0} SUI[oARL USYM puy

‘[00Yos WoIj pue 0} JUI[OALI} USYM TOOYDS 1B J]IYM 9IN0SS PUE SJes JIB SJUSPNIS [[V ] [20D

ue[q uondV [00YdS dJegS S,[007IS AIRJUIWS[Y WOI[IUBE]

1omSIQ [00YOS PILIU[) UOIUWIE

38



39

0¢
R "3UTUIBI] JO SAIONPUOD IOW PUB I9JES [00YDS
99N TUIO)) [00YOS Koains JUSINLISUL oY) 93eUIL 0] PAPAJU ST JeyM 03 Spaedal ut suoturdo
9JeS ‘UONRNSIUTWIPY |  JO S)[NSal pue KaAaIns SHD II9Y) 1ID1[0S 0} SJUSPNIS [0S ATRJUSWIR[H UOITWEREH
» uonnqLsiq 01 PAINQLUSIP 9q [[I4 ASAING SPIY] AYI[ESH YL,
JUOWDOIOJU Me] JUdWIdOIOJUY "S[00UIS JOLISTP-UOU SUTAJOAUL JOTJUOD 10
1do( s JJueys syuapout | me “1do(T S JJUDYS | SO10uaFe JUSWOOIOJUS ME [BOO] J0/pUE ‘SUOTRISTUTWIPE
» | ‘uonensmuwpy Mg Suwyo] ‘uoneySIUTWIPE | [0OYDS JOYJO UIOI] 20UR)SISSe 33eTUL [[IM pue SJUIPNIS
Jo pi0oayg .S[O0YDS IOYI0 )M JIOM [[TM JJRIS [00YOS AIBJUSWISH UO)[TUIRH]
” *JOI[JUOS JUINUST © OJUT 9JB[BISS P[NOD
SI0[2SUNo)) ey} suonenyis 1o swoarqoid [enusjod Aue o1eys pue
= sookopdwy 9IS ‘s Jjess 18 ‘uoneNSIUIPY 01 Y[ ued A91} OYM JOQUUOUI JJB)S J[Npe ue AJIIUapI
uonedUNWIWOd | 9)S JJe1s ‘Aynoe [[1M J0OYOS ATRIUSWS[H UOITWRE] j& SJUSps [[V
Suro3 Ien3ay
-uQ JUSWAOIOJUH “UDIPTIYD II9Y) YIIM SO1MIR Y}
.- M ‘s1oje[Ioe SSNOSIP 0) Payse 9q [[IM SjudIRd "JBaIY} B 0} puodsal
‘s1019suno)) | 03 sdais o) FuruUIfINO Jooqpuey S, [OOYDS Y} UL I[O1LIR
[enuuy UONRISIUTWPY IS Jooqpuey | ‘UONRNSIUTWPY 9IS ue aoe[d [[IM JJeIs S, J00YOS ATBIUSWIO[ UOI[IWBE
1da(q a1 "SJuIpNIS )
uepd jo QuotadIofUY Me | 0} S3139)RIL)S ISAY) YILI) 0] Pasn aq [[IM Aep [00Yds oY}
3uro8 | uonejuoworduun 1y3ney ‘JJels ‘sio[asuno)) Jo uorpod v "sIoquiow Jjels [[e 0} so1garens apiaoid
-uQ v JJe1s [00yos so139jens | ‘uonenSTUIWPY 9IS [[1M UOTRISTUTUIPE S [00YOS AIBJUQWIO[H UOI[TWB]
aeq BLIOIID S90IN0SOY doig uonoy
PUH dle@ HeIS | 9[qisuodsay] sonied diad 41 LN

"90UB]SISSE JO pasu

UT 10 PIUSTLIIY [39F Ao USY M puodsar o0} 9[qe 9q 0} a0e]d Ul $9130781IS 9ARY [[1M [00YIS ATEJUSWSH UKW SUIPUSHIE SJUSPNIS 7 9AT03[q()

JOLISI( [00Y0S PIYTU() UOITWE]



|14

ue[d UOHOY [00YDS 9JeS S, [O0YOS AIBJUSIUS[F] UOI[IWRE]

L10T/TT/T :p¥eoq [00yds 0} parodar pue pajepdn

‘Jouuew dAroddns ‘SuLres € ur 19110 YoBd YuM
joRIaIUL 0] SJUSPNIS PuUe SIPE 10J PIEPUR]S B $19S [00YIS AIBJUSUIA[H U IR g 9ANdS[q0

"JOTARYQQ [BIOOS-T)UR

NqIYx9 sjuapnys usym jutod ojqissod JSOI[I8a ) 18 SUSAISIUL
0} SO1393B1IS SATIOSYJS SBY [00YOS AIRJUSWId[H UO[IUBY] : | 9AN[QO

(1ooyds o Jo uonrpuoo pue Jumes [gorsAyd oy )
JUSWIUOIIAUY [ROISAYJ S,[00UDS Y],

JUSWIUOIIAUS SUTULIEd] Pue Suryora) 9jes & popracid oIe SISqUIDW JJBlS PUE SJUSPNIS [[V 7 [20D

uB[d UOTIY [00YDG dJeS S, [007dS ATeJUIWA UOJ[rue ]
LIS [00YO§ payIu) Uoj[IweH

40



(‘pusne 03 PaSLINOOUD 9q [[IM juated
pue ‘quapnys oy ‘yuaunedaq uoneonpy [ewedg ot Jo
IoquIoW V) "I0[OSUNO0D € pue ‘(s)10yoed} ‘I0jensuImpe

9s130j0yoAsd & opnjour Aewr wes) 9y ], "epuade oy

1S130[0YoAS sojnuIuI pue uo paseyd 2q [[eys sio1ARY2q dATIdEpR[EW YIIM SIUSPNIS
" [00Y0S (SI0[asUN0)) sepudly 1SS
,» | ‘uonenSUIWPY 9IS «'SUNIIA (1.SS) ures ], Apmis§ juapnis,, po[npayos
Ajre[n3al ploy [[eYs [00UYoS AIBJUSWS[H UO)IWR]
S9OULIJUOD "SIOIARYD( 9831} SSAIppe 0} sa13ojen)s Surdopoasp
juored pue s101Aeyaq sAndeperewr FuiAjnuapr ut sjuared
Jo JoqunN UM JIOM [[BYS JJ©IS S, [00YOS AIBJUSWIO[H UOI[IWRE]
- " "S[OOT[OS UL JIOTABYD( [RIO0S-TJUR [IIM
Bureap ur sa1391e1)s 9A1N99)J8 JuiA[dde pue si03o] Ysu
sdoysyiom OTWIdPLOL SUIAJLIUIPI UO SOOUIJU09/sdOYSIIoM puoe
Jjeis | Surpuone el 01 JJe1s 93eIN0SUd [[BYS [00YOS AIRJUSWS[ UOI[IWEE]
., | ‘uonensIUIWIPY 9318
"8-3] SOpeI3 Ul I01ARYDQ [BIDOS-T)UE SSAIPPR
” UONRIUIWNO0(] 1e1]) S139181)S PASLq-10ILasI ATIONIIO PALJIIUAPI
SIO[esuno)) ‘TeuIRIN Jye1s o1 apiaoid [[eys 00O AIRJUSWIS[H UO)[TWEE]
‘uoneNSTUIWPY SNS pajedwo)
ueld jo "$901AIOS FUIAsUNod apiaoid
8uro8 | uonejuowoduut suoneNSIUTWpPY K1030011(] ued jet]) so1ouasde Jo uorjewIojul sueipiens /sjuaored
-uQ v 's1019sUNOY) paredwo) 01 ap1aoid [[eys [00YOS AIBJUSWIS[F UOITWRE]
aeq BLIOILL) S92IN0SAY doig uonoy
pug e 1els | 9[qisuodsay sonaed uonepIeA
*IOIARYQQ

[BI00S-IUE JIQIYXd SUOpMIs UdYAM Jutod S1qissod ISa1[1ed 9} J& SUSAISIUL 0} SITFANLIS IATIOYJD Sy [00YDS ATBJUSWIA[T U0 ] 9AT03(q0

JUSWIIOIIAUS FUTUIB] PUe SUNJoRa] 9Jes © PIpIA0Id oIk SISqUISUI JJBls pue SJUSPNIS [[V 7 [2OD

10LSK(] [00Y0S POGIU[) UOY TR

41




¢

400D

“1do yiresy [eIUoN
" 1s130[0yo4sd [00YOS "9p1oIns jo Anjiqissod
i1da J0195UN0) 9} PISSNOSIpP SBY JUSIpNIS © 18y} J0qUIOUI JJBIS € 0]
" S[RLINY po10dar st 11 uayMm 1s13070yoAsd [00YDS I} 10 IO[ASUNOD
UOT)RISIUTWPY ‘JJeIs [enpiAIpuy 91} J0BIUOD [[BYS JJLIS §,[007DS ATRJUSWH UOY[TWEE]

SIO[PSUNO))
ueid jo ‘uoneNSIUIWPY "A11Anoe Sueg Aue ur poAjoAul
Suro3 | uoneyuswoduir JUSWIDOIOJUF MET] | SUOTIBOIIUSP] ‘uoneqord | are 1o diysioquiowr Sued ‘uorneroosse Sued Aedsip oym
-uQ 1V | ‘uonensmmwupy 931§ [enpIAIpU] UomIaDIOJU Me] SIUSpMYS AJTIUSPI [[BYS [00YDS AIBJUOWIO[H UOI[IWRL]
oreq BLIOIL) $90IN0SAY doig uonoy

pug oreq eI | o1qIsuodsay sonIed uoyepIeA

("1u090) “101ABYOq

[BI00S-TUL JIqIUXD SJUPYs uaym jutod a[qissod Iso1[1es Y} 18 SUSAISIUL 0] SAIFIRIS SATIOAJJS SEY [00YDS ATRJUSWS[H UONTWEY] ] 9A1RMA(qQO

1OISI(] [00YOS PATJIU() UOJIWe}]

42



43

144
MITADY ‘osnoy uadQ SSIYSIN Juared
[eauuy Jootd§ 01-deyg
UI9JSAS
UONEITUNUIIO)) "TUSUIUOITAUD 9ANISOd © ur 1971050}
” [1ouno) 9IS syurejdwoo Sunsixy | siquw jjels pue sjuared ‘sjuopnis SULIq JBY) SIUSAD
‘uoneISTUIWIPY OIS pao)siSaz [enuue pjoy [[BYS [00UDS ATRIUSUIS[H UO}ITWERE]
% SIOJRXSIUTWPY Jo sp10day
» 9IS {SI0[ASUNO)) SIO[OSUNod "SIOpPLI]
JeIs Aoy SOOTAIDS ‘Qury suoyd | Ayunwuos pue sjuspnis ‘syusied o] sijed suoyd uInyoI
= dlqefIeA® Ul SIS ‘400D Apdwoxd [eys jye1s s,]00Y0S AIRjUStS[ U0 TWR]
sIofsuno) pue | uonedmoied jo
UONBISIUTWPY 9IS |  UOHBIUSWNIO(] "SIOI[JUOD JA[OSAI pue
" swaqoxd A0S 03 SIS sjuared pue ‘JJels ‘syuspnis
UONBIUAWINOOD | UOHRISIUIWPY pue 031 9p1aoad [[eys [00YOS ATRJUSWIS[ UOITWERH
= SIOJRIISIUTWIPY SANAV ‘s10[9sUNO)) ‘JJeIS
{sio1esuno)) ‘Aynoeg | ‘s30T Ajnoeq "swa[qoId [B100S IO OTWOPBOE JQIYXS O}
‘uoneNSIUTWPY NS suidoaq juapnis & uaym sueipieng/sjuored KJnou [jeys
" O1NH uonedionie | {UN0D 91IS [00YOS | SIO[ASUNOD PUE SIDYOELI) [00YOS ATRJUSWIS[ UOI[IWRL]
{uonensSIUIUpY uaIed ‘“quapuajuradng
5 ANS/PSI Jo junowry (O1NH) seanruwo) AI0SIAPY LIS Y}
ISIT | pue ‘[ouno) 911§ [00yoS st uo ajedionaed o) sjuored
" [IOUNOD | SIO9JUN[OA pUB I02JUN[OA JUSIR] [1e 98eIn05US [[BYS [00YDS AIRJUSWIAYH UO)[TWe]
QU IS pue JUOWIOA[OAU] ‘sqnyD 191s00g
” UonRNSIUIWPY IS | JudIed JO JUSIXH "SONIATIOR P2IR[9I-TOOYDS JOJ JOAJUN[OA 0)
sSunaoAl [Puno)) | sjuared 93vINOOUD [[BYS [00YOS ATBJUSWS[H UOI[TWR]]
NS ‘ONSqIM
uerd jo [ouno) g IONIS[SMON Judied "UQIP[IYD 119y} JO UOTIBONPS Y} UL PIA[OAUL
guro3 | wonwyuswoduur | ¢ 10[esUNOY) ‘AJ[NdR] pajuotuarduur ‘sossed unuared K1aanor01d 9q 03 sueipieng/sjuored 9§vinoous 01
-uQ W | ‘uopensuImpy oNg s91393811S parosuods Joysy | so1891ens dofoAap [[eyS [00YOS ATBJUSWIS[ UOIIWB]
e BLIOILID $90IN0S9Y doig uonoy
puy oreq Welg | 9]qIsuodsay] sanaed UOEPI[EA

“ouuew 9Anoddns FuLied € ur 19YI0 YIrd YIIM J0BINUL 0) SJUSPNIS PUE S}NPE 10J PIEPUE]S B SI9S [00UDS AIRJUSWL[H UOYIWE] {g OATAIq0

10LISI( [00YS PAYIU() UONIWRE



14

9OURIJUOD
Ioyoesyjudied
SATqUIaSS Y SaTqUIDSS Y

1OWSIQ [00Y0S POFIU() UOJIEH

44



Hamilton Unified School District

Emergency Management Resolution

Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, California

RESOLUTION # 16-17-105

WHEREAS, The Hamilton Unified School District has implemented a School Emergency
Operations Plan for all school sites and facilities. The objectives of the plan are to: 1) protect the
safety and welfare of students, employees and staff, 2) provide a safe and coordinated response
to emergencies, 3) protect the district’s facilities and property, and 4) Enable the School to
restore normal conditions with minimal confusion in the shortest time possible.

WHEREAS, In an effort to fully implement the School Emergency Operations Plan, the
Hamilton Unified School District, supports planning, training and exercising the plan at the
school site level.

WHEREAS, The Hamilton Unified School District participates with all responding agencies
within the State of California and in the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and the
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Hamilton Unified School District
does hereby support the School Emergency Operations Plan.

READ AND ADOPTED THIS DAY OF BY THE GOVERNING
BOARD OF THE HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT.

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINED:

Date Signature

Submitted annually in February

27

45



San Diego

Los Angeles

San Francisco
Bay Area

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AUDIT REPORT
JUNE 30, 2016

| , .
christy@white y

A PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TABLE OF CONTENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors’ Report .......ccoceriueimsurirunnn. K S SRS o R AR s SR s P s T s b Eem L
Management’s Discussion and ANALYSIS..........covueiiciiiiicen s st e s bt 4
Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position .......ccccccveeeiceceiicreciennene. iRLTREE e 11
Statement of ACVIIES .....ccveeerreeersrrereenerensrenanes ereereeeteeeenererenernens 12
Fund Financial Statements
Governmental FUNAS — BaAlANCe SHEEL..........c.vvveiieeeeiceee e ceeeerereste e seeeestessesessssassssessessesssssssssestesssesnessesssennns 13
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position........ceceeveneinienen. 14
Governmental Funds — Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances..................... 15
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances to the Statement of Activities ........cccccurvevase. e e s A i b 16
Fiduciary Funds — Statement of Net POSIHOM. ...ttt ees e s caenaceees 18
Fiduciary Funds — Statement of changes in Net POSIHON .......cciuiuiaucuiimiierciesissesssssssessscnsscsesssssssessessassssassass 19
INOtes t0 FINANCIAL STALEINIEIILS .....coverieerieeeeeieeteirtetesteeesesteneeseseesessrentsneeseesesnessessessonssmsseatessansesensssessesssnnersessensnrassssenns 20

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

General Fund — Budgetary Comparison Schedule ... sesssssssssssssssssessssssascesss 99
Schedule of Funding Progress............... T
Schedule of the District’s Proportlonate Share of the Net Penswn Llablhty CalSTRS SRS Sz DD
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - CalPERS.......cccccociiierimiesssennrsnaccsenans 56
Schedule of District Contributions - CalSTRS ..o ssasassssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssassasesses 97
Schedule of District Contributions - CalPERS.............cc.... . |
Notes to Required Supplementary INfOrmMation........c.coeeeerrcereccneieeseerrenie st e ess e es s seaesensas 59

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA). ... esssi s ssssssssesessenssessssassmaesessssnsase O 1

Schedule of INStructioNal TIMIE .......ocuei ittt e st ee s et saeen 62
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis.... sons ey i s ssasesyseens: OO
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report w1th Audlted Fmanc1al Statements .................................... 64
Combining Statements — Non-Major Governmental Funds
CoMDINING BALANCE SREEL ....cueuereercreeicareeirereereieireeerenmas et ssesessee et etsan e esrasans s sessiaes st seser st eesessensasensnseesnsrenceensans 65
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances..........ccviiinniainicnnese 66
Local Education Agency Organization StIUCHUTE ..........coviioiiiiiee e e s s sees e senssseees 67

Notes to Supplementary INfOIMNAION. ..ot st s sa s s 68



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TABLE OF CONTENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit

of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ..........eeceveeereveeeureecunenne 69
Report On State COMPHATIICE. ........coimiietietieeerisireterer et tseseaesessssesssscssansssatatessssasacsseseesssssassssnessesssarsstacsseessamsasasesasaes 71

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Summary of AUditors’ RESUILS .......coceeeereerreerrecrare s resasssessrasssasares SRR £ |
Financial Statement FINAINGS.........ccviriini it cse s s ssessesssssasesseses s tessseessseeesensesssnsasesenses 75
State Award Findings and QUESHIONEA COSLS..........vvimrccrrmirrrereerrerceeri e eeesrors s sesessasssssssssssensaeasaroseessssusasssassessne 76

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit FINAINGS .....ccovruiviiirceic it csns e sessessmsosesesensss st st 79



FINANCIAL SECTION

49



Christy White, CPA
Michael Ash, CPA

Heather Rubio

SAN DIEGO
LOS ANGELES
SAN FRANCISCO/BAY AREA

Corporate Office:
348 Qlive Street
San Diego, CA 92103

toll-free: 877.220.7229
tel: 619.270.8222
fax: 619.260.9085

www.christywhite.com

Lacensed by the Cidifarnmt

Stete Board of Aceountunei

Chrlstwahlt 77

A PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Governing Board
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hamilton Unified School
District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Hamilton Unified School District's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Hamilton Unified School District, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary
information, such as management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of
funding progress for OPEB benefits, schedules of proportionate share of net pension liability, and schedules of
District contributions for pensions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financdial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Hamilton Unified School District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information listed in the
table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial

statements.

The supplementary information listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

51



52

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 9, 2016 on our
consideration of Hamilton Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Hamilton Unified School District’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Loy Wity Asssicka.

San Diego, California
December 9, 2016



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTRODUCTION
Our discussion and analysis of Hamilton Unified School District’s (District) financial performance provides an

overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. It should be read in conjunction
with the District’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

P Total net position was $3,580,313 at June 30, 2016. This was an increase of $509,461 from the prior year’s
net position.

P Overall revenues were $9,513,903 which was more than expenses of $9,004,442.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Components of the Financials Section

M?.naget.rlent s Basic Financial Reguiged
Discussion & Supplementary
: Statements ]
Analysis Information
Government-Wide Fund Financial Notes to the
Financial Statements Statements Financial Statements
‘ .
Summary < > Detail
N
4

53



54

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

This annual report consists of three parts — Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide a comprehensive
overview of the District. The basic financial statements are comprised of two kinds of statements that present
financial information from different perspectives:

» Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both short-term
and long-term information about the entity’s overall financial position.

»  Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of District operations in more detail. The
fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements.

» Governmental Funds provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s
programs.

»  Fiduciary Funds report balances for which the District is a custodian or trustee of the funds, such as
Associated Student Bodies and pension funds.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide
more detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required and other supplementary
information that further explain and support the financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the government’s
assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities,
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District’s net position and how it has changed. Net position is one
way to measure the District’s financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net
position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

The government-wide financial statements of the District include governmental activities. All of the District’s basic
services are included here, such as regular education, food service, maintenance and general administration. Local
control formula funding and federal and state grants finance most of these activities.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE
Net Position

The District’'s combined net position was $3,580,313 at June 30, 2016, as reflected in the table below. Of this amount,
($2,839,103) was unrestricted. Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints from debt
covenants and enabling legislation that limit the Governing Board’s ability to use that net position for day-to-day
operations.

Governmental Activities
2016 2015 Net Change
ASSETS
Current and other assets $ 4433018 $ 4,011,147 $ 421,871
Capital assets 5,912,196 5,914,780 (2,584)
Total Assets 10,345,214 9,925,927 419,287
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 869,461 442,013 427 448
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 372,514 406,643 (34,129)
Long-term liabilities 6,706,548 5,673,979 1,032,569
Total Liabilities 7,079,062 6,080,622 998,440
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 555,300 1,216,466 (661,166)
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,267,958 5,201,094 66,864
Restricted 1,151,458 1,047,196 104,262
Unrestricted (2,839,103) (3,177,438) 338,335
Total Net Position $ 3580313 $ 3,070,852 $ 509,461




56

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)
Changes in Net Position

The results of this year’s operations for the District as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities. The table
below takes the information from the Statement and rearranges them slightly, so you can see our total revenues,
expenses, and special items for the year.

Governmental Activities
2016 2015 Net Change
REVENUES
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 28,064 $ 34959 $ (6,895)
Operating grants and contributions 1,609,676 1,316,625 293,051
General revenues
Property taxes 1,543,844 1,376,687 167,157
Unrestricted federal and state aid 6,000,167 5,046,065 954,102
Other 332,152 479,954 (147,802)
Total Revenues 9,513,903 8,254,290 1,259,613
EXPENSES
Instruction 4,735,805 4,740,100 (4,295)
Instruction-related services 1,067,527 1,084,496 (16,969)
Pupil services 778,768 731,205 47,563
General administration 645,295 679,174 (33,879)
Plant services 1,318,629 725,082 593,547
Debt service 28,457 31,552 (3,095)
Other Outgo 429,961 386,343 43,618
Total Expenses 9,004,442 8,377,952 626,490
Change in net position 509,461 (123,662) 633,123
NetPosition - Beginning* 3,070,852 3,194,514 (123,662)
Net Position - Ending $ 3580313 $ 3,070,852 § 509461

* Beginning Net Position was restated for the 2015 year only



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)
Changes in Net Position (continued)

The total cost of all our governmental activities this year was $9,004,442, while net cost of services was only
$7,366,702 (refer to the table below). The amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through
taxes was only $1,543,844 because the cost was paid by other governments and organizations who subsidized
certain programs with grants and contributions.

Net Cost of Services
2016 2015

Instruction $ 4,009528 § 4,236,843
Instruction-related services 773,538 1,039,906
Pupil services 316,608 277,301
General administration 615,032 618,748
Plant services 1,193,578 580,170
Debt service 28,457 31,552
Transfers to other agencies 429961 241,848

Total Expenses $ 7,366,702 $ 7,026,368

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S MAJOR FUNDS

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the District
completed this year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $4,190,580, which is more than
last year’s ending fund balance of $3,730,725. The District’s General Fund had $1,072,605 more in operating
revenues than expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2016.

CURRENT YEAR BUDGET 2015-16

During the fiscal year, budget revisions and appropriation transfers are presented to the Board for their approval
on a monthly basis to reflect changes to both revenues and expenditures that become known during the year. In
addition, the Board of Education approves financial projections included with the Adopted Budget, First Interim,
and Second Interim financial reports. The Unaudited Actuals reflect the District’s financial projections and current
budget based on State and local financial information.

57



58

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

By the end of 2015-16 the District had invested $5,912,196 in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

Governmental Activities
2016 2015 Net Change
CAPITAL ASSETS
Land $ 293887 $ 293,887 §$ -
Land improvements 604,362 604,362
Buildings & improvements 9,278,697 9,069,289 209,408
Furniture & equipment 1,373,181 1,252,758 120,423
Accumulated depreciation (5,637,931)  (5,305,516) (332,415)
Total Capital Assets $ 5912196 $ 5914780 $ (2,584)

Long-Term Liabilities

At year-end, the District had $6,706,548 in long-term liabilities, a 18.2% increase from last year — as shown in the
table below. (More detailed information about the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in footnotes to the
financial statements.)

Governmental Activities
2016 2015 Net Change
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Total general obligation bonds $ 637800 $ 701,200 $  (63,400)
Capital leases 6,438 12,486 (6,048)
Early retirement incentive 229,643 270,228 (40,585)

Compensated absences 26,418 18,533 7,885
Net OPEB obligation 254,799 266,230 (11,431)

Net pension liability 5,670,099 4,518,960 1,151,139
Less: current portion of long-term debt (118,649) (113,658) (4,991)

Total Long-term Liabilities $ 6706548 $ 5,673,979 $ 1,032,569




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of several circumstances
that could affect its future financial health.

Landmark legislation passed in Year 2013 reformed California school district finance by creating the Local Control
Funding Formula (LCFF). The District continues to analyze the impact of the LCFF on funding for our program
offerings and services. The LCFF is designed to provide a flexible funding mechanism that links student
achievement to state funding levels. The LCFF provides a per pupil base grant amount, by grade span, that is
augmented by supplemental funding for targeted student groups in low income brackets, those that are English
language learners and foster youth. The State anticipates all school districts to reach the statewide targeted base
funding levels by 2020-21 but the annual amount funded to meet the target is uncertain.

Factors related to LCFF that the District is monitoring include: (1) estimates of funding in the next budget year and
beyond; (2) the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) that aims to link student accountability
measurements to funding allocations; (3) ensuring the integrity of reporting student data through the California
Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADs); and, (4) meeting annual compliance and audit
requirements.

The State’s economy is expected to grow faster than the national economy with unemployment dropping. Personal
income is expected to grow 3.6%; according to the UCLLA Anderson Economic Forecast, April 2016. The ability of
the State to fund the LCFF and other programs is largely dependent on the strength of the State’s economy and
while positive remains uncertain.

The District participates in state employee pensions plans, PERS and STRS, and both are underfunded. The
District’s proportionate share of the liability is reported in the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2016. The
amount of the liability is material to the financial position of the District. To address the underfunding issues, the
pension plans continue to raise employer rates in future years and the increased costs are significant.

Enrollment can fluctuate due to factors such as population growth, competition from private, parochial, inter-
district transfers in or out, economic conditions and housing values. Losses in enrollment will cause a school
district to lose operating revenues without necessarily permitting the district to make adjustments in fixed
operating costs.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the 2016-17 fiscal year.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, students, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or need any additional financial information, contact the District’s Business
Office, Hamilton Unified School District, 620 Canal Street, PO Box 488; Hamilton City, CA 95951.

10

59



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Capital assets, not depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Total Deferred OQutflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Long-term liabilities, current portion
Long-term liabilities, non-current portion
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Capital projects
Debt service
Educational programs
All others
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

11

Governmental
Activities

$

4,134,959
289,612
8,447
293,887
5,618,309

10,345,214

869,461

869,461

247,766
6,099
118,649
6,706,548

7,079,062

555,300

555,300

5,267,958

109,036
161,271
623,501
257,650
(2,839,103)

$

3,580,313




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Operating
Charges for Grants and Governmental
Function/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Instruction $ 4,735805 % - % 726277 $ (4,009,528)
Instruction-related services
Instructional supervision and administration 1,463 - = (1,463)
Instructional library, media, and technology 166,146 - 143 (166,003)
School site administration 899,918 - 293,846 (606,072)
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 134,564 - (134,564)
Food services 458,618 28,064 423,999 (6,555)
All other pupil services 185,586 - 10,097 (175,489)
General administration
All other general administration 645,295 - 30,263 (615,032)
Plant services 1,318,629 - 125,051 (1,193,578)
Interest on long-term debt 28,457 - - (28,457)
Other Outgo 429,961 - - (429,961)
Total Governmental Activities $ 9,004,442 $ 28,064 $ 1,609,676 (7,366,702)
General revenues
Taxes and subventions
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 1,445,244
Property taxes, levied for debt service 98,600
Federal and state aid not restricted for specific purposes 6,000,167
Interest and investment earnings 9,035
Interagency revenues 117,182
Miscellaneous 205,935
Subtotal, General Revenue 7,876,163
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 509,461
Net Position - Beginning 3,070,852
Net Position - Ending $ 3,580,313

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12

61



62

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2016
Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 3,271,469 $ 863,490 $ 4,134,959
Accounts receivable 209,492 80,120 289,612
Due from other funds 10,000 - 10,000
Stores inventory - 8,447 8,447
Total Assets $ 3490961 $ 952,057 §$ 4,443,018
LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities $ 226,628 § 9,711 % 236,339
Due to other funds - 10,000 10,000
Unearned revenue 6,099 - 6,099
Total Liabilities 232,727 19,711 252,438
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 10,000 8,447 18,447
Restricted 594,372 568,513 1,162,885
Committed - 355,386 355,386
Assigned 204,327 - 204,327
Unassigned 2,449,535 2,449,535
Total Fund Balances 3,258,234 932,346 4,190,580
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances §$ 3490961 $ 952,057 $ 4,443,018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

13



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT

OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different from amounts reported in governmental

funds because:

Capital assets:
In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement
of net position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and
accumulated depreciation:
Capital assets $ 11,550,127
Accumulated depreciation (5,637,931)

Unmatured interest on long-term debt:
In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is not recognized until

the period in which it matures and is paid. In the government-wide
statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that it is incurred. The
additional liability for unmatured interest owing at the end of the period

was:

Long-term liabilities:

In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the

statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are

reported. Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist

of:
Total general obligation bonds $ 637,800
Capital leases 6,438
Early retirement incentive 229,643
Compensated absences 26418
Net OPEB obligation 254,799
Net pension liability 5,670,099

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions:
In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating
to pensions are not reported because they are applicable to future periods.
In the statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources
relating to pensions are reported.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions $ 869,461
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (555,300)

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

14

4,190,580

5,912,196

(11,427)

(6,825,197)

314,161

3,580,313

63



64

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

REVENUES
LCFF sources
Federal sources
Other state sources
Other local sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Instruction
Instruction-related services
Instructional supervision and administration
Instructional library, media, and technology
School site administration
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation
Food services
All other pupil services
General administration
All other general administration
Plant services
Facilities acquisition and maintenance
Transfers to other agencies
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
NetFinancing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
6,891,392 $ - $ 6,891,392
301,577 400,647 702,224
1,102,625 362,840 1,465,465
307,593 162,096 469,689
8,603,187 925,583 9,528,770
4,363,894 236,531 4,600,425
1,463 - 1,463
165,220 - 165,220
839,967 56,823 896,790
72,543 - 72,543
3,181 429,939 433,120
176,914 - 176,914
624,792 - 624,792
780,216 722,852 1,503,068
65,578 - 65,578
429,961 - 429,961
6,048 63,400 69,448
805 28,788 29,593
7,530,582 1,538,333 9,068,915
1,072,605 612,750) 459,855
- 454,000 454,000
(454,000) - (454,000)
(454,000) 454,000 -
618,605 (158,750) 459,855
2,639,629 1,091,096 3,730,725
3,258,234 $ 932,346 $ 4,190,580

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 459,855

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital outlay:
In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures
in the period when the assets are acquired. In the statement of activities, costs
of capital assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. The difference between capital outlay expenditures and depreciation

expense for the period is:

Expenditures for capital outlay: $ 343,007
Depreciation expense: (338,506) 4,501

Debt service:
In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as
expenditures. In the government-wide statements, repayments of long-term
debt are reported as reductions of liabilities. Expenditures for repayment of the

principal portion of long-term debt were: 69,448

Gain or loss from the disposal of capital assets:
In governmental funds, the entire proceeds from disposal of capital assets are
reported as revenue. In the statement of activities, only the resulting gain or
loss is reported. The difference between the proceeds from disposal of capital

assets and the resulting gain or loss is: (7,085)

Unmatured interest on long-term debt:
In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is recognized in the period
that it becomes due. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is
recognized in the period it is incurred. Unmatured interest owing at the end of
the period, less matured interest paid during the period but owing from the
prior period, was: 1,136

Compensated absences:
In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the amounts
paid during the period. Inthe statement of activities, compensated absences are
measured by the amount earned. The difference between compensated
absences paid and compensated absences earned, was: (7,885)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
16
65



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF
ACTIVITIES, continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB):
In governmental funds, OPEB costs are recognized when employer
contributions are made. In the statement of activities, OPEB costs are
recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference between OPEB costs

and actual employer contributions was: 11,431

Pensions:
In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when employer
contributions are made, in the government-wide statement of activities,
pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference
between accrual-basis pension costs and employer contributions was: (62,525)

Other liabilities not normally liquidated with current financial resources:
In the government-wide statements, expenses must be accrued in connection
with any liabilities incurred during the period that are not expected to be
liquidated with current financial resources. Examples include special
termination benefits such as retirement incentives financed over time, and
structured legal settlements. This year, expenses incurred for such obligations

were: 40,585
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 509,461

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

17



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Due to student groups
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

18

Trust Funds Agency Funds
Private-Purpose Student Body
Trust Fund Fund
$ 32,501 $ 173,875
32,501 $ 173,875
- $ 173,875
- % 173,875
32,501
$ 32,501

67



68

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Other trust activities
Total Deductions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

19

Trust Funds

Private-Purpose
Trust Fund

4,270

4,270

8,011

8,011

(3,741)
36,242

$

32,501




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Hamilton Unified School District (the “District”) accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with
the policies and procedures of the Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The
accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(AICPA).

The District operates under a locally elected Board form of government and provides educational services to
grades K-12 as mandated by the state. A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component
units, and other organizations that are included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The
primary government of the District consists of all funds, departments and agencies that are not legally separate
from the District. For the District, this includes general operations, food service, and student-related activities.

B. Component Units

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable.
Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District in that the District
approves their budget, the issuance of their debt or the levying of their taxes. In addition, component units are
other legally separate organizations for which the District is not financially accountable but the nature and
significance of the organization’s relationship with the District is such that exclusion would cause the District’s
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The District has no such component units.

C. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Statements. The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government (the District). These statements include the financial activities of
the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-
counting of internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenue, and other non-exchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenue for each
function of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with
a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense
allocations that have been made in the funds have been reserved for the statement of activities. Program
revenues include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting of operational or capital requirements of a particular program.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The comparison of
program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each program or business segment is self-
financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.

20



70

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C.

Basis of Presentation (continued)

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds,
including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and fiduciary — are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a
separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for activities that are governmental in nature. Governmental activities
are typically tax-supported and include education of pupils, operation of food service and child development
programs, construction and maintenance of school facilities, and repayment of long-term debt.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee or agency capacity for others that
cannot be used to support the District's own programs.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund: The General Fund is the main operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all
activities except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. In keeping with the minimum
number of funds principle, all of the District's activities are reported in the General Fund unless there is a
compelling reason to account for an activity in another fund. A District may have only one General Fund.

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds: Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service
or capital projects. The District maintains the following special revenue funds:

Adult Education Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local revenues for
adult education programs. Money in this fund shall be expended for adult education purposes only.
Moneys received for programs other than adult education shall not be expended for adult education
(Education Code Sections 52616[b] and 52501.5[a]).

Child Development Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local revenues to
operate child development programs. All moneys received by the District for, or from the operation of,
child development services covered under the Child Care and Development Services Act (Education Code
Section 8200 et seq.) shall be deposited into this fund. The moneys may be used only for expenditures for
the operation of child development programs. The costs incurred in the maintenance and operation of child
development services shall be paid from this fund, with accounting to reflect specific funding sources
(Education Code Section 8328).

21



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C.

Basis of Presentation (continued)

Non-Major Governmental Funds (continued)

Special Revenue Funds (continued):

Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local
resources to operate the food service program (Education Code Sections 38090-38093). The Cafeteria Special
Revenue Fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the governing board as necessary
for the operation of the District's food service program (Education Code Sections 38091 and 38100).

Deferred Maintenance Fund: This fund is used to account separately for state apportionments and the
District's contributions for deferred maintenance purposes (Education Code Sections 17582-17587). In
addition, whenever the state funds provided pursuant to Education Code Sections 17584 and 17585
(apportionments from the State Allocation Board) are insufficient to fully match the local funds deposited
in this fund, the governing board of a school district may transfer the excess local funds deposited in this
fund to any other expenditure classifications in other funds of the District (Education Code Sections 17582
and 17583).

Capital Project Funds: Capital project funds are established to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds).

Capital Facilities Fund: This fund is used primarily to account separately for moneys received from fees
levied on developers or other agencies as a condition of approving a development (Education Code Sections
17620-17626). The authority for these levies may be county/city ordinances (Government Code Sections
65970-65981) or private agreements between the District and the developer. Interest earned in the Capital
Facilities Fund is restricted to that fund (Government Code Section 66006).

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects: This fund exists primarily to provide for the
accumulation of General Fund moneys for capital outlay purposes (Education Code Section 42840).

Debt Service Funds: Debt service funds are established to account for the accumulation of resources for and
the payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt.

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund: This fund is used for the repayment of bonds issued for the District
(Education Code Sections 15125-15262). The board of supervisors of the county issues the bonds. The
proceeds from the sale of the bonds are deposited in the county treasury to the Building Fund of the
District. Any premiums or accrued interest received from the sale of the bonds must be deposited in the
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund of the District. The county auditor maintains control over the
District's Bond Interest and Redemption Fund. The principal and interest on the bonds must be paid by the
county treasurer from taxes levied by the county auditor-controller.

22

71



72

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C.

Basis of Presentation (continued)

Non-Major Governmental Funds (continued)

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds: Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee or agent
capacity for others that cannot be used to support the District's own programs. The key distinction between
trust and agency funds is that trust funds are subject to a trust agreement that affects the degree of
management involvement and the length of time that the resources are held.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund: The Private-Purpose Trust Fund is a scholarship trust fund, and consists only
of accounts such as cash and balancing net position accounts.

Student Body Fund: The Student Body Fund is an agency fund and, therefore, consists only of accounts
such as cash and balancing liability accounts, such as due to student groups. The student body itself
maintains its own general fund, which accounts for the transactions of that entity in raising and expending
money to promote the general welfare, morale, and educational experiences of the student body (Education
Code Sections 48930—48938).

Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus

Government-Wide and Fiduciary Financial Statements

The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Net Position equals assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced
by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those
assets. The net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on its use are either externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net position
restricted for other activities rfesults from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their use.

Governmental Funds
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in
the financial statements. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.

23



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Basis of Accounting — Measurement Focus (continued)

Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value,
is recorded under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is
recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. “Available” means the
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. Generally, “available” means collectible within the current
period or within 60 days after year-end. However, to achieve comparability of reporting among California
school districts and so as not to distort normal revenue patterns, with specific respect to reimbursements grants
and corrections to State-aid apportionments, the California Department of Education has defined available for
school districts as collectible within one year.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from the grants and entitlements is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are to be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the District on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available” criteria

for recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the District prior to the incurrence of
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the
District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet

and revenue is recognized.

Certain grants received that have not met eligibility requirements are recorded as unearned revenue. On the
governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period are
also recorded as unearned revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred. On the modified
accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the
related fund liability is incurred, as under the accrual basis of accounting. However, under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation
and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted
resources as they are needed.

24



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Quiflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net
Position

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The District's cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments

with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments

Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated
based on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be reported at fair value are stated
at cost or amortized cost. Fair values of investments in county and State investment pools are determined by

the program sponsor.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at historical cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental
fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund is determined by
its measurement focus. Capital assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-
wide statement of net position, but are not reported in the fund financial statements.

Capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements
during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair acquisition value as of the date received. The
District maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000. The District does not own any infrastructure as defined
in GASB Statement No. 34. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized. All reported capital
assets, except for land and construction in progress, are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life
Buildings and Improvements 25 - 50 years
Furniture and Equipment 15 - 20 years
Vehicles 8 years

Interfund Balances
On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified
as "Due from other funds/Due to other funds.” These amounts are eliminated in the governmental activities

columns of the statement of net position.

25



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E.

Assets, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net

Position (continued

Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned. The entire
compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For governmental
funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is recognized upon the occurrence of relevant
events such as employee resignations and retirements that occur prior to year-end that have not yet been paid
with expendable available financial resource. These amounts are recorded in the fund from which the

employees who have accumulated leave are paid.

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District’s policy is to record
sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken because such benefits do not vest, nor is payment
probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement

benefits when the employee retires.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a
timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds.

Premiums and Discounts
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement
of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the

straight line method.

Deferred Outflows/Deferred Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.

This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until

that time.

Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the defined
benefit pension plans (the Plans) of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) and the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plans. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

26

75



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net
Position (continued)

Fund Balance
Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are

as follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that are not in spendable form.
Examples include inventory, prepaid items, the long-term portion of loans receivable, and nonfinancial assets
held for resale. This classification also reflects amounts that are in spendable form but that are legally or
contractually required to remain intact, such as the principal of a permanent endowment.

Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally
enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Committed - The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal constraints self-
imposed by formal action of the Governing Board. The constraints giving rise to committed fund balance must
be imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts may be determined subsequent
to that date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. In contrast to restricted fund balance,
committed fund balance may be redirected by the government to other purposes as long as the original
constraints are removed or modified in the same manner in which they were imposed, that is, by the same
formal action of the Governing Board.

Assigned - The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the government intends to be used for
specific purposes. Assignments may be established either by the Governing Board or by a designee of the
governing body, and are subject to neither the restricted nor committed levels of constraint. In contrast to the
constraints giving rise to committed fund balance, constraints giving rise to assigned fund balance are not
required to be imposed, modified, or removed by formal action of the Governing Board. The action does not
require the same level of formality and may be delegated to another body or official. Additionally, the
assignment need not be made before the end of the reporting period, but rather may be made any time prior to
the issuance of the financial statements.

Unassigned - In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects the residual balance
that has not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes.
However, deficits in any fund, including the General Fund that cannot be eliminated by reducing or
eliminating amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative unassigned fund balance.

The District applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund
balance classifications could be used.

27



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

F. Interfund Achivity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a
requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other
financing sources/uses in governmental funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented in the financial statements.
Interfund transfers are eliminated in the governmental activities columns of the statement of activities.

G. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

H. Budgetary Data

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the California Education Code and requires the governing
board to hold a public hearing and adopt an operating budget no later than July 1 of each year. The District
governing board satisfied these requirements. The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout the
year to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events
unknown at the time of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed
appropriations by major object account.

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts when
the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the
budgetary statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been accounted for. For purposes
of the budget, on-behalf payments have not been included as revenue and expenditures as required under
generally accepted accounting principles.

I. Property Tax

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and April 10,
respectively. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31. The County
Auditor-Controller bills and collects the taxes on behalf of the District. Local property tax revenues are
recorded when received.

28

77



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

J. New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 72 — In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application. This standard addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value
measurements. The Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The District has
implemented GASB Statement No. 72 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 73 - In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions and Related Assets That are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. This standard establishes requirements for defined benefit pensions that
are not within the scope of GASB Statement 68 and amends certain provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. A
portion of this Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The District has implemented
GASB Statement No. 73 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 75 — In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This standard’s primary objective is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions. The
Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The District has not yet determined the impact
on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 80 — In January 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain
Component Units — an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. This standard’s primary objective is to improve
financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements for certain component units.
The Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016. The District has not yet determined the
impact on the financial statements.

29



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Summary of Cash and Investments

Governmental Fiduciary
Funds Funds
Investment in county treasury $ 4119983 %
Cash on hand and in banks 4976 206,376
Cash in revolving fund 10,000 -
Total cash and investments $ 4134959 § 206,376

B. Policies and Practices

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local agency
bonds, notes, or warrants within the state; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered state warrants or treasury
notes; securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of
deposit placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase
agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management
companies, certificates of participation, obligations with first priority security; collateralized mortgage
obligations; and the County Investment Pool.

Investment in County Treasury — The District maintains substantially all of its cash in the County Treasury in
accordance with Education Code Section 41001. The Glenn County Treasurer’s pooled investments are managed
by the County Treasurer who reports on a monthly basis to the board of supervisors. In addition, the function
of the County Treasury Oversight Committee is to review and monitor the County’s investment policy. The
comunittee membership includes the Treasurer and Tax Collector, the Auditor-Controller, Chief Administrative
Officer, Superintendent of Schools Representative, and a public member. The fair value of the District's
investment in the pool is based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County
Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the

amortized cost basis.

30

79



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
C. General Authorizations

Except for investments by trustees of debt proceeds, the authority to invest District funds deposited with the
county treasury is delegated to the County Treasurer and Tax Collector. Additional information about the
investment policy of the County Treasurer and Tax Collector may be obtained from its website. The table
below identifies the investment types permitted by California Government Code.

Maximum Maximum Maximum

Remaining Percentage of Investment in
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
U. S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U. S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker’s Acceptance 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None

D. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the
County Treasury. The District maintains a pooled investment with the County Treasury with an amortized
book value of $4,119,983, which approximated fair value.

E. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating

organization. The investments in the County Treasury are not required to be rated. As of June 30, 2016, the
pooled investments in the County Treasury were not rated.

31



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2- CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

F. Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The District
does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the California Government Code
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. The market value of
the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the
public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure public deposits by pledging first
trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit
issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured deposits.
As of June 30, 2016, the District's bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

G. Fair Value

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure an asset’s fair value. The following provides a summary of the hierarchy used to measure fair value:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs should be developed using the best information available under the
circumstances, which might include the District's own data. The District should adjust that data if reasonable
available information indicates that other market participants would use different data or certain circumstances
specific to the District are not available to other market participants.

Uncategorized - Investments in the Glenn County Treasury Investment Pool are not measured using the input
levels above because the District's transactions are based on a stable net asset value per share. All contributions

and redemptions are transacted at $1.00 net asset value per share.

The District's fair value measurements at June 30, 2016 were as follows:

Uncategorized
Investment in county treasury $ 4,119,983
Total fair market value of investments §$ 4,119,983

32



82

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2016 consisted of the following:

Non-Major Total
Govemmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Activities
Federal Government
Categorical aid $ 11,198 § 62202 % 73,400
State Government
Categorical aid 91,605 16,176 107,781
Lottery 80,021 - 80,021
Local Government
Other local sources 26,668 1,742 28,410
Total $ 209,492 % 80,120 $ 289,612

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 01, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 293,887 § - $ - $ 293,887
Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 293,887 - - 293,887
Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements 604,362 - - 604,362
Buildings & improvements 9,069,289 209,408 - 9,278,697
Furniture & equipment 1,252,758 133,599 13,176 1,373,181
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 10,926,409 343,007 13,176 11,256,240
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Land improvements 405,296 20,573 - 425,869
Buildings & improvements 3,953,191 236,645 - 4,189,836
Furniture & equipment 947,029 81,288 6,091 1,022,226
Total Accumulated Depreciation 5,305,516 338,506 6,091 5,637,931
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, net $ 5914,780 § 4501 § 7085 $ 5,912,196
Depreciation expense is allocated to governmental functions as follows:
Governmental Activities
Instruction $ 209,026
Home-to-school transportation 61,799
Food services 24,282
All other pupil services 7,137
All other general administration 10,455
Plant services 25,807
Total depreciation expense $ 338,506

33




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

A. Interfund Receivables/Payables (Due From/Due To)

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2016 were as follows:
The Non-Major Child Development Fund owed the General Fund $10,000 for repayment of temporary loan.
B. Operating Transfers
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2016 consisted of the following:
The General Fund transferred $454,000 to the Non-Major Deferred Maintenance Fund for gas line repair and
roofing projects.
NOTE 6 - ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities at June 30, 2016 consisted of the following:

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds District-Wide Activities
Payroll $ 60,605 §$ 3596 $ - $ 64,201
Vendors payable 166,023 6,115 - 172,138
Unmatured interest - - 11,427 11,427
Total $ 226,628 $ 9,711 $ 11,427 § 247,766

NOTE 7 - UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenue at June 30, 2016 consisted of $6,099 in the General Fund related to federal sources.

34 83



84

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

A schedule of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2016 consisted of the following:

Balance Balance Balance Due
July 01, 2015 Additions Deductions June 30, 2016 In One Year
Governmental Activities

General obligation bonds $ 701,200 $ - % 63,400 $ 637,800 $ 68,000
Capital leases 12,486 - 6,048 6,438 6,438
Early retirement incentive 270,228 - 40,585 229,643 44211
Compensated absences 18,533 7,885 - 26418 -
Net OPEB obligation 266,230 - 11,431 254,799 -
Net pension liability 4,518,960 1,151,139 - 5,670,099 -
Total $ 5,787,637 $ 1,159,024 $ 121,464 $ 6,825,197 % 118,649

- Payments for general obligation bonds are made in the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund.

- Payments for capital lease obligations are made in the General Fund.

- Payments for early retirement incentive are made in the General Fund.

- Payments for compensated absences are typically liquidated in the General Fund and the Non-Major
Governmental Funds.

A. Bonded Debt

Bonds Bonds
Issue Maturity Interest Original Outstanding Outstanding
Series Date Date Rate Issue July 01, 2015 Additions Deductions June 30, 2016
2011 Refunding August 30,2011 August 1,2023 4.30% $ 886,200 % 701,200 $ - $ 63,400 $ 637,800
$ 701,200 $ - % 63,400 $ 637,800

Election 1998

In an election held April 14, 1998, the voters authorized the District to issue and sell $1,340,000 of principal
amount of general obligation bonds. These bonds were issued for the purpose of constructing and acquiring a
new library and classrooms for Hamilton High School.

There was one issuance under this election, Series 1998, which was issued on August 6, 1998 with interest rates
ranging from 3.90% to 4.70%. The original issuance consisted of $430,000 in current interest serial bonds and
$910,000 in current interest term bonds. Interest accrues from August 1, 1998 and is payable semi-annually on
February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 1999. Principal is payable annually on August
1, commencing August 1, 2000 through the final maturity date of August 1, 2023. On August 30, 2011, the
District issued Refunding Notes to redeem the outstanding bonds.

35



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

A. Bonded Debt (continued)
2011 Refunding Notes

On August 30, 2011, the District issued $886,200 of refunding notes. The notes were issued to redeem the
outstanding Election 1998, Series 1998 bonds. The bonds were issued as current interest serial bonds and carry
interest of 4.30%. The transaction resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present value of debt
service on the old bonds and the new notes) of $30,720. The principal balance outstanding on June 30, 2016
amounted to $637,800.

B. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity — Bonds

The bonds mature through 2024 as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 68,000 $ 25963 % 93,963
2018 72,600 22941 95,541
2019 72,100 19,829 91,929
2020 76,500 16,635 93,135
2021 80,800 13,253 94,053
2022 - 2024 267,800 17,630 285,430
Total $ 637,800 $ 116,251 §$ 754,051

C. Capital Leases

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the District entered into a capital lease for a vehicle. The capital
lease has minimum lease payments as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Lease Payment
2017 $ 6,854
Total minimum lease payments 6,854
Less amount representing interest (416)
Present value of minimum lease payments  § 6438
36

85



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

D. Early Retirement Incentives

The District entered into a supplementary retirement plan with the California State Teachers’ Retirement
System (CalSTRS) whereby 8 employees (2 in the 2010-11 fiscal year, 2 in the 2011-12 fiscal year, and 4 in the
2014-15 fiscal year) of the District elected to take early retirement in exchange for supplementary retirement
benefits.

The District entered into a supplementary retirement plan with the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS) whereby 1 employee (in the 2014-15 fiscal year) of the District elected to take early
retirement in exchange for supplementary retirement benefits.

Future payments for the early retirement plans are as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Payment
2017 $ 60,757
2018 57,918
2019 55,079
2020 42,786
2021 28,341
2022 - 2026 43,485
Total minimum payments 288,366
Less amount representing interest (58,723)
Present value of minimum payments $ 229,643

E. Compensated Absences

Total unpaid employee compensated absences as of June 30, 2016 amounted to $26,418. This amount is
included as part of long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements.

F. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

The District follows GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. The District’s annual required contribution for the year ended June 30, 2016, was
$138,656, with net interest and other adjustments of ($4,747) for a net OPEB cost of $133,909. Contributions
made by the District during the year were $145,340, which resulted in a decrease to Net OPEB obligation of
$11,431. The ending OPEB balance at June 30, 2016 was $254,799. See Note 10 for additional information
regarding the OPEB obligation and the postemployment benefit plan.

G. Net Pension Liability

The District’s beginning net pension liability was $4,518,960 and increased by $1,151,139 during the year ended
June 30, 2016. The ending net pension liability at June 30, 2016 was $5,670,099. See Note 11 for additional
information regarding the net pension liability.

37



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 9 - FUND BALANCES

Fund balances were composed of the following elements at June 30, 2016:

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
Non-spendable
Revolving cash $ 10,000 $ - % 10,000
Stores inventory - 8,447 8,447
Total non-spendable 10,000 8,447 18,447
Restricted
Educational programs 594,372 29,129 623,501
Capital projects - 109,036 109,036
Debt service - 172,698 172,698
All others - 257,650 257,650
Total restricted 594,372 568,513 1,162,885
Committed
Adult education - 177,755 177,755
Deferred maintenance - 177,631 177,631
Total committed - 355,386 355,386
Assigned
Postemployment benefits 204,327 - 204,327
Total assigned 204,327 - 204,327
Unassigned
Reserve for economic uncertainties 677,281 - 677,281
Remaining unassigned 1,772,254 - 1,772,254
Total unassigned 2,449,535 . 2,449,535
Total $ 3,258,234 $ 932,346 $ 4,190,580

The District is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the need to reduce
service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted expenditures. The District's Minimum Fund
Balance Policy requires a Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, consisting of unassigned amounts, equal to no less
than 4 percent of General Fund expenditures and other financing uses.

38



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

A. Plan Description and Contribution Information

The District administers a single-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan that
provides medical, dental and vision insurance benefits to eligible retirees. The District implemented
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement #45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employees for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, in the 2009-2010 fiscal year under the unified status.

Membership of the plan consisted of the following;:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 9
Active plan members 59

Total* 68
Number of participating employers 1

*As of July 1, 2016 actuarial study

The District provides postemployment health care benefits based on the age and the years of service. All
employees may retire with District-paid benefits at age 55 and 20 years of minimum District service.
Combined services in CalSTRS or CalPERS benefits are paid until age 65.

B. Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are established and may be amended by the
District and District’s bargaining units. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go
financing requirements. For fiscal year 2015-16, the District contributed $145,340 to the Plan, all of which was
used for current premiums.

As of June 30, 2016, the District has not established a plan or equivalent that contains an irrevocable transfer of
assets dedicated to providing benefits to retirees in accordance with the terms of the plan and that are legally
protected from creditors.

39



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 10 ~-POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued)

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No.
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost
each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) {or funding excess) over a period
not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost for the
year, the amount actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB obligation to the Plan:

Annual required contribution $ 138,656
Interest on net OPEB obligation 10,649
Adjustment to annual required contribution (15,396)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 133,909
Contributions made (145,340)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation (11,431)
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of the year 266,230
Net OPEB obligation, end of the year $ 254,799

The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for the year ended June 30, 2016 and the preceding two years were as follows:

Annual
OPEB Percentage Net OPEB
Year Ended June 30, Cost Contributed Obligation
2016 $ 133,909 109% $ 254,799
2015 $ 141,391 75% $ 266,230
2014 $ 142,426 59% $ 230,212

40

89



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued)

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of the most recent actuarial evaluation consists of the following;:

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAALasa
Valuation  Actuarial Valuation Liability AAL Covered Percentage of
Date of Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
July 1,2016 $ - 8 1274492 § 1,274,492 0% b 4,309,663 30%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, investment returns, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the Plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to
that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with
the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2016, actuarial valuation, the alternative measurement method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a discount rate of 4 percent per year. For medical costs an 8 percent trend rate was used
and for dental and vision a 4 percent trend rate was used. A 30 year amortization period was used to allocate
the liability. Because there has not been a previous valuation to comply with GASB 43 and/or 45, it was not
necessary at this time for the District to make an election with respect to whether to use an “open” or “closed”
amortization period; or whether to use different amortization periods for different sources of the UAAL.

41



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer contributory retirement plans maintained by agencies
of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the California State Teachers' Retirement System
(CalSTRS), and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS). The District reported its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, pension expense, deferred
outflow of resources, and deferred inflow of resources for each of the above plans as follows:

Deferred Deferred inflows
Net pension outflows related related to
liability to pensions pensions Pension expense
STRS Pension $ 4,289,136 $ 615,483 $ 421,306 $ 380,105
PERS Pension 1,380,963 253,978 133,994 141,656
Total $ 5,670,099 $ 869,461 $ 555,300 $ 521,761

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS); a cost-sharing multiple
employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS. The plan
provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established
by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. CalSTRS issues a separate
comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
Copies of the CalSTRS annual financial report may be obtained from CalSTRS, 7919 Folsom Blvd., Sacramento, CA

95826.

Benefits provided
The CalSTRS defined benefit plan has two benefit formulas:

CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could be creditable
to CalSTRS

CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be creditable to
CalSTRS

CalSTRS 2% at 60

CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a minimum of five years of credited
service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year of credited service.
Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five years of credited service or as early as age 50 with 30 years
of credited service. The age factor for retirements after age 60 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent
at age 63 or older. Members who have 30 years or more of credited service receive an additional increase of up to
0.2 percent to the age factor, known as the career factor. The maximum benefit with the career factor is 2.4 percent

of final compensation.

42

91



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California State Teachers” Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Benefits provided (continued)
CalSTRS 2% at 62

CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a minimum of five years of credited
service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year of credited service.
An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age factor for retirement after age 62 increases with each
quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older.

Contributions

Active plan CalSTRS 2% at 60 and 2% at 62 members are required to contribute 9.20% and 8.56% of their salary for
fiscal year 2016, respectively, and the District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by CalSTRS Teachers' Retirement
Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2016 was 10.73% of annual payroll. The contribution
requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. Contributions to the plan from the District were

$327,759 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

On-Behalf Payments

The District was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to CalSTRS for K-12 education.
These payments consist of state general fund contributions of approximately $190,539 to CalSTRS (7.126% of 2013-
14 creditable compensation subject to CalSTRS).

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected
a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its
proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension
liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District's proportionate share of the

net pension liability $ 4,289,136

State's proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the District 2,268,474
Total $ 6,557,610

43



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions (continued)

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, and
rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2015. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was
based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, the District’s proportion
was 0.006 percent, which did not change from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of $380,105. In addition, the District
recognized pension expense and revenue of $175,672 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2016, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between projected and

actual earnings on plan investments $ - $ 349,634
Differences between expected and

actual experience - 71,672
Changes in proportion and differences

between District contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 287,724 -
District contributions subsequent

to the measurement date 327,759 -
$ 615,483 $ 421,306

44

93



24

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (continued)

The $327,759 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources

2017 $ 47,954 $ 99,354
2018 47,954 99,354
2019 47,954 99,354
2020 47,954 99,354
2021 47,954 11,945
2022 47,954 11,945

$ 287,724 $ 421,306

Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2014, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2015 using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Consumer Price Inflation 3.00%
Investment Yield* 7.60%
Wage Inflation 3.75%

* Net of investment expenses, but gross of administrative expenses.

CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom tables
are based on RP2000 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2006-June 30, 2010.

45



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Actuarial assumptions (continued)
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method

in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best-estimate ranges were
developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment consultant (Pension Consulting
Alliance - PCA) as an input to the process. Based on the model from CalSTRS consulting actuary’s (Milliman)
investment practice, a best estimate range was determined by assuming the portfolio is re-balanced annually and
that annual returns are lognormally distributed and independent from year to year to develop expected percentiles
for the long-term distribution of annualized returns. The assumed asset allocation by PCA is based on board policy
for target asset allocation in effect on February 2, 2012, the date the current experience study was approved by the
board. Best estimates of 10-year geometric real rates of return and the assumed asset allocation for each major asset
class used as input to develop the actuarial investment rate of return are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term*

Assumed Asset  Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 47% 450%
Private Equity 12% 6.20%
Real Estate 15% 4.35%
Inflation Sensitive 5% 3.20%
Fixed Income 20% 0.20%
Cash/Liquidity 1% 0.00%

100%

*10-year geometric average

46

95



96

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Discount rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60 percent. The projection of cash flows used to

determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made at
statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate increases per AB 1469. Projected inflows from investment
earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return (7.60 percent) and assuming that
contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense occur midyear. Based on those assumptions, the
Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.60 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.60 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.60
percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.60%) (7.60%) (8.60%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 6,476,262 $ 4,289,136 $ 2,471,458

Pension plan fiduciary net position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalSTRS
financial report.

47



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS); a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan
administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as
legislatively amended, within the Public Employees’ Retirement Laws. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive
annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the
CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA

95811.

Benefits provided

The benefits for the defined benefit plan are based on members’ years of service, age, final compensation, and
benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible members or beneficiaries.
Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after five years of credited service.

Contributions

Active plan members who entered into the plan prior to January 1, 2013, are required to contribute 7.0% of their
salary. The California Public Employees” Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) specifies that new members entering into
the plan on or after January 1, 2013, shall pay the higher of fifty percent of normal costs or 6.0% of their salary.
Additionally, for new members entering the plan on or after January 1, 2013, the employer is prohibited from
paying any of the employee contribution to CalPERS unless the employer payment of the member’s contribution is
specified in an employment agreement or collective bargaining agreement that expires after January 1, 2013.

The District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer
contribution rate for fiscal year 2016 was 11.847% of annual payroll. Contributions to the plan from the District
were $131,477 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability of $1,380,963 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, and
rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2015. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was
based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, the District’s proportion
was 0.009 percent, which did not change percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.

48

97



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California Public Employees” Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions (continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of $141,656. At June 30, 2016, the District
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following

sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments $ - $ 47,285
Differences between expected and
actual experience 78,924 -
Changes in assumptions - 84,850
Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 43,577 1,859
District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 131,477 -
$ 253978 % 133,994

The $131,477 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources
2017 $ 41,741 $ 41,721
2018 41,741 41,721
2019 39,019 38,731
2020 - 11,821
$ 122,501 $ 133,994

49



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2014, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2015 using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%
Investment Yield* 7.65%
Wage Inflation Varies by Entry Age and Service

*Net of investment expenses, but gross of administrative expenses.

CalPERS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom tables
are derived using CalPERS” membership data for all funds. The table includes 20 years of mortality improvements
using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period from 1997 to 2011.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block method
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. In determining the long-term expected
rate of return, both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash
flows were taken into account. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers will
make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the
funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years)
and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both
short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return
was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for
cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then
set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one

percent.

50

99



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (contirued)

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Actuarial assumptions (continued)
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These geometric

rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

Assumed Asset Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10* Years 11+**
Global Equity 51% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19% 0.99% 243%
Inflation Sensitive 6% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2% -0.55% -1.05%

100%

* An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
** An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent. A projection of the expected benefit
payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out. The test revealed the assets
would not run out. Therefore the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability for the Schools Pool. The results of the
crossover testing for the Schools Pool are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.65 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.65 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.65
percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.65%) (7.65%) (8.65%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 2,247,633 $ 1,380,963 $ 660,270

Pension plan fiduciary net position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS
financial report.

100 2L



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A.

Grants

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and
conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed
claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds.
However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on
the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 2016.

Litigation

The District is involved in various litigation arising from the normal course of business. In October 2014, the
District settled an employment dispute, and agreed to pay a total of $85,507 plus health and welfare benefits in
2014-15, $39,191 in 2015-16, and $39,191 in 2016-17.

In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the disposition of all other litigation pending is not expected
to have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 2016.

NOTE 13 - PARTICIPATION IN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITIES

The District is a member of two joint powers authorities (JPAs). The first is the California’s Valued Trust to provide
health and welfare benefits, and the other is the Golden State Risk Management Authority to provide property and
liability insurance and workers” compensation insurance. The relationship is such that the JPAs are not component
units of the District for financial reporting purposes.

52

101



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION

102



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Budgeted Amounts Actual* Variances -
Original Final (Budgetary Basis)  Final to Actual
REVENUES
LCFF sources $ 6,643,887 §$ 6,903519 $ 6,891,392 $ (12,127)
Federal sources 365,299 360,212 301,577 (58,635)
Other state sources 416,290 728,958 912,086 183,128
Other local sources 246,146 293,146 306,323 13,177
Total Revenues 7,671,622 8,285,835 8,411,378 125,543
EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries 3,014,660 3,228,660 3,151,925 76,735
Classified salaries 885,714 889,714 897,028 (7,314)
Employee benefits 1,429,042 1,451,963 1,393,995 57,968
Books and supplies 744,731 710,049 357,253 352,796
Services and other operating expenditures 980,621 1,126,827 1,005,420 121,407
Capital outlay 140,000 246,000 104,461 141,539
Other outgo
Excluding transfers of indirect costs 332,854 422,854 429,961 (7,107)
Total Expenditures 7,527,622 8,076,067 7,340,043 736,024
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 144,000 209,768 1,071,335 861,567
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (144,000) (644,000) (504,000) 140,000
Net Financing Sources (Uses) (144,000) (644,000) (504,000) 140,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - (434,232) 567,335 1,001,567
Fund Balance - Beginning 2,172,758 2,172,758 2,172,758 -
Fund Balance - Ending $ 2,172,758 $ 1,738,526 % 2,740,093 $ 1,001,567

* The actual amounts reported on this schedule do not agree with the amounts reported on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance for the following reasons:

*  On behalf payments of $190,539 are not included in the actual revenues and expenditures reported in this
schedule.

® Actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the
amounts reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the
amounts on that schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital
Outlay Projects and the Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits, in accordance with the fund
type definitions promulgated by GASB Statement No. 54.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

53 103



104

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAALasa
Valuation  Actuarial Valuation Liability AAL Covered Percentage of
Date of Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
July 1,2016 $ - % 1274492 § 1,274,492 0% 4,309,663 30%
July 1,2013 $ -8 1,288,342 § 1,288,342 0% 3,435,254 38%
July 1,2010 $ - % 1415519 $ 1,415,519 0% 4,973,564 28%

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

54



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY -
CALSTRS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.006% 0.006%
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability $ 4289136 % 3,454,068
States's proportionate share of the net pension

liability associated with the District 2,268,474 2,085,715

Total $ 6,557,610 § 5,539,783

District's covered-employee payroll $ 3,041,124 § 2,952,115
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 141.0% 117.0%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability. 76.5% 76.5%

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

55 105



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY -
CALPERS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.009% 0.009%
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability $ 1,380,963 $ 1,064,892
District’s covered-employee payroll $ 1,113,685 $ 1,030,826
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 124.0% 103.3%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability. 83.4% 83.4%

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

106 56



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - CALSTRS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Contractually required contribution $ 327,759 $ 262,013
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution* (327,759) (262,013)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - % -
District's covered-employee payroll $ 3,041,124  § 2,952,115
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll 10.78% 8.88%

*Amounts do not include on behalf contributions

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

57 107



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - CALPERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Contractually required contribution $ 131,477 $ 121,898
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (131,477) (121,898)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $
District's covered-employee payroll $ 1,113,685 $ 1,030,826
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll 11.81% 11.83%

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

108 58



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 34 as required supplementary information (RSI) for the General
Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. The budgetary
comparison schedule presents both (a) the original and (b) the final appropriated budgets for the reporting period
as well as (c) actual inflows, outflows, and balances, stated on the District’s budgetary basis. A separate column to
report the variance between the final budget and actual amounts is also presented, although not required.

Schedule of Funding Progress

This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 45 for all sole and agent employers that provide other
postemployment benefits (OPEB). The schedule presents, for the most recent actuarial valuation and the two
preceding valuations, information about the funding progress of the plan, including, for each valuation, the
actuarial valuation date, the actuarial value of assets, the actuarial accrued Lability, the total unfunded actuarial
liability (or funding excess), the actuarial value of assets as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability (funded
ratio), the annual covered payroll, and the ratio of the total unfunded actuarial liability (or funding excess) to

annual covered payroll.

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was
applicable. The schedule presents the District’s proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the
District’s proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s covered-employee
payroll, the District’s proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability as a percentage of the
employer’s covered-employee payroll, and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability.

Schedule of District Contributions

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was
applicable. The schedule presents the District’s statutorily or contractually required employer contribution, the
amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required
employer contribution, the difference between the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution and
the amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required
employer contribution, the District’s covered-employee payroll, and the amount of contributions recognized by the
pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution as a percentage of the
District’s covered-employee payroll.

59

109



110

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District incurred the following excesses of expenditures over appropriations
in individual major funds presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule by major object code as follows:

Expenditures and Other Uses

Budget Actual Excess
General Fund
Classified salaries $ 889,714 $ 897,028 $ 7,314
Other outgo
Excluding transfers of indirect costs $ 422,854 $ 429,961 $ 7,107

60



SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION

111



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE (ADA)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Second
Period Annual
Report Report
SCHOOL DISTRICT
TK/K through Third
Regular ADA 187.73 187.39
Fourth through Sixth
Regular ADA 136.04 136.23
Seventh through Eighth
Regular ADA 7820 77.97
Ninth through Twelfth
Regular ADA 310.29 309.05
TOTAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 71226 710.64

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

112 61



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2015-16
Minutes Actual Number

Grade Level Requirement Minutes of Days Status

Kindergarten 36,000 36,000 180 Complied
Grade1 50,400 52,660 180 Complied
Grade2 50,400 52,660 180 Complied
Grade3 50,400 52,660 180 Complied
Grade4 54,000 55,050 180 Complied
Grade5 54,000 55,050 180 Complied
Grade6 54,000 56,191 180 Complied
Grade7 54,000 56,191 180 Complied
Grade 8 54,000 56,191 180 Complied
Grade 9 64,800 65,955 180 Complied
Grade 10 64,800 65,955 180 Complied
Grade 11 64,800 65,955 180 Complied
Grade 12 64,800 65,955 180 Complied

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
62

113



114

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 (Budget) 2016 2015 2014

General Fund - Budgetary Basis**

Revenues And Other Financing Sources $ 8,244,336 $ 8411378 § 6,992,177 $ 6,540,004

Expenditures And Other Financing Uses 8,244,336 7,844,043 7,146,901 6,883,291
Net change in Fund Balance $ - % 567,335 $ (154,724) $ (343,287)
Ending Fund Balance $ 2,740,093 $ 2,740,093 $ 2,172,758 $ 2,327,482
Available Reserves* $ 2,509,735 $ 2449535 $ 1,670,803 $ 2,043,811
Available Reserves As A

Percentage Of Outgo 30.44% 31.23% 23.38% 29.69%
Long-term Debt $ 6,706,548 $ 6,825,197 % 5,787,637 % 1,131,643
Average Daily

Attendance At P-2 713 712 695 701

The General Fund balance has increased by $412,611 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2016-17 budget
projects no further change. For a District this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least 4% of
General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).

The District has incurred operating deficits in two of the past three years. Total long term obligations have
increased by $5,693,554 over the past two years.

Average daily attendance has increased by 11 ADA over the past two years. An increase of 1 ADA is anticipated
during the 2016-17 fiscal year.

*Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balance within the General Fund and the Special Reserve Fund
for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects.

**The actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the amounts
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the amounts on that
schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital OQutlay Projects and
Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits, in accordance with the fund type definitions promulgated by
GASB Statement No. 54. On behalf payments of $190,539 are not included in the actual revenues and expenditures
reported in this schedule.

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

63



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Special Reserve
Fund forOther  Special Reserve
Than Capital Fund for
General Ouflay Postemployment
Fund Projects Benefits
June 30, 2016, annual financial and budget report fund balance $ 2,740,093 $ 313814 $ 204,327
Adjustments and reclassifications:
Increase (decrease) in total fund balances:
Fund balance transfer (GASB 54) 518,141 (313,814) (204,327)
Net adjustments and reclassifications 518,141 (313,814) (204,327)
Tune 30, 2016, audited financial statement fund balance $ 3,258,234 $ - % -

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

64 115



99

‘uoreuriojut Axrejuswsiddns 0y sjou Surdueduronoe asg

£50'TS6 $ 869TL1 § 0912 $ 90728 $ 84TT81 $ 660'99C $ €6CCl $ €99'60 $ douefeq punj pue sanIiqel] [e10L,
976 869'CLT 0€8'1Z 907'L8 1€9°2L1 £60'99C 651'T STL'B0T saduejeq punj QoL
98€'SSE - - - 1€9'2L1 : g GCL'LIT pajjurmoy)
£15'896 869°TLL 0€8'1T 90748 - 069482 6S1C 046'9C pajrnsey
38 £ - . - Lv¥'8 . - s[qepuads-uoN
SHONVIVE ANNA
4744 = * » 79V [4 PET'0L 826'% sagiiqeryyoL
00001 ] E * = - 00001 - Spuny 12130 03 ang
494 $ - $ - $ - § L3797 $ T $ ¥er $ 826’7 g SIN[TGEL] panIddy
SALLITIAVIT
£50'T56 $ 869CTLL $ 0€8'1 $ 907'/8 § 8/T'T81 $ 660992 $ €6TCl $ €59'60T $ S}|assy [ejo L
L7Y'8 - . - X Vi = * Ax03u3AU1 $3101G
02108 G8¢ 0¥ 091 €01 £%8'9G 20411 78601 91qEATIIAI SHUNONY
067'€98 $ EIP'Til $ 06412 $ o9v0'L8 $ 18t $ 608'00C $ 98¢ $ 1L9'861 $ SIUUIISIAUL pUE yse)
SLASSV
spung punyj uoydwapay  spaloig fepng punj pung puny euajaye) pung pung
[guswuas0  Pjsazajujpuog  [eide) rojpung  sapyweg [Hide) DUBUNUTEIN wawmdojaadg  uogeInpy inpy
Tolep-uoN 9Az13saY [eradg pamyaq PITD
910z ‘0¢ ANNI

LHAHS HONVIVE DNINIIINOD
LOTYLSIA TOOHDS A4I4INN NOLTINVH

116



99

uoneuntojur A1ejusursiddns 0 sjou Surduedurodoe sag

9bECE6 $ 96971 § 0€8'1Z $ 907'/8 § 1£9'441 $ 260997 § 6S1T § STL'hoT $ Surpug - adueeq pung
960160'1 916'G9L T10'05T £89'FS 166°S1T €L6'€HT 651C 878941 Suruurag - aouvreq punyg
(0s2'351) 28.'9 (281'307) 655'CE (026'26) jZA%44 - L68'ST FONVIVE ANNJ NTIONVHD LIN
00075y = - . 000'75¥ - - - (s3s)) saxmog Suweuy g 19N
000'5S¥ = - - 000'5¥ E - s U1 s13jsues],
(s3sn) saamog Supweury Y0
(0s£'219) 7849 (z81'e02) 6¥G'CE (0z6'16%) pelee - £68'ST samyipuadxg 1340
SaNu3AY Jo (Aouapya() ssady
£EE'9ES'L 281'26 99.'0€¢ = $80°C6¥ 6£6'6T7 206'901 TSH'P8L samyrpuadxg reo],
884'9¢ 8848 = - v - . - 13130 pue 153133u]
00¥'€9 00%'€9 - : - - c . redutig
3014195 193
258'cTL - 89/'0€C = ¥80'6¥ - . = 53014125 Jue[d
UOTJRIISIUTWIPE [RIDUAD)
6£6'6TF 4 - = - 6£6'6CH - - 53014135 poog
sao1aas [idng
£78'95 > 2 - - 5 - £78'95 UOHEIISIUTIIPE 3115 [00YdG
S3J1A13S P3Je}2i-Uo1onIjsuyp
1£5'9€T - = - - - 206'80T 679'4TL uojonisu]
JuanIny
SAUNLIANTIXE
€95'526 0£6'36 98672 6757 #9L €90'25¥% 206'301 6¥€'01C SONUIAIY 1e40 L
960'291 04686 62 6¥5'TE 91 0£9'8C 4 099'1 530.1M0S [30] 12Y10
0%8'c9¢ = £0S'TT » . 18%°¢E 858'801 766’261 S30IN05 3)e15 1YI0
£¥9'00% § - $ - § - $ - § 756’682 A $ 56901 § 3241105 [eJ3p3y
SANNIATY
spum j punyj uondwapay spaloig Kepng pung punyg punj eusjare) punj pung
[auaunusAen  Wysarajujpuog [ende)rojpung  saumpeg fepdey AdURUINUTLI Juaurdogasaq uonednpy ynpy
10{ey-uoN aAI3s9Y [eradg pauaja g [}

9102 ‘0€ ANN[ AHANH ¥VIA FHL ¥Od
SHONVIVE ANNA NI SEDONVHD ANV ‘SHANLIANAIXH ‘SHANIATYE 40 INFWA.LV.LS DNINIFINOD

LOTLLSIA TOOHDS A4IdINA NOLTIWNVH

117



118

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

JUNE 30, 2016

The Hamilton Unified School District was established on July 1, 2009 upon the unification of Hamilton High School
District and Hamilton Elementary School District. The boundaries of the former districts changed in accordance
with the approved plan of unification. The District is located in Glenn County and is currently operating one high
school, one elementary school, two community day schools, one continuation high school, one preschool, and an

adult education program.

GOVERNING BOARD
Member Office Term Expires
Tomas Loera President December 2018
Judy Twede Clerk December 2016
Gabriel Leal Member December 2016
Rosalinda Sanchez Member December 2018
Hubert “Wendall” Lower Member December 2016

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATORS

Charles Tracy
Superintendent

Diane Lyon

Chief Business Official

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

67



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1-PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA)

Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state
funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at

various grade levels and in different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the District and whether the
District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46208. During the year ended June
30, 2016, the District participated in the Longer Day incentive funding program. As of June 30, 2016, the District
had not yet met its target funding.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis
This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget
information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to continue as a going

concern for a reasonable period of time.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the Annual
Financial and Budget Report Unaudited Actuals to the audited financial statements.

Combining Statements — Non-Major Funds

These statements provide information on the District’s non-major funds.

Local Education Agency Organization Structure

This schedule provides information about the District's boundaries and schools operated, members of the
governing board, and members of the administration.

68

119



OTHER INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORTS

120



chrlsty@whlt 77

A PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Christy White, CPA
Michael Ash, CPA Independent Auditors’ Report

Heather Rubio Governing Board
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
SAN DIEGO Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Hamilton Unified School District, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Hamilton Unified School District’s basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated December 9, 2016.

LOS ANGELES
SAN FRANCISCO/BAY AREA

Corporate Office:
348 Olive Street
San Diego, CA 92103

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

toll-free: 877.220.7229 In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Hamilton

;:l 211?)'222?)._2?)3; Unified School District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
wwwi.christywhite.com determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of

expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified School District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified School
District’s internal control.

Licensind Dy thy Caiiforn
Staty Board of Accounticy A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

&= 121




122

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hamilton Unified School District's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards

in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

C iy White Aosicke,

San Diego, California
December 9, 2016

70



Christy White, CPA
Michael Ash, CPA

Heather Rubio

SAN DIEGO
LOS ANGELES
SAN FRANCISCO/BAY AREA

Corporate Office:
348 Olive Street
San Diego, CA 92103

toll-free: 877.220.7229
tel: 619:270.8222
fax: 619.260.9085

www.christywhite.com

Lacenard by tie Califurany

State Bourid of Accountunic;

ohrlsty@whlt e

A PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATIONM

REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Independent Auditors’ Report

Governing Board
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, California

Report on State Compliance

We have audited Hamilton Unified School District's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 2015-16 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local
Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, issued by the California Education Audit
Appeals Panel that could have a direct and material effect on each of Hamilton Unified
School District’s state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, as identified below.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Hamilton Unified
School District's state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the 2015-16 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, issued by the California Education Audit Appeals
Panel as regulations. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the state
programs noted below occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about Hamilton Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with
the requirements referred to above. However, our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Hamilton Unified School District's compliance with those requirements.

71 123



124

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, Hamilton Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that are applicable to the state programs noted in the table below for the year ended
June 30, 2016.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items #2016-1 and #2016-2. Our opinion on state
compliance is not modified with respect to these matters.

Hamilton Unified School District’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs and corrective action plan. Hamilton Unified School
District’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Procedures Performed

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine
Hamilton Unified School District's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following
items:

PROCEDURES
PROGRAM NAME PERFORMED
Attendance Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Kindergarten Continuance Yes
Independent Study No, seebelow
Continuation Education Not Applicable
Instructional Time Yes
Instructional Materials Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive Not Applicable
Gann Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes
Juvenile Court Schools Not Applicable
Middle or Early College High Schools Not Applicable
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes
Educator Effectiveness Yes
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes

(Continued on the next page)

72



Procedures Performed (continued)

We did not perform testing for Independent Study because total ADA claimed was below the threshold required

for testing.

PROCEDURES

PROGRAM NAME PERFORMED
After School Education and Safety Program Not Applicable
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based Not Applicable
Immunizations Yes
Attendance; for charter schools Not Applicable
Mode of Instruction; for charter schools Not Applicable
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study;

for charter schools Not Applicable
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based

Instruction; for charter schools Not Applicable
Annual Instructional Minutes -~ Classroom Based; for

charter schools Not Applicable
Charter School Facility Grant Program Not Applicable

Loy Wi Aesvista.

San Diego, California

December 9, 2016

73

125



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS

126



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors' report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted?

FEDERAL AWARDS

The District was not subject to Uniform Guidance Single Audit for the year ended
June 30, 2016 because federl award expenditures did not exceed $750,000.

STATE AWARDS
Internal control over state programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiency (ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for state programs:

74

Unmodified

No

None Reported

No

No

Yes

Unmodified

127



128

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FIVE DIGIT CODE
20000
30000

AB 3627 FINDING TYPE

Inventory of Equipment
Internal Control

There were no financial statement findings for the year ended June 30, 2016.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
10000 Attendance
40000 State Compliance
42000 Charter School Facilities Programs
60000 Miscellaneous
61000 Classroom Teacher Salaries
62000 Local Control Accountability Plan
70000 Instructional Materials
71000 Teacher Misassignments
72000 School Accountability Report Card

FINDING #2016-1 - UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT (40000)

Criteria: Students classified as free or reduced price meal eligible (FRPM)(who are not directly certified) on the
CALPADS 1.18 FRPM/English Learner/Foster Youth — Student List Report must have supporting documentation
that indicates the student was eligible for the determination. Auditors are required to verify compliance with
Education Code Section 42238.02(b)(3)(b) in Section W of the 2015-16 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting.

Condition: 1 of 71 students tested from the CALPADS 1.18 FRPM/English Learner/Foster Youth — Student List
Report who was classified as FRPM did not have proper supporting documentation to support their designation.
When the error is extrapolated over the impacted population, 4 students were identified as ineligible.

Effect: The District is not in compliance with State requirements.

Cause: Clerical oversight.

Context: 4 of 1,810 (617 for 2015-16, 594 for 2014-15, and 599 for 2013-14) students reported in the District’s
Unduplicated Pupil Count did not have proper supporting documentation to support their FRPM designation.

76

129



130

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FINDING #2016-1 - UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT (40000) (continued)

Questioned Costs: $1,094, calculated as follows:

Section 1: Section 2:
UPP Audit Adjustment Regular UPP AHlernate UPP*
1 |Total Adjusted Enroliment from the UPP exhibit as of P-2 2,192 2,188
2 |Total Adjusted Unduplicated Pupil Count from the UPP exhibit as of P-2 1,810 1,805
3 |Number of Unduplicated Pupil Count audit adjustment 4)
4 |Revised Adjusted Unduplicated Pupil Count 1,806 1,801
5 |UPP calculated as of P-2 0.8257 0.8250
6 [Revised UPP for audit finding 0.8239 0.8231
7 |Greater of Revised UPP for audit finding from Section 1 or 2 0.8239
8 |Charter Schools Only: Determinative Schooi District Concentration Cap
9 |Revised UPP adjusted for Concentration Cap 0.8239
LCFF Target Base Grant Funding Estimated Values '

10 |Total Base Grant Funding as of P-2

$5,781,445

LCFF Target Supplemental Grant Funding Audit Adjustment

11 |Target Supplemental Grant Funding calculated as of P-2

$954,748

12 |Revised Target Supplemental Grant Funding for audit finding

$952,667

13 |[Target Supplemental Grant Funding audit adjustment

($2,081)

LCFF Target Concentration Grant Funding Audit Adjustment

14 |Target Concentration Grant Funding calculated as of P-2

$0

15 |Revised Target Concentration Grant Funding for audit finding

$0

16 |Target Concentration Grant Funding audit adjustment

$0

Estimated Cost of Unduplicated Pupil Count Audit Adjustment for LEAs funded at LCFF Target

17 |Total Target Supplemental and Concentration audit adjustment

($2,081)

Estimated Cost of Unduplicated Pupil Count Audit Adjustment for LEAs funded en LCFF Floor and Gap

18 |Statewide Gap Funding Rate as of P-2

21 |Estimated Cost of Unduplicated Pupil Count audit adjustment

Recommendation: We recommend that the District ensure that all students listed as FRPM in the CALPADS 1.18
FRPM/English Learner/Foster Youth — Student List Report have proper documentation to support their CALPADS

designation.

District Response: Food Service Staff will notify the CALPADS person that the “Annual verification” of the NSLP
Applications has been completed, and Nutri kids and Aeries have been updated with its findings (students who
changed from free to reduced, etc.). The State Annual verification report deadline is typically Nov. 15%. The
CALPADS person can assume and or / be notified that all verifications are complete and the NSLP data can be
uploaded to CALPADS. CALPADS person will process the final extracts of the program data to capture any NSLP
changes for the final certification of Fall 1. Deadline is typically 1t week in December. If the “Annual Verification”
isn’t complete by the FALL 1 CALPADS deadline, then the CALPADS person will use the “amendment” window

to decertify and re-submit the data.

77




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FINDING #2016-2 - CLASSROOM TEACHER SALARIES (61000)

Criteria: As set forth in California Education Code section 41372, a unified school district should expend a
minimum of 55% of the District’s current expenses of education towards salaries of classroom teachers.

Condition: In the 2015-16 fiscal year, the District did not meet the minimum percentage requirement.

Effect: The District’s current expense of education for the year audited June 30, 2016 was $6,445,108 and the total
salaries and benefits for classroom teachers was $3,395,829. The District was below the minimum required
percentage of 55% by 2.31% which calculates out to a deficiency of $148,882.

Cause: Due to recent budget cuts the District did not meet the minimum requirements.

Perspective/Context: The minimum percentage required by the State of California is 55% for a unified school
district. The District only spent 52.69% on classroom teacher salaries in the 2015-16 fiscal year.

Questioned Costs: The questioned costs are the deficiency of $148,882.

Recommendations: We recommend that in the future, the District monitor their expenses towards salaries of
classroom teachers against their total expenses to be sure that they meet the 55% minimum requirement.

District Response: The District submitted a waiver to Glenn County Office of Education and does not expect a
questioned cost.

78

131



6/

'STOT ‘0¢ 2un papus 4vah ayy 10f s3500 pauoiysanb 1o sSutpusf 11pny 1o1ud ou asam Yy

9107 ‘0€ ANN{ AAANH YVIA FHL Y04
SONIANIA LIANV YOI¥d 40 T1INAIHIS AYVININNS
LONLSIA TOOHDS QAIJINN NOLTINVH

132



January 2017

Glenn County Office of Education

Healthy Youth Act Program Questionnaire

2016-2017

The Glenn County Office of Education will be utilizing Teen Talk for middle and high schools
from Health Connected. In February, GCOE staff will be receiving training and becoming
Trainers of Trainers for Teen Talk. Due to the limited amount of time that is available for
training and instruction this school year, the Glenn County Office of Education is offering
districts within Glenn County Healthy Youth Act services and/or resources.

Teen Talk Middle School (grades 7-8) and Teen Talk High School (grade 9) each include 14 lessons,
taught over 10 hours, typically across two weeks. Teen Talk was developed for use in California schools
and was designed to be inclusive of diverse racial, ethnic, religious, and sexual identities, for mixed-
gender classrooms. All activities are available in English and Spanish. http://www.health-
connected.org/#lour-curricula/czis

Please check the box below to indicate the level of GCOE services and/or resources that are
desired by your district for the 2016-2017 school year.

c My district plans on utilizing trainers provided by GCOE, purchasing our own curriculum
and having our own staff provide instruction to district students to be in compliance with
state law.

[ My district plans on having GCOE staff provide instruction to district students to be in
compliance with state law.

1 My district does not require Healthy Youth Act assistance from the Glenn County Office of
Education at this time.

Superintendent Signature Date

133



THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT ~ EDUCATION CODE §§ 51930-51939
COMPREHENSIVE SEXUAL HEALTH AND HIV PREVENTION EDUCATION

FAST FACTS ABOUT THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT

In January 2016, California adopted a new law covering comprehensive sexual health
education and HIV prevention education in public schools, Education Code Sections 51930-
51939 (AB 329). Here are some facts about the law.

e Comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education is required at least once in
middle school and at least once in high school. Abstinence-only instruction is not
permitted.

e Allinstruction in all grades must be age-appropriate and medically accurate (meaning
accepted by organizations like the American Academy of Pediatrics) and may not promote
religious doctrine. All elements of the instruction must be in alignment with each other.

e Sexual health education must respect and address the needs of students of all genders and
sexual orientations. Instruction must affirmatively recognize different sexual orientations
and be inclusive of same-sex relationships when providing examples of couples or
relationships. It must also teach about gender, gender expression, and gender identity, and
explore the harm of negative gender stereotypes.

e Beginning in grade 7, instruction must include information about the safety and
effectiveness of all FDA-approved methods of preventing pregnancy and transmission of
HIV and other sexually transmitted infections (including condoms, contraceptives, and
antiretroviral treatment) and abstinence. It must also include information about HIV,
pregnancy, sexual harassment, sexual assault, healthy relationships, and sex trafficking, as
well as local resources for accessing care and students’ rights to access care.

e Parents must be notified that their student will receive sexual health and HIV prevention
education and be allowed to view the materials prior to instruction. Parents/guardians may
remove their student from the instruction by submitting a request in writing.

e Teachers or outside speakers must have training in and knowledge of the most recent
medically accurate research on the topic. District must also periodically provide training to
all district personnel who provide HIV prevention instruction. Outside organizations or
speakers must also follow all laws when they present.

e [nstruction must be appropriate for students with disabilities, English [anguage learners, and
students of all races and ethnic and cultural backgrounds. Schools must make sure that all
students can get sexual health education and HIV prevention education in a way that works
for them.

THIS RESOURCE WAS DEVELOPED BY THE ACLU OF CALIFORNIA,
A collaboration of the ACLU of Northern California, the ACLU of Southern California, and the ACLU of San Diego & Imperial Counties

For more information, go to http://www.aclunc.org/sex ed.
If you are concerned that your schoal is not following the law, contact the ACLU for help.

134



'S$]UB}NSUOD 3PISINO Jo siayeads 1sang Aq Jo siayoes) Jualayip Aq papiaosd
3Je sjuauodwod [ENPIAIPUI I USAD ‘S|BlIS)EW PUB UOIONJISUI [{B SSOJDE JUS)S|SUOD S| JUSIUOI pUEB 3UO| "(9)E€6TS § 23 Y 1OV HLNOA AHL1V3IH
ynoA AyljeaH ejuloji|ed ayi jo asodind ay3 poddns pue yum usije uoreanpa yijeay jenxas aAisuayaidwon Jo sjusuodwiod Iy ¥ 40 3SO4¥Nd HLIM SNOITV v

' $15180|038UAD pue Sued1R1SqQ

40 989]|07 UBILIBWY 3y} pue ‘$o1leIpad JO AWSpPedY UB3LISWY 8Y] ‘UOIILID0SSY YI|eaH J1jqnd UBDIISWY 3yl ‘UOIIUSA3Id pue
|043U07) 9s€e3sIQ 104 SIZIUID [BI3P3S BYI SE YINS ‘P|al) JUBAS|S) Y1 Ul osiuadxa yum saiouade pue suoljeziuesio |euojssajold
Aq aA1133(qo pue 21e4n3de se paziudodal pue ‘ajeitdoldde asaym ‘sieulnof pamalaai-1aad uy paysignd pue spoylaw JuNU3IIS
Yum aoueljdwod ul pe1onpuod yaiessal Ag paroddns Jo payliaa, se (TEETS § DI U pauyap si ,ALvHNI0Y ATIVIIQIN,

JALLDIrA0
"()€E6TS § 03 "2ARd3(Qo pue 311NIJE A||RJIPSW S| UONEBWIOJUL [BNYIRY IV ANV 31VYNIOV ATIVIIQINW '€ ]

. dnoig age
1o 38 3y} 4oy [e21dAY Axoeded |eloineyaq pue ‘|euOIIOWS ‘IAIHUE0D BUIdO[IASP UO Paseq ‘51U3ISS|OPE pue UaIp|Iyd Jo sdnoid
o8e Jo sage Jegnaiued o1 s|gelns spoylaw Bulyoeal pue ‘safessaw ‘sa1dol, se (e)TE6TS § DI Ul PRUYRP S| ,3LVIYdOHddY-19V.,

'(e)€E6TS § D3 e1endoidde-aBe aue sjelalew pue uondNIIsu| 31VI¥dOYddv-39V T ]

"(e)yE6TS § (D3) spo) uoneanp3 elusoje) *Jooyss Ysiy ui 33uo Ises| 1e pue JO0HIS HOIH ANY 100HDS
Jooyas 3|pplw Jo Y31y Jojunf uj 8uo 1ses) e JySne] aJe UOIIEINPa UoNUBARId AlH PUR UOIIEINP3 Y)jesy [enxas saisusyaidwon 310AIA NI NOILDNYISNI T ]

SINIWIHINDIY LNIFINOD B IILVWNINVHOOYd

¢ 1T ot 6 8 L 9 S v € T T .M :(Addeieyy|e ajpud) LHONVYL SI NOILYONAGT HLIVIH TYAXIS HIIHM NI SIAVYED

:JNVN TOOHDS ‘JNVN 1D141S1d

6€6TS — 0€6TS §§ 300D NOILYINA3 VINYO4ITVD
SLOIYLSIA 404 LSITIDIHD NOILVYNTVAIT IDNVIT4INOD

1OV HLNOA AHLTVIH VINYO4ITVYD 2T — £ S3AVYD

6E6TS—0E6TS §§ 300D NOILvINa3
SLIIMLSIO YOS LSITNDIHI NOILYNTYAI IINVITIINGD LDV HLINOA AHLIV3IH VINYO411VD :2T~L SIQVYD

135



(T)(e)¥E6TS § D3 Apog UewWINY 3Y) UO 5193443 JISY1 PUE ‘S||S JAYIO SE [|3m S ‘AlH JO 21njeu SU1 SJaA0)

*(1)€€6TS § D3 "uoiBija s10Wo0.d JO YIBS] 10U OP S[BIIIRW PUE UORINIISU|

‘spie Asejjixne yum Jo
SIEWIOJ BA1JBUIDYIE UI S|ELIBIRW PUB BINDLLIND PBIJpOW alinbal Aew UOIIINIISU ‘'SINIIGESID YHM SIUSPNIS JO SPadu ayl 198W 0

"(EM(P)EEBTS § D3 "samilIqesip yum sidnd 03 3)q1ssa00. Ajlenba a.e sjelisiew pue UoINIsyY|

"'6E6TS-0E6TS §§ 03
Uy syuswalinbal Jay1o yim Aldwiod asimiaylo pue suatainbas wnnoLng Bunsixs YIim JUSSISU0D 218 endLUINd 31euidlR 34

se Juo| siauJea| s||3u3 a1e OYM SIUIPNIS JO SPIBU 31 193W 0] BNDLLIND SIBUISIE JO 35N Y3 10} SMO||B 907 UOIIEINPT 3Y [

"(2)(P)eEBTS § D3 "ssauues] ysijBu3 aJe oym syuspnls 03 djqe|ieAe Aj|enba aue s|eLIa1eW pue uoINIIsY|

‘(u) ‘(8)ee61s *(9)oEbTS §§ D3

"SUOISIIap Ayyjeay syew pue sdiysuolle|sa 2)es pue ‘aAlsod ‘Ayljesy dojsasg e

pue ‘Ajwey pue ‘@8elsew ‘sdiysuolieja
‘uonejuaiio [enxas ‘Japual ‘aBew Apoq Jusido[BAsp pue YimoJs Jusdssjope Sujuisduod sepnyne Ayleay dojsasg e
*Adueugaid papusiulun Wouy pue S|1S J9YI0 puB A[H LWL Y3esy sAonpoldal pue [enxas Jisy) 199101 e

10} S)U3PNIS 3|qRUS 0} SIIANIE SUIPING-|[IYS SPNIDUI S|BLIIBW PUB UOIIINIISU|

'sJ0lABYDq
pue sdiysuoiie|as ajes pue ‘sansod ‘Ayjeay aney o1 Aiessadau s||1%s pue sSpsjmousy ayr yum sjidnd spinoad o] (g
pue ‘pua 1ey3 ys!|dwiodde 03 3uepINg pue s|00} JE3|I YIM 51018InP3 apircid pUB UOIINIISUI
uonuanasd AJH pue yijeay [enxas psselqun pue ‘a1elndde ‘aAisuayaidwon ‘parelSaur saaal sjdnd ainsus o), 7
Judwdo|aAsp uewny jo 1ed [ewJou e se Aljenxas jo uipurisiapun sj0wo.d 0] (€
Allwey pue ‘98eluew ‘sdIysuOie[aJ ‘UCIIEIUSLIO |BNXDS ‘1opua8d ‘a8ewi Apoq quswdolaasp pue
YImou3 Jusdsajope Bulu1adU0d sapnie Ayljeay do(aasp 03 psau Aayj sijiys pue a3pajmouy ayy yum sjidnd spiaoid of (g
AsueuBaud papusiulun woly pue si|s Jay3lo pue

AIH Woj yajeay sai3dnpaidal pue [enxas J1ay3 12930.d 03 AJessaoau sjjiys pue a8pajmouy ayy yum sidnd e spiaosd o) (T

{9)0€6TS § 03 11OV HLNOA AHLIVAH VINYO4YD IHL 40 3504HNd

6E6TS—0E6TS §§ 30D NOILVYINA3
SLOTY1SIQ 404 LSITNIIHI NOILYNIVAI IDINVITdINOD LDV HLNOA AHLTVIH VINSO41TYD ‘21-L S3AvVyYO

{SI1S) SNOILDTANI
QILLINSNVYHL A1IVNX3S
¥3IHLO ANV AIH 40 38NLYN

3NIY1D0a SNOIBIN3Y
ANV 4O ONILOWOYd LON

S3LLNIEVSIA HLIM
SIN3IANLS OL 3181SSI0V

SHINYVYI
HSITON3 O1 3718ISS300V

aisvg
STINIS ANV 39Q3TMON

‘S

136



‘0z § D3 o5jo 235 () (P)EEETS § DI "UolIBIUBLIO |BENXSS ‘UOIBI|DI “A}DIUY1S JO 3.4 ‘Ajijeuoiieu ‘Uolssaudxa Japuad
‘Anuapi Jopuss Japuad ‘Ajigesip Jo siseq ay} uo uosiad Aue jsulede seiq a1owo.d 10 33334 30U OP S|BLIBIEW PUB UOIINASU|

‘(6)(e)YE6TS § 03

"aJeo (ejeuaud jo asuepodwi ay) (g
pue ‘uejul ue jJo Apolsnd SuLISPUBLINS U0 ME| BY3 INOQE Uolewuou| (g
‘uoipoge pue ‘uondope ‘Bunuased (T

103 pajiw)| Jou 1nq ‘Suipnjaut ‘sswodino Asueudaid sjge|ieAe AjjeS3) | Jo uoIssnIsIp 9AI193[q0 ue sapn|ay|
‘(e)e)rE6TS § D3 *Adueudaud pue suoiydsul paniwsuely Ajjenxas
J3y1o pue A[H Sunusaaid Jo spoyisiu Jay1o Uo Uoliewlojur 3eindde Ajjedipaw Suipiaold osje ajiym Alalloe |enxas SulAejap

40 anjea ay3 s1an0) “Asueudaid papuaiuiun Juaasid 03 Aem ulEUISI AjUO U SI BSIN0JIBIUI [ENXSS LIOJ) SIUBURSYE pUe Si1S
431310 pue A|H JuaAa.d 03 Aem ulead Ajuo a3 si ash 8nup uoiIaful pue AJIAIRDE [ENXSS WOJY 3JUSUINSYE Jel) UOIIBLIIOMI SBPIACLd

1045 8y3 pue ‘spuejdwl ‘Yated ayj ‘Bury ay1 'SpoyiswW Siallieg Jay10 pue SWOopUod 3jeWa) pue ajew ‘|jid oyl ‘uonndadeyuod
AduaBIaWa “(sQNI) S22IASP BULIBINEIIL| :0L AILIWM LON 38V LN9 '3ANTONI SAOHLIW JAILIIDVYINOD AIAOHIdVY-vad

(6)e)vE6TS §
03 “Aoueudsud Bunusasid ul spoyiaw sAndadesiuod pacidde-yQ4 ||e Jo A13JES pUB SS3UIAINIRLS B} INOGE UOIBWLIOUI SBPIACI

/T pUb £ sWwall 235 "PAseIqUN pue 31einade Ajjedipaw aq 1sNIA ‘310N

{£)(e)¥E6TS § D3 "paisal 198 03 si aaisod
-AJH s! 8UC Ji mouy 03 Aem A|uo ay3 pue ‘AJH Su130eJIUOD Jo ysi swios Je ale d|doad |je ‘Asue)dadxa ay| |ewIou B aABY S|ENPIAIPUI
aAlisod-AlH paieaJs A|nyssaaons Jey) saziseydw3 ‘syrAw pue sadAjoalals SUIpnjauL ‘Saiy PUB AIH UD SMIIA [BI90S 5955N3sI(

"(9)VE6TS § 23 'SILS 9Y10 PUE AJH JO JUDLIIEA. BY] INOGE UOIIBLILIOUI SBPIAOI

"(7)(e}E6TS § D3 'SILS 19410 pue AlH Sulloenuod Jo ¥sU ay3 8anpa. 1o Juaasud
1eyl spoyisw pasoidde (v(Q4) uonessiuiupy Snig pue pood [elaps) jje Jo A1a)es pue sSBUSAIIIBYD BY) UO UOIIBLLIOLI SBPIADI

"(s) ‘(2)(e}veeTs §6 03
"slojAeyaq 31133ds 03 SuIpIOIIE UOIIDBYUI JO SYSI DBAIYR[S) SuIpn|aU} ‘pallWSLEL] 10U 31E PUB BB S||§ J3YI0 PUB AlH MOY SIBA0)

6E6TS—0EGTS §§ 300D NOILVYINA3
SLOIY1SIa ¥O4 LSITNIIHD NOILYNIVAI IDINVITdWOI LDV HLNOA AHLTYIH VINYO411YD ‘TT-L S3Avys

d3asvigNn LT

S3IN0JLNO
ADNVND3IYd ONV ADNVYND3IHd 9T

JON3INILSAY ST

NOILdIOVHINOD +T

saly
ANV AIH NO SM3IATVID0S "ET

INIWLVIYL IS ANV AIH "TT

NOILN3A3Yd IISANV AIH "TT

SILS H3IHLO
GNV AIH 30 NOISSIWSNYYL 0T

137



"(8)(B)YE6TS § D3 "BIUSOIA JSULIEd BIBWIIUI PUB HNEBSSE [BNXSS YHM
8JUE)SISSE pue a1ed Yy eay aAionpo.sdal pue jenxas Buisseade 03 sIySL JUIpNIS pue $304N0sas |BJ0| IN0QE UOI1ELLIOJU] SSPIADId

"(8)EE6TS § D3 "suoissnasip 8say3 Jos Alessadau s)|14s pue 95pajmouy apiacid pue Alljenxas

uewny 1noge s)npe pajsn.} Jay1o Jo ‘suelpiens ‘sjuased J12Y3 Yim 1eaunwiwod o3 sidnd aFe1nodus sjelialew pue uonannasu)
(0T} (e)YE6TS § D3 “BunjolyeI] XS INOGE UORELLIO| SapN|aU|

(0THEIVEGTS § D3 “JuswsseJey [ENX3S INOGE UOHBLWIOJUI SIpNjaU]

"(0T)e)yEBTS § D3 "d0us|oIA JauLed S1EWIIUY PUE ‘Bsnge diysuone|a) JUBIS3|OpE ‘}NeSSE |BNXSS JNOGE UOIIeLWIOU) S3PN|aU]

‘(8) “(})€6TS §§ D3 "uoliEPILINUI PUE ‘UOIDIB0D ‘DIUB|OIA wloJ) 331} aJe pue ‘uoi1dayle pue 10adsai
[EMINW U0 paseq sJe Jey} sdiysuoiiejal paniwWod ‘Ayleay Uleulew pue o) 03 suspnis sasedaid pue jo snjeA au3 sayoea]

‘8T pUD /T swajl 335 'sUOLIUSLIO [enXas pue s1apuas ||e Jo sJuapnys Joj ajendordde pue paselqun ag ISNIAl (3LON

(9)a)eeeTs
§ 03 sadA108133s Japuad aaineSau Jo uiiey ay3 salojdxa pue ‘Ayuapl Japuad ‘Uoissaidxs Japuag ‘Japuad uo uonanJIsul SapnfaU|

‘8T PUD /T SWa)] 395 'SUONEIUBLIO [ENX3S pue sJ3puas ||e Jo s3uapnys Joy aeudosdde pue paseiqun aq 1SN *3LON
"(S)P)EEBTS § D7 "sdiysuonejas xas-aLues spnul os|e sdiysuonejas Jo sajdwexy
‘0 pup "gT °/T SWa3} 335 'SUOIEIUBLIO [BNX3S PUR SISPUSSE ||e 4O SIU3pN3s Joy ajeridoidde pue paseiqun aq 1SN :3LON

"SUOIIBIUSHIO |eNX3S JUSISYIP INOGE SIUSPNIS SBYIES] Jey3 U0IdNIISUl Sapnjaul
Alessa23U sa.Inbal suoneuBLIO [enXas JusIayIp 3AeY 3jdoad eyl 321US0da1 AjpAEWIR 1BY] S|EIJIIBW pUE UOIIINIISU|

‘(SNP)EEBTS § D3 ‘SUOREIUSIIO [BNXSS JUBIALIP 9Aey 3jdoad 1ey) azju30d31 sjellIBW pUB UOPINJISU]

(THP)EEBTS § D3 *spuncidyoeq
[BAN3ND pue diuy3a ‘suoeIuaLo [enxas ‘sIapuad ‘sadel |je Jo siidnd yiim asn Joy sjeudordde sue seuajew PUB UOI1INIISU|

6€6TS—0E6TS §§ 300D NOILVYINA3
S1JIMLSIA HO4 LSIT¥I3IHD NOILYNTVAI 3INVITdWOI LDV HINOA AHLIVIH VINYO4ITVI :TT-L S3AVYD

$32¥N0S3Y WI01

S1NAv a3alsnyl
HY3H1O ANV SIN3HVd
HLIM NOILVDINNWWOD

ONDDIJIVYL X3S
LNINSSYHVYH TVNX3S

JONTI0IA ANV ISNAV TWVNX3IS

SdIHSNOILV13Y

ALILN3QI
Y3ANID ‘NOISSIYdX3
H3IANIO ‘YIANTD

SdIHSNOILV13Y X3S
-3INVS JANTIONI ST1dINVXI

SNOILVINIIHO IWNX3IS
1N3434410 40 3AISNTONI

31vI4dOdddv
ANV JAISNTONI ATIVHNLIND

ve

j 14

‘8T

O

o o o O

O

138



22 — T swa yum Aidwod 3snw siaxeads 1s2n8 pue sjueynsuod apisino Ag papiaoid uonannsul ||y (310N

UOIdNIISUL JIBYY U PaI2A0D $31d03 10 21do] JUBA|2] 3L1 UD YDIEaS3S 218JNdIR Aj[BIIpaW JUS33. 1SOW BY) JO a8pajmouy
aney osje A3y ‘9E6TS § DI "UCIIEINPS Y} eay [enxas aAisusyaidwiod ul asiuadxa aAeY siayeads 1sand pue Sue)Nsuod apising

,'SUOIIIRJUI paIwIsuel]
Ajjlenxas Jaylo pue AJH pue ‘AsueuBaid ‘sdiysuoiiejas Ayyjesy ‘Alljenxas UBWINY UO YIJeasal 31e4ndde Aj[ealpatu Juadal

1SOUs DU} JO AFPI|MOWY YHM S101DTASUL,, SB (B)TEGTS § DI Ul PaULap S1,SISHN0D ILVINdOYddY IHL NI GINIVHL 3HY SYOLINYLSNIL,

‘(e)rEBTS § D3 "sosunod aendosdde ay) ul paule.y sue ‘ssyeads 153ng 10 SIURYNSUOD SPISINO SUIPN|Ul ‘S1030NISU]

SHINVIMSLSIND B ISINYITASNOD 3AISLNO “SYHOLDNY LSNI

"S1edio134ed 03 UAIP|IYD J13Y3 Joj dijs uoissiwiad B uIn1al pue usis o}
sjualed saanbal yaiym ‘Asijod (uasuod aAiae) ,ul-1do, Ue SAeY O} PAIMO||E 10U 3Je ASty] "UBJP|IYD JIBY1 MEIPYIIM 01 WYl MO|je
pue siuased Ajizou Asyl sueaw yaiym ‘Adjjod (Juasuod aatssed) no-1do, ue aaey sjooyds ey sadinbas Ajpidxs 8E6TS § D3

"(q) (e)8E6TS §§ D3 ‘uoneddied Wo.y pasnoxe aq piYd 219yl 1ey3 Suizum Ul 1sanbal Aew ASyl 1ey3 palyaou ale sjualed

"UOI1BDNPR Yl|B3Y [BNXSS aAIsudya4dwod
10} Aapjod L ui-1do,, ue aney jou Aew sjooyds UBWaNNDII FUIMO||0) DYL Ul PEIIB|4RI S| SY "U0JIINIISUL Ul uoizedidnled Juapnis Jo)
(xuasuod aaoe) ,wi-1do, 010ef 3P € Se 108 Ued uoiledl§ou siyl o 3di1saa) BuiSpajmousde siualed woly d3ou paudis e Buninbay

"(9)8E6TS § D3 "WNNdLIND M3IAR 03 Ajlunoddo ue UAI pue UoIINIISUL JO PBLIIOU BIE SJUBlRd

"(e)8E6TS § D3 "1eah jooyas ays Jo BuiuuiBag syl e papiaoid st Ino-3do o3 Ayunuioddo pue UonEdYIOU |EJURIE]

1LNO-1d0 B NOILYDIJIION TVINIYVd

|041U02 Yuig Bujulelqo ‘aJed uotioge ‘Buljasunod /usiuleals [oyod|e 1o Snup ‘sadiales
8uijasunod Jo yyjeay [eauaw ‘Suiisa) ILS 10 AIH *OL Q3LINIT LON 3HV LNE "3ANTDNI AYIA SIDIAYIS JAILISNIS ANY TYILNIQIINOD

6E6TS—0E6TS §§ 300D NOILYINA3
SLOIY1SIQ HO4 LSITHDIHD NOILYNTVYAT IDNVITAINOD LDV HLNOA AHLIYIH YINYO4ITYD :2T—-£ SIAVYO

NOILYINA3 HLTV3IH

1¥NX3S JAISNIHIHINOD

NI 3S1LY3dX3

JAVH SHTAVIdS 1SIND
ANV SINVLTNSNOD 3dISLNO "¢E
SHOLONYLSNI Q3ANIVHL 'T€E

1N0O-1d0 TVINIYVd "0E

NOILVOIJILON TVINIYVd '6C

HY3A 3HL 40 DNINNID3d
1v d3dIAOYd NOILVDI4ILON 8T

139



“djBy 104 1DV 3Y) 19BIUO ‘Me| 3y3 BUIMOY|0} JOU SI [00YIS INOA JeY] PAULISIUC? 3.8 NoA J| P8 XaS/FICIUNIE MMM//-G1IY 0} 0F ‘UOIRULIOUI S10W o4

$31UNo) |eiadw) 73 0331Q UES JO N1V 3y PUE ‘BlUIOgifED UIBLINOS JO 11DV 3Y3 ‘@IUIOED UIBYLON 10 NIV 3Y3 JO UoIIRIOqE||0d ¥
‘VINYO411¥D 40 N1IV IHL A9 43d013A3Q SVM 324N0S3Y SIHL

6E6TS—0EGTS §§ 300D NOILYOINQA3
SLOIYLSIQ HO4 1SIT23HD NOILYNTYAI 3INVITdINGD LOV HLNOA AHLTV3IH VINYO4(1VD :ZT—-L SIAVYUDO

140



THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT: EDUCATION CODE §§ 51930-51939
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS

THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT -~ EDUCATION CODE §§ 51930-51939
COMPREHENSIVE SEXUAL HEALTH AND HIV PREVENTION EDUCATION

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS

The California Healthy Youth Act, which took effect January 1, 2016, requires school districts to provide
students with integrated, comprehensive, accurate, and inclusive comprehensive sexual health education
and HIV prevention education, at least once in high school and once in middle school. The California Healthy
Youth Act made other significant changes to previous Education Code requirements for both HIV
prevention education and comprehensive sexual health education.

WHAT ARE THE PURPQOSES THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT?
The California Healthy Youth Act has several purposes {EC § 51930(b)):

e To provide students with the knowledge and skills necessary to:
o Protect their sexual and reproductive health from HIV and other sexually transmitted
infections and from unintended pregnancy;
o Develop healthy attitudes concerning adolescent growth and development, body
image, gender, sexual orientation, relationships, marriage, and family;
o Have healthy, positive, and safe relationships and behaviors;
e To promote understanding of sexuality as a normal part of human development; and
e To ensure pupils receive integrated, comprehensive, accurate, and unbiased sexual health and
HIV prevention instruction and provide educators with clear tools and guidance to accomplish
that end.

ARE SCHOOLS REQUIRED TO TEACH COMPREHENSIVE SEXUAL HEALTH EDUCATION
AND HIV PREVENTION EDUCATION?

Yes. The California Healthy Youth Act requires that that students in grades 7-12 receive comprehensive
sexual health education and HIV prevention education at least once in middle school and once in high
school. The Education Code defines comprehensive sexual health education as “education regarding
human development and sexuality, including education on pregnancy, contraception, and sexually
transmitted infections” (EC § 51931(b}) and HIV prevention education as “instruction on the nature of
human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and AIDS, methods of transmission, strategies to reduce the risk of
HIV infection, and social and public health issues related to HIV and AIDS” (EC § 51931(d}). HIV prevention
education has been mandated since 1992.

DOES THE LAW PERMIT SCHOOLS TO TEACH COMPREHENSIVE SEXUAL HEALTH AND HIV
PREVENTION EDUCATION IN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL?

Yes. Comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education may be taught in grades K-6, inclusive. All

instruction and materials in grades K-6 must meet the baseline requirements listed below. Content that is

141



THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT: EDUCATION CODE §§ 51930-51939
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS

required in grades 7-12 may be also be included in an age-appropriate way in earlier grades. (EC §§ 51933,
51934(b).)

WHAT ARE THE BASELINE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL COMPREHENSIVE SEXUAL HEALTH
EDUCATION AND HIV PREVENTION EDUCATION?

According to the Education Code (EC § 51933), all instruction and materials in all grades (including
elementary} must:

e Be age-appropriate;

e Be medically accurate and objective;

e Align with and support the purposes of the California Healthy Youth Act, as described above;

o Be appropriate for use with pupils of all races, genders, sexual orientations, ethnic and cultural
backgrounds;

e Be appropriate for and equally available to English language learners;

e Be appropriate for and accessible to pupils with disabilities;

* Affirmatively recognize different sexual orientations and be inclusive of same-sex relationships
in discussions and examples;

e Teach about gender, gender expression, gender identity, and the harm of negative gender
stereotypes;

e Encourage students to communicate with their parents/guardians and other trusted adults
about human sexuality, and provide skills for doing so;

e Teach respect and skills for committed relationships such as marriage;

e Provide knowledge and skills for forming healthy relationships that are free from violence; and

e Provide knowledge and skills for making and implementing healthy decisions about sexuality.

In addition, the Education Code (EC § 51933) specifies that instruction and materials in all grades may not:

e Teach or promote religious doctrine; or

e Reflect or promote bias against any person on the basis of actual or perceived disability,
gender, gender identity, gender expression, race or ethnicity, nationality, religion, or sexual
orientation, or any other category protected by the non-discrimination policy codified in
Education Code § 220.

WHAT ADDITIONAL CONTENT IS REQUIRED IN GRADES 7-127?

Instruction provided in grades 7-12, in addition to meeting the baseline requirements above, must include
all of the following content (EC § 51934):

s Information on the nature and transmission of HIV and other sexually transmitted infections
(STls);

142



THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT: EDUCATION CODE §§ 51930-51939
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS

s Information about all federal Food and Drug Administration (FDA)-approved methods of
reducing the risk of transmission of HIV and other STls, including antiretroviral treatment, and
information about treatment of HIV and STls;

e Information about reducing the risk of HIV transmission as a result of injection drug use by
decreasing needle use and needle sharing;

¢ Discussion about social views of HIV and AIDS, emphasizing that all people are at some risk of
contracting HIV and that the only way to know one’s HIV status is by being tested;

e Information about accessing resources for sexual and reproductive health care and assistance
with sexual assault and intimate partner violence, as well as students’ legal rights to access
these resources;

o Information about the effectiveness and safety of all federal FDA-approved contraceptive
methods in preventing pregnancy (including emergency contraception);

e Information that abstinence is the only certain way to prevent unintended pregnancy and HIV
and other STIs; information about value of delaying sexual activity must be included and must
be accompanied by information about other methods for preventing pregnancy and STls;

e Information about pregnancy, including 1) the importance of prenatal care; 2) all legally
available pregnancy outcomes, including parenting, adoption, and abortion; and 3) California’s
newborn safe surrender law; and :

e [nformation about sexual harassment, sexual assault, adolescent relationship abuse, intimate
partner violence, and sex trafficking.

See EC § 51934 for the exact language of these requirements.

Any of these content areas may also be covered in an age-appropriate way prior to grade 7.

DOES THE LAW ALLOW ABSTINENCE-ONLY EDUCATION?

No. “Abstinence-only” sex education, which offers abstinence as the only option for preventing STls and
unintended pregnancy, is not permitted in California public schools.

Comprehensive sexual health education in grades 7-12 must include medically accurate, up-to-date
information about the effectiveness and safety of all federal FDA-approved methods for preventing HIV,
other STis, and pregnancy. (EC § 51934(a)(9).)

In addition, abstinence may not be discussed in isolation from other methods of preventing HIV, other STis,
and pregnancy. The Education Code requires that instruction and materials include information that
abstinence is the only certain way to prevent HIV, other STls, and unintended pregnancy. However, it also
states: “Instruction shall provide information about the value of delaying sexual activity while also providing
medically accurate information on other methods of preventing HIV and other sexually transmitted
infections and pregnancy.” (EC § 51934(a)(3).)

143



144

THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT: EDUCATION CODE §§ 51930-51939
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS

WHY IS THERE A REQUIREMENT FOR INTEGRATED INSTRUCTION, AND WHAT DOES IT
MEAN?

In order to ensure that students receive instruction that best supports their need for accurate,
comprehensive information, the requirement for integrated instruction means that there must be internal
consistency within sexual health education and HIV prevention instruction and materials. All instruction
and materials must support and align with the purposes of the California Healthy Youth Act and with each
other; they may not be in conflict with or undermine each other or any of the purposes of the law. For
example, schools may not use materials that, in promoting abstinence, focus exclusively on the failure rates
or perceived disadvantages of condoms or contraception, even if schools attempt to balance these
materials with other, objective information. (EC §§ 51930(b){4), 51933(c).)

HOW DOES THE LAW PROMOTE HEALTHY RELATIONSHIPS FOR YOUTH?

The California Healthy Youth Act has a strong emphasis on healthy relationships, in both the purposes and
the required content. Students must be taught knowledge and skills related to recognizing, building, and
maintaining healthy relationships that are based on mutual affection and are free from violence, coercion
and intimidation. This includes teaching decision-making and communication skills and helping students to
understand the value of and prepare for committed relationships, such as marriage. It also includes
information about unhealthy behaviors and risks to their health, such as sexual harassment, sexual assault,
intimate partner violence, and sex trafficking. (EC §§ 51930(b); 51933(f), (g), (h); 51934(3)(10).)

DOES THE LAW REQUIRE INSTRUCTION ABOUT LOCAL HEALTH RESOURCES?

Yes. The California Healthy Youth Act requires that students learn about local resources for sexual and
reproductive health care, sexual assault and intimate partner violence. The law also requires instruction
about how students can access those resources and their rights to access them. For example, under
California law, minors aged 12 and above have the right to confidentially access and make their own
decisions regarding reproductive health care, including birth control, prenatal care, abortion, and
prevention of and treatment for HIV and STls. (Family Code §§ 6925, 6926; American Academy of Pediatrics
v. Lungren, 16 Cal.4th 307 {1997)). Students also have the right to obtain sensitive services, including
reproductive health care, during school hours, and must be allowed to leave campus for the purpose of
obtaining these services. (EC § 48205; EC § 46010.1; 87 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 168, 172 (2004}). In these
instances, schools are not allowed to require parental consent or notification, and must mark the student’s
absence as excused and allow the student to make up full credit for assignments or class time missed.

DOES THE LAW REQUIRE INSTRUCTION ON CALIFORNIA’S AFFIRMATIVE CONSENT
STANDARD?

Another law, distinct from the California Healthy Youth Act, also took effect in 2016. This law, Education
Code § 33544, requires that all school districts that have health education as a graduation requirement
must include instruction on California’s affirmative consent standard. This standard is defined as follows:
“Affirmative consent’ means affirmative, conscious, and voluntary agreement to engage in sexual activity.
It is the responsibility of each person involved in the sexual activity to ensure that he or she has the




THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT: EDUCATION CODE §§ 51930-51939
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS

affirmative consent of the other or others to engage in the sexual activity. Lack of protest or resistance
does not mean consent, nor does silence mean consent. Affirmative consent must be ongoing throughout
a sexual activity and can be revoked at any time. The existence of a dating relationship between the persons
involved, or the fact of past sexual relations between them, should never by itself be assumed to be an
indicator of consent.” (EC § 67386.)

Instruction on the affirmative consent standard is not mandatory for districts that do not require a health
education course for graduation. The law also does not require that this instruction be provided within
comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education. However, the California Healthy Youth Act
does require that comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education address healthy
relationships and communication, and consent for sexual activity is an important component of this
instruction. Therefore, there is natural overlap between the law relating to the affirmative consent standard
and the California Healthy Youth Act.

WHAT DETERMINES WHETHER THE FACTS TAUGHT ARE MEDICALLY ACCURATE?

Instruction is medically accurate if it is verified or supported by proper scientific research, published in
peer-reviewed journals as appropriate, and recognized as accurate and objective by agencies with expertise
in the field, such as the federal Centers for Disease Controi and Prevention (CDC), the American Public
Health Association, the American Academy of Pediatrics, and the American College of Obstetricians and
Gynecologists. (EC § 51931(f).)

WHAT DOES THE LAW SAY ABOUT LESBIAN, GAY, BISEXUAL, TRANSGENDER AND
QUEER (LGBTQ) STUDENTS, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, AND GENDER/GENDER IDENTITY?

All instruction and materials in grades K-12 must be inclusive of LGBTQ students. Instruction shall
affirmatively recognize that people have different sexual orientations and, when discussing or providing
examples of relationships and couples, must be inclusive of same-sex relationships. (EC § 51933(d)(5).) It
must also teach students about gender, gender expression, gender identity, and explore the harm of
negative gender stereotypes. (EC § 51933(d)(6).) This means that schools must teach about sexual
orientation and what being transgender means.

The California Healthy Youth Act requires that sexual health education be appropriate for use with students
of all genders and sexual orientations and clearly states that part of the intent of the law is “to encourage
a pupil to develop healthy attitudes concerning adolescent growth and development, body image, gender,
sexual orientation, relationships, marriage, and family.” (EC § 51930.)

The California Healthy Youth Act also prohibits sexual health education classes from promoting bias against
anyone on the basis of any category protected by Education Code § 220, which includes actual or perceived
gender and sexual orientation.

145



146

THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT: EDUCATION CODE §§ 51930-51939
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS

WHAT DOES THE LAW SAY ABOUT STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES?

Instruction and materials must be appropriate for and accessible to students with disabilities. This includes
but is not limited to providing a modified curriculum, materials and instruction in alternative formats, and
auxiliary aids. (EC § 51933{d}(3).)

WHAT DOES THE LAW SAY ABOUT STUDENTS WHO ARE ENGLISH LEARNERS?

The California Healthy Youth Act requires that instruction be made available on an equal basis to pupils
who are English learners, whether they are placed in English immersion classes or alternative bilingual
education classes, and must be consistent with the existing sex education curriculum. (EC § 51933(d)(2).)
In addition, the law requires that instruction be appropriate for use with students of alf races and ethnic
and cultural backgrounds. (EC § 51933(d)(1).)

DOES THE LAW PERMIT THE USE OF OUTSIDE SPEAKERS?

School districts may contract with outside consultants or guest speakers, including those who have
developed multilingual curricula or curricula accessible to persons with disabilities, to deliver
comprehensive sexual health education and HiV prevention education or to provide training for school
district personnel. All outside consultants and guest speakers must have expertise in comprehensive sexual
health education and HIV prevention education and have knowledge of the most recent medically accurate
research on the relevant topic or topics covered in their instruction. (EC § 51936.)

Instruction provided by outside consultants or guest speakers must fulfill the same requirements as
instruction provided by employees of the school district. This instruction must be integrated into and may
not conflict with other instruction or with the purposes of the law. If schools use outside consultants or
guest speakers, they must provide parents with the name of the provider's organization and the date of
instruction at the beginning of the school year or no fewer than 14 days prior to the date of instruction.

HOW DOES THE LAW SUPPORT FAMILY COMMUNICATION ABOUT COMPREHENSIVE
SEXUAL HEALTH?

Instruction and materials shall encourage a student “to communicate with his or her parents, guardians,
and other trusted adults about human sexuality and provide the knowledge and skills necessary to do so.”
(EC § 51933(e).)

WHAT DOES THE LAW SAY ABOUT PARENT/GUARDIAN NOTIFICATION AND CONSENT
FOR INSTRUCTION?

Parents or guardians must be notified by the school or district at the beginning of the school year (or at the
time of enrollment) about planned comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education, and must
be given an opportunity to review materials. The school district must also inform parents/guardians about
whether the instruction will be provided by district personnel or outside consultants. If instruction will be



THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT: EDUCATION CODE §§ 51930-51939
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS

provided by outside consultants, the notice must include the name and organizational affiliation of the
outside consultant and the date of the instruction. The notice must also inform parents/guardians of their
right to request copies of Education Code §§ 51933, 51934, and 51938. If arrangements for guest speakers
or outside consultants are made after the initial notification is sent out at the beginning of the year, districts
must notify parents at least 14 days prior to the instruction via mail or another commonly used method.

The law allows parents or guardians to remove their child from comprehensive sexual health and HIV
prevention education, as defined in the statute (EC §§ 51931(b), {d), 51932.), using a passive consent or
“opt-out” process. Schools may not require active consent (“opt-in”) for participation in comprehensive
sexual health and HIV prevention education in any grade, including elementary school. (EC § 51938(a).) The
notice sent to parents/guardians informing them about planned instruction must additionally inform them
that they may remove their child from the instruction and that in order to do so they must state their
request in writing to the school district. (EC § 51938(b)(4).) If the parent/guardian does not request in
writing that the child be withheld, the child will attend the instruction. Schools may not require
parents/guardians to return a signed acknowledgment that they have received the notice in order for their
child to participate in the instruction; this serves as de facto active consent and is prohibited under the law.

WHAT DOES THE LAW SAY ABOUT PARENTAL/GUARDIAN CONSENT FOR SURVEYS?

In order to facilitate the collection of data needed by researchers to evaluate the effectiveness of
comprehensive sexual health education and other unintended pregnancy prevention efforts, the law
permits schools to administer anonymous, voluntary, confidential, age-appropriate surveys or
questionnaires in which students are asked about their sexual activities and attitudes in order to measure
their health behaviors and risks. Parents/guardian must be notified of any planned surveys or
questionnaires, be given the opportunity to review these surveys or questionnaires and, in grades 7-12, be
given the opportunity to request in writing that their child not participate. Schools may not adopt an active
consent or “opt-in” policy for these surveys or questionnaires for students in grades 7 to 12. Prior to grade
7, parents must give active consent in order for their child to participate. (EC § 51938(c).)

WHAT DOES THE LAW SAY ABOUT ANTI-HARASSMENT, BULLYING PREVENTION OR
SAFE SCHOOLS PROGRAMS?

School districts have an affirmative legal obligation to prevent bias-based bullying, harassment and
discrimination and to create a safe and welcoming environment for all students. (EC §§ 201, 220.} The
California Healthy Youth Act supports these efforts by requiring inclusive instruction and prohibiting biased
instruction. The law does not permit parents to remove their children from anti-harassment programs or
other instruction that discusses gender, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation,
discrimination, harassment, bullying, intimidation, relationships, or family but does not discuss human
reproductive organs and their functions. (EC § 51932(b).} This is to ensure that all students feel safe on and
off campus knowing that all their peers received the same messages on acceptable and unacceptable
behaviors, resulting in a positive school climate.

147



THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT: EDUCATION CODE §§ 51930-51939
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS

DOES THE LAW REQUIRE TEACHERS TO BE TRAINED?

Comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education must be taught by instructors trained in the
appropriate courses. (EC §§ 51934(a), (b}.} This means that instructors must have knowledge of the most
recent medically accurate research on human sexuality, healthy relationships, pregnancy, and HIV and
other sexually transmitted infections. (EC § 51931(e).)

In addition, school districts must provide periodic training to all district personnel who provide HIV
prevention education to enable them to learn new developments in the scientific understanding of HIV.
Teachers with a demonstrated expertise in the field or who have received training from the California
Department of Education, their affiliates or Centers for Disease Control and Prevention need not be
additionally trained by the district. School districts may expand the training to include the topic of
comprehensive sexual health education.

ARE THE HEALTH FRAMEWORK FOR CALIFORNIA PUBLIC SCHOOLS AND THE
CALIFORNIA HEALTH EDUCATION CONTENT STANDARDS CURRENT WITH RESPECT TO
LEGAL REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPREHENSIVE SEXUAL HEALTH AND HIV PREVENTION

EDUCATION?

No. The Health Framework is extremely outdated and is inconsistent with the California Healthy Youth Act;
it should not be used. The California Health Education Content Standards, adopted in 2008, do not in most
respects directly conflict with the California Healthy Youth Act but also do not include all required content.
Therefore, the health standards should not be independently relied upon for developing or evaluating
sexual health curriculum.

THIS RESOURCE WAS DEVELOPED BY THE ACLU OF CALIFORNIA,
A collaboration of the ACLU of Northern California, the ACLU of Southern California, and the ACLU of San Diego & Imperial Counties

For more information, go to http://www.aclunc.org/sex ed.
If you are concerned that your school is not following the law, contact the ACLU for help.

148



THE CALIFORNIA HEALTHY YOUTH ACT — EDUCATION CODE §§ 51930-51939
COMPREHENSIVE SEXUAL HEALTH AND HIV PREVENTION EDUCATION

SAMPLE PARENT/GUARDIAN NOTIFICATION LETTER FOR GRADES 7-12

[Insert Date]
Dear [School Name] Parent/Guardian:

California state law, the California Healthy Youth Act, requires that comprehensive sexual health
education and HIV prevention education be provided to students at least once in middle school or junior
high school and once in high school, starting in grade 7.

Instruction must encourage students to communicate with parents, guardians or other trusted adults
about human sexuality. Instruction must be medically accurate, age-appropriate and inclusive of all
students. It must include the following:

» Information about HIV and other sexually transmitted infections {STls), including transmission,
FDA approved methods to prevent HIV and STls, and treatment

« Information that abstinence is the only certain way to prevent unintended pregnancy and HIV
and other STis, and information about value of delaying sexual activity

* Discussion about social views of HIV and AIDS

» Information about accessing resources for sexual and reproductive health care

= Information about pregnancy, including FDA approved prevention methods, pregnancy
outcomes, prenatal care, and the newborn safe surrender law

» Information about sexual orientation and gender, including the harm of negative gender

stereotypes
* [nformation about healthy relationships and avoiding unhealthy behaviors and situations

You can examine written and audiovisual instructional materials at the [School Name/District] main office.
if you have questions, please see the teacher or principal. You may request a copy of the California
Healthy Youth Act (California Education Code Sections 51930-51939) by contacting [the District].

This instruction will be provided by [name of school district personnel/outside consultants].

State law allows you to remave your student from this instruction. If you do not want your student to

participate in comprehensive sexual health or HIV prevention education, please give a written request to
[district, principal, teacher, etc.] by [insert date here].

Sincerely,

[Superintendent]

THIS RESOURCE WAS DEVELOPED BY THE ACLU OF CALIFORNIA,
A collaboration of the ACLU of Northern California, the ACLU of Southern California, and the ACLU of San Diego & Imperial Counties

For more information, go to http://www.aclunc.org/sex ed.
If you are concerned that your school is not following the law, contact the ACLU for help.

149



Board of Trustees

HUSD Board of Trustees

Hamilton Unified School District

Dear Mr. Chairman and Members of the Board:

The C.S.E.A. Chapter #623 is submitting our initial proposal for the 2016-2017 school
year.

a. Revise and reorganize the salary schedule
b. Benefits
c. New unapproved job descriptions

Thank you for your consideration on these matters.

Sincerely,

s

Chris DeVries
CSEA President

150



012 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST. J42508 A
BATCH 32:FEBRUARY 22 2017 BATCH
Fund

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Req Reference Date

Tax ID num Deposgit type

Description Fd Res

CCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
: 0032 BATCH 32; FEBRUARY 22, 2017
: 01 GENERAL FUND

APY500

ABA num

Y Goal Func Obj Sit BdR DD

Account num
TOMPS

Lig Amt

L.00.12 01/25/17 14:54 PAGE 1
<< Open >>

Net Amount

001256/00 AT&T LONG DISTANCE
PV-000105 12/19/2016 ACCT# 0518956221001 JAN-FE
TOTAL

000272/00 BETTY MERCADO

PV-000114 01/19/2017 CLTA MEALS
TOTAL

000911/00 BLICK ART MATERIALS
PO-017443 01/13/2017 7160341
PO-017443 01/06/2017 7122894
TOTAL

000332/00 BOARD OF EQUALIZATION
PV-000128 01/19/2017 OCT-DEC 2017 FUEL TAX
TOTAL

000197/00 BUTTE COUNTY SELPA

PO-017407 01/23/2017 T BRYAN 12/15/16
TOTAL

000371/00 CALIFORNIA LANGUAGE TEACHERS
PO-017492 01/18/2017 C17-013
TOTAL

000053/00 CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE CO
PO-000422 12/29/2016 JAN 4141117777
PO-000422 12/29/2016 JAN 3141117777
TOTAL

B 17 01-0000-0-0000-2700-59920-000-000-00000
PAYMENT AMOUNT 38.18 *

01-4035-0-1110-1000-5200~-000-000-00000
PAYMENT AMOUNT 223.00 *

1 01-0801-0-1110-1000-4300-000-515-00000
1 01-0801-0-1110-1000-4300-000-515-00000
PAYMENT AMOUNT 49.78 *

01-0000-0-0000-3600-5890-000-000-00000
PAYMENT AMOUNT 106.55 *

1 01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000
PAYMENT AMOUNT 20.00 *

1 01-4035-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000
PAYMENT AMOUNT 485.00 *

1 01-0000-0-0000-8100-5590-000-000-00000
1 01-0000-0-0000-8100-5590-000-000-00000
PAYMENT AMOUNT 91.02 *

g8

g8

46.57
3.21

20.00

485.00

38.18
38.18

223.00
223.00

46.57
3.21
49.78

106.55
106.55

20.00
20.00

485.00
485.00

45.51
45.51
91.02

151



012 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST. J42508 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.12 01/25/17 14:54 PAGE 2
BATCH 32:FEBRUARY 22 2017 BATCH: 0032 BATCH 32; FEBRUARY 22, 2017 << Open >»>
Fund : 01 GENERAL FUND
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num
Req Reference Date Description Fd Res Y Goal Func Obj Sit BdR DD TIMPS Lig Amt Net Amount
00C334/00 CALSTRS-JEM
PV-000112 01/25/2017 OCT-DEC 2016 ADMIN FEES 01-0000-0-0000-2700-58%0-000-000-00000 NN 126.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 126.00 * 126.00
000156/00 CASBO
PO-017458 01/09/2017 591159 1 01-0000-0-0000-7300-5200-000-000-00000 NN P 255.00 255.00
PO-017458 01/09/2017 591160 1 01-0000-0-0000-7300-5200-000-000-00000 NN P 255.00 255.00
PO-017458 01/09/2017 591161 1 01-0000-0-0000-7300-5200-000-000-00000 NN F 255.00 255.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 765.00 * 765.00
000515/00 CHARLES TRACY
PV-000126 01/19/2017 SSDA CONF MEALS 01-0000-0-0000-7150-5200-000-000-00000 NN 65.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 65.00 * 65.00
001054/00 CLYDE CROSBY
PV-000110 01/25/2017 SPORTS TRAVEIL, MEALS A CROSBY 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5200-000-006-00000 NN 75.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 75.00 * 75.00
000158/00 CORNING LUMBER CO INC
PO-017237 01/23/2017 1701-001820 1 01-7010-0-3800-1000-4300-000-000-00000 NN P 16.46 16.46
PO-017237 01/23/2017 1701-001818 1 01-7010-0-3800-1000-4300-000-000-00000 NN P 313.33 313.33
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 329.79 * 329.79
000205/00 CPM EDUCATIONAL, PROGRAM
PO-017238 09/01/2016 1606435-IN 1 01-0001-0-1110-1000-4300-000-000-00000 NN F 2,541.53 2,159.14
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 2,159.14 * 2,159.14
002055/00 CRISTINA HAWKINS 556872980
PV-000116 01/19/2017 PLC 2017 MEALS 01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000 NN 196.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 196.00 * 196.00

152



012 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST. J42508
BATCH 32:FEBRUARY 22 2017

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Req Reference Date Description

000236/00 DIESEL EMISSIONS SERVICE

PO-017495 12/19/2016 W 4-24520

001385/00 ELLESE MELLO

PV-000109 01/25/2017 NSTA CONF MEALS

002056/00 EMILY KALLEMEYN

PV-000117 01/19/2017 PLC 2017 MEALS

000320/00 GERLINGER STEEL & SUPPLY CO

PO-017235 01/11/2017 0221238
PO-017235 01/17/2017 0221457

001524/00 GLENN COUNTY ELECTIONS DEPT

bV-000111 01/25/2017 ELECTIONS FEES

01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 308.00 *

557998087

01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000 NN

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 196.00 *
1 01-6382-0-3800-1000-4300-000-000-00000 NN P 315.32
1 01-6382-0-3800-1000-4300-000-000-00000 NN P 503.41
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 818.73 *

01-0000-0-0000-7110-5890-000-000-00000 NN

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 2,477.39 *
000162/00 GRAINGER
PO-000409 01/11/2017 9328082103 1 01-8150-0-0000-8100-4300-000-000-00000 NN P 0.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 118.49 *
00013i4/00 HAMILTON UNIFIED REVOLVING FND
PO-017464 09/01/2016 1225 MTL CONTRACTING INV 1 01-9151-0-0000-8500-5630-000-000-00000 NN F 450.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 450.00 *

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.12 01/25/17 14:54 PAGE 3
BATCH: 0032 BATCH 32; FEBRUARY 22, 2017 << Open >>
Fund + 01 GENERAL FUND
Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num
Fd Res Y Goal Func Obj 8Sit BAR DD TIMPS Lig Amt Net Amount
1 01-0000-0-0000-3600-5630-000-000-00000 NN F 114.73 114.73
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 114.73 * 114.73

308.00
308.00

196.00
196.00

315.32
503.41
818.73

2,477.3%
2,477.39

118.49
118.49

450.00
450.00

153



012 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST. J42508
BATCH 32:FEBRUARY 22 2017

Vendor/Addr Remit name

Req Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500
BATCH: 0032 BATCH 32; FEBRUARY 22, 2017
Fund : 01 GENERAIL FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num
Fd Res Y Goal Func Obj Sit BdR DD

Account num
T9MPS

Lig Amt

L.00.12 01/25/17 14:54 PAGE 4
<< Open >>

Net Amount

000072/00 HILLYARD

PO-000412 01/19/2017 602389182
PO-000412 01/18/2017 602386542

000801/00 HUNT & SONS INC
PO-000400 01/19/2017 595879
001431/00 JANICE LOHSE

PV-000106 01/25/2017 NSTA CONF MEALS

002057/00 JASON PEZZETTI
PV-000118 01/19/2017 PLC 2017 MEALS

000573/00 JIVE COMMUNICATIONS INC

PO-000442 01/01/2017 JAN PHONE; 000626670
PO-000442 01/01/2017 JAN DATA; 000630645

002058/00 JOHN CAMPBELL

PV-000108 01/25/2017 NSTA CONF MEALS
PV-000119 01/19/2017 PLC 2017 MEALS

002059/00 JOHN HIRONIMUS

PV-000107 01/25/2017 NSTA CONF MEALS
PV-000120 01/19/2017 PLC 2017 MEALS

1 01-8150-0-0000-8100-4300-000-000-00000
1 01-8150-0-0000-8100-4300-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,536.53 *
942209320

1 01-0000-0-0000-3600-4392-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,266.54 *

01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 223.00 *
561675030
01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 196.00 *
020783048
1 01-0000-0-0000-2700-5990-000-000-00000
1 01-0000-0-0000-2700-5920-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,392.61 =*
566839817
01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000
01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 419.00 *
570710663
01-6264-0-~1110-1000-5200-000-000~-00000

01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 419.00 *

EE

g8

g8

57.23
1,4759.30
1,5326.53

1,266.54
1,266.54

223.00
223.00

196.00
196.00

923.63
468.98
1,392.61

223.00
196.00
419.00

223.00
196.00
419.00

154



012 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST. J42508 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500
BATCH 32:FEBRUARY 22 2017 BATCH: 0032 BATCH 32; FEBRUARY 22, 2017 << Open >>
Fund : 01 GENERAL FUND
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num
Req Reference Date Description Fd Res Y Goal Func Obj Sit B4R DD

L.00.12 01/25/17 14:54 PAGE 5

Net Amount

001283/00

JOHN'S TIRE & MUFFLER SERVICE

PO-000410 01/16/2017 143300

943171305

1 01-8150-0-0000-8100-5630-000-000-00000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

39.33 *

002060/00

KRISTY EDEN

PV-000121 01/19/2017 PLC 2017 MEALS

002054/00 MARY HANSEN

PV-000115 01/13/2017 PLC 2017 MEALS

604096629

01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 196.00 *

613641108

01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

196.00 *

000096/00

MILLER GLASS INC

PO-000434 01/06/2017 1-269574

002061/00 NANCY HEFFLEY

PV-000122 01/19/2017 PLC 2017 MEALS

2 01-0000-0-0000-3600-5630-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 145.00 *

572339382

01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

196.00 *

001407/00

PARAMEX SCREENING SERVICE

PV-000125 01/19/2017 001617

680179882

01-0000-0-0000-3600-5890-000-000-00000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

138.00 *

002062/00

PAULA GARCIA KRAUSS

PV-000123 01/19/2017 PLC 2017 MEALS

680822309

01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

196.00 *

000084/00

PO-000416 01/12/2017 JAN HS 9921774729-6

PG&E

1 01-0000-0-0000-8100-5590-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 5,035.57 *

T9MPS Lig Amt
NY P 0.00
NN
NN
NN P 0.00
NN
NY
NN
NN P 0.00

39.33
39.33

196.00
196.00

196.00
196.00

145.00
145.00

196.00
196.00

138.00
138.00

196.00
196.00

5,035.57
5,035.57

155



012 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST. J42508 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.12 01/25/17 14:54 PAGE 6
BATCH 32:FEBRUARY 22 2017 BATCH: 0032 BATCH 32; FEBRUARY 22, 2017 << Open >>
Fund : 01 GENERAL FUND -
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num
Reqg Reference Date Description Fd Res Y Goal Func Obj Sit B4R DD TOMPS Lig Amt Net Amount
000134/00 QUILL CORPORATION
PO-017120 01/13/2017 3497706 1 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-000-000-00000 NN P 154 .84 154.84
PO-017120 01/13/2017 3497706 2 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-100-000-00000 NN P 18.05 18.05
PO-017120 01/05/2017 3212179 1 01-0000-0-1110-1000~4300-000-000-00000 NN P 12.86 12.86
PO-017137 01/13/2017 3497706 3 01-9150-0-0000-2420-4300-000-000-00000 NN P 0.00 79.02
PO-017448 01/12/2017 3420515 1 01-0801-0-1110-1000-4300-000-515-00000 NN F 0.84 2.12
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 266.89 * 266.89
000137/00 SCHOOL SERVICES OF CALIF INC
PO-000426 12/31/2016 DEC 2016 0109219-IN 1 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5890-000-000-00000 NN P 245.00 245.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 245.00 * 245.00
000191/00 SMALL SCHOOL DISTRICTS ASSN
P0-017483 01/18/2017 16-002379 C TRACY 1 01-0000-0-0000-7150-5200-000-000-00000 NN F 475.00 428.00
PO-017483 01/18/2017 16-002379 BOARD MEMBERS 2 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5200-000-000-00000 NN F 1,014.00 1,014.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,442.00 * 1,442.00
002063/00 VANESSA REYES 624284113
PV-000124 01/19/2017 PLC 2017 MEALS 01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-000-000-00000 NN 196.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 196.00 * 196.00
000743/00 WEST COAST PAPER
PO-000429 01/11/2017 9933683 1 01-8150-0-0000-8100-4300-000-000-00000 NN P 0.00 600.60
PO-000429 01/11/2017 9933684 1 01-8150-0-0000-8100-4300-000-000-00000 NN P 0.00 205.50
PO-000429 01/11/2017 99337768 1 01-8150-0-0000-8100-4300-000-000-00000 NN P 0.00 21.34
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 827.44 * B827.44
TOTAL Fund PAYMENT 23,784.71 ** 23,784.71

156



012 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST. J42508
BATCH 32:FEBRUARY 22 2017

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Req Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST

BATCH: 0032 BATCH 32; FEBRUARY 22,

Fund

12

Tax ID num Deposit type

Fd Res

ABA num

Y Goal Func Obj

APYS00 L.00.12 01/25/17 14:54 PAGE 7

2017 << Open >>
CHILD DEVELOPMENT

Sit B4R DD

Account num

TIMPS

Lig Amt

Net Amount

001189%/00 MARGRIT VOGELESANG

PV-000113 01/19/2017 REIMB PETY THE

PENGUIN

TOTAL Fund

12-6105-0-1110-1000-4300-000-000-00000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

PAYMENT

50.45 *

50.45 #*

50.45
50.45

50.45

157



012 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOQL DIST. J42508
BATCH 32:FEBRUARY 22 2017

Vendor/Addr Remit name

Req Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APYS500
BATCH: 0032 BATCH 32; FEBRUARY 22, 2017 << Open >>
Fund : 13 CAFETERIA
Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num
Fd Res Y Goal Func Obj 8it BdR DD TOMPS

Lig Amt

L.00.12 01/25/17 14:54 PAGE 8

Net Amount

000764/00 DANIELSON CO

CM-000024 01/09/2017 110485
PO-000425 01/09/2017 121075
PO-000425 01/09/2017 121031
PO-000425 01/09/2017 121031
PO-000425 01/09/2017 121075
PO-000425 01/09/2017 121075
PO-000425 01/09/2017 121031

000209/00 GOLD STAR FOQODS
PO-000415 01/09/2017 1892604

000163/00 HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL

PV-000127 01/19/2017 MANDARINS FOR CAFE

000592/00 MISSION UNIFORM & LINEN
PO-000405 12/08/2016 503875418
PO-000405 12/15/2016 503923467
PO-000405 12/15/2016 503923466
PO-000405 01/12/2017 504104748
PO-000405 01/12/2017 504104749
PO-000405 01/19/2017 504151967

000763/00 PROPACIFIC FRESH
CM-000022 01/09/2017 RA6389135
CM-000023 01/09/2017 RA6358801
PO-000407 09/07/2016 T6347237

PO-000407 06/20/2016 (6314228 REV CMi#4
PO-000407 06/21/2016 RA6314002 REV CM#5

PO-000407 01/09/2017 6391035
PO-000407 09/26/2016 6354896
PO-000407 01/09/2017 6397823

13-5310-0-0000-3700-4700-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-5830-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-5890-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4700-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4700-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4300-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4300-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 2,883.33 *

EEEEEE

2 13-5310-0-0000-3700-4700-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 2,011.32 *

g

13-5310-0-0000-3700-4700-000-000-00000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 625.00 *

13-5310-0-0000-3700-4300~-000-000-00000 NN
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4300-000-000-00000 NN
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4300-000-000-00000 NN
13-5310-0-0000-3700~-4300-000-000-00000 NN
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4300-000-000-00000 NN
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4300-000-000-00000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 201.22 *

PRrRHEPR

13-5310-0-0000-3700-4700-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4700-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4300-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000~3700-4700-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4700-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4700-000~000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4700-000-000-00000
13-5310-0-0000-3700-4700-000-000-00000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 2,710.05 *

EEEEEEzx

2
1
1
1
1
1

LB~ BB s v )

.00

.00
.00

(= oo o i =)

.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

-114.19
8.00
8.00

1,181.73
1,534.95
116.71
148.13
2,883.33

2,011.32
2,011.32

625.00
625.00

36.14
32.69
29.93
34.78
34.99
32.69
201.22

-29.75
-24.75
22.16
125.84
24.00
625.39
1,048.18
918.98
2,710.05

158



012 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL
BATCH 32:FEBRUARY 22 2017

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Req Reference Date

APYS500

L.00.12 01/25/17 14:54 PAGE
<< Open >>

9

Account num

Number of checks to be pri

Printed: 01/25/2017 14:55:11

DIST. J42508 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
BATCH: 0032 BATCH 32; FEBRUARY 22, 2017
Fund 13 CAFETERIA
Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num
Description Fd Res Y Goal Func Obj Sit
TOTAL Fund PAYMENT 8,430.92
TOTAL BATCH PAYMENT 32,266.08
TOTAL DISTRICT PAYMENT 32,266.08
TOTAL FOR ALL DISTRICTS: 32,266.08

nted: 47, not counting voids due to stub overflows.

BdR DD TOMPS Lig Amt Net Amount
*x 8,430.92
*hk 0.00 32,266.08
kxkk 0.00 32,266.08
*kkk 0.00 32,266.08

—————————=—R
, U BSiE

159




012 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST. J42279
BATCH 33; FEBRUARY 22, 2017

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Req Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST

BATCH: 0033 BATCH 33; FEBRUARY 22,

Fund : 01 GENERAL FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type

2017

ABA num
Fd Res Y Goal Func Obj

APY500

Account num
Sit B4R DD

TIMPS

L.00.12 01/23/17 08:49
<< Open >>

Lig Amt

PAGE 1

Net Amount

000008/00 CALIFORNIA'S VALUED TRUST H/W
PO-000444 01/18/2017 FEBRUARY 2017

PO-000444 01/18/2017 FEBRUARY 2017
PO-000444 01/18/2017 FEBRUARY 2017

000584/00 STANDARD

TOTAL

PO-000408 12/20/2016 JAN CT503202 DIV3000

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

Number of checks to be printed: 2, not counting

1 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9571-000-000~00000 NN P
2 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9572-000-000-00000 NN P
3 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9573-000-000-00000 NN P

PAYMENT AMOUNT 100,964.81 *

1 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9573-000-000-00000 NN P

PAYMENT AMOUNT 305.20 *
Fund PAYMENT 101,270.01 **
BATCH PAYMENT 101,270.01 ***

DISTRICT PAYMENT

FOR ALL DISTRICTS:

voids due to stub overflows.

101,270.01 ***%

101,270.01 **+%*

0.00
0.00
0.00

27,515.55
60,669.42
12,779.84
100,964.81

305.20

305.20

101,270.01

101,270.01

101,270.01

101,270.01

/ N\w\z

\kww@,g o Mman

Authorized by

'

160



012 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST. J43274
BATCH 34;FEBRUARY 25 2017

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date

001391/00

Description

ABSOLUTE HEATING & AIR INC

PO-000435 01/13/2017 5144011317

000010/00

PO-000406 01/30/2017 JAN HS 9858589 012717
000406 01/30/2017 JAN MT 9858589 012717
JAN ELLAB 9858589 012717
JAN ELEM 9858589 012717

PO-
PO-
PO-

000029/00

PO-

000053/00

PO~
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-

001498700

PO-000446 01/26/2017 13260 15-16 AUDIT

000205/00

ALHAMBRA & SIERRA SPRINGS

000406 01/30/2017
000406 01/30/2017

BUTTE COLLEGE

017405 01/23/2017

HAM 12016

CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE CO

000422 01/30/2017
000422 01/30/2017
000422 01/30/2017
000422 01/30/2017
000422 01/30/2017
000422 01/30/2017
000422 01/30/2017

FEB
FEB
FEB
FEB
FEB
FEB
FEB

4141117777
3141117777
3624177777
6314177777
0669843652
7314177777
4328876467

CHRISTY WHITE ASSOCIATES

CPM EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

PO-017520 02/01/2017 1700383-IN

Tax ID num Deposit type

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
BATCH: 0034 BATCH 34:FEBRUARY 28 2017
Fund : 01 GENERAL FUND

Fd Res Y Goal Func Obj

APY500 L.00.12 02/09/17 14:22 PAGE 1

<< Open >>

ABA num Account num
8it BdR DD TOMPS

510664349

1 01-8150-0-0000-8100-5630~-000-000-00000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 183.00 *

W

01-0000-0-0000-2700-4300-100-000-00000 NN
01-8150-0-0000-8100-4300-000-000-00000 NN
01-0000-0-3200-1000-4300-000-000-00000 NN
01-0000-0-0000-2700-4300-800-000-00000 NN

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 136.89 *

1 01-6382-0-3800-1000-5200-000-000-00000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 450.00 *

1 01-0000-0-0000-8100-5590-000-000-00000
1 01-0000-0-0000-8100-5590-000-000-00000
1 01-0000-0-0000-8100-5590-000~000-00000
1 01-0000-0-0000-8100~5590-000-000-00000
1 01-0000-0-0000-8100-5590-000-000-00000
1 01-0000-0-0000-8100-5590-000-000-00000
1 01-0000-0-0000-8100-5590-000-000-00000

EEEEERE

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 989.30 *

272956198

1 01-0000-0-0000-7191-5810-000-000-00000

g

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 7,301.25 *

1 01-0156-0-1110-1000-4200-000-000-00000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 813.44 *

wwo ol

Lig Amt

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

450.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

820.84

Net Amount

183.00
183.00

69.17
13.38
9.17
45.17
136.89

450.00
450.00

45.63
45.63
15.32
103.97
135.81
265.63
377.31
989.30

7,301.25
7,301.25

813.44
813.44

161



